
 

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AGENDA 
 

For the meeting to be held on Tuesday, 24 January 2023 
 

Prayers 
  
1 Apologies for Absence  
 
 The Council is asked to note any apologies for absence received from Members. 

  
2 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Council (Pages 1 - 20) 
 
 The Council is asked to approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the 

Council held on Tuesday 22 November 2022. 
  

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
 Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Personal 

Interest, and the nature of it, in relation to any item on the agenda. 
  

4 Announcements by the Chairman of the Council  
 
 The Council is asked to note any announcements made by the Chairman of the Council. 

  
5 Announcements by the Chief Executive  
 
 The Council is asked to note any announcements made by the Chief Executive. 

  
6 Statements by the Leader of the Council  
 
 

The Council is asked to note any statements made by the Leader of the Council.   

Councillors may then ask questions of the Leader on his statements. 
  

7 Statements by Members of the Cabinet  
 
 

The Council is asked to note any statements made by Members of the Cabinet (Portfolio 
Holders).  

Councillors may then ask questions of the Portfolio Holders on their statements. 
  

8 Report of the Chief Executive - A.1 - Petition to Council: Green Space Development 
(Pages 21 - 22) 

 
 To report an e-petition received in accordance with the Scheme approved by the Council. 

  

Public Document Pack



9 Report of the Chief Executive - A.2 - Petition to Council: Re-Instatement of Toilets 
on Middle Promenade below Connaught Gardens East, Clacton-on-Sea (Pages 23 - 
24) 

 
 To report an e-petition received in accordance with the Scheme approved by the Council. 

  
10 Questions Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 10.1  
 
 Subject to the required notice being given, members of the public can ask questions of 

the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders or Chairmen of Committees. 
 
The Chairman shall determine the number of questions to be tabled at a particular 
meeting in order to limit the time for questions and answers to 21 minutes. 
  

11 Report of the Leader of the Council - A.3 - Executive Decision(s) taken as a matter 
of Urgency (Pages 25 - 26) 

 
 To notify Members of recent Executive Decision(s) taken in the circumstances set out in 

the Council’s Constitution in:- 
 
(a) Rule 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules (Special Urgency); and/or 
 
(b) Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Call-in and Urgency); 

and/or 
 
(c)   Rule 6(b) of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
  

12 Minutes of Committees (Pages 27 - 36) 
 
 The Council will receive the minutes of the following Committees: 

 
(a) Resources and Services Overview & Scrutiny of Tuesday 15 November 2022;  
 
(b) Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny of Tuesday 22 November 2022; and 
 
(c) Audit of Thursday 15 December 2022. 

 
NOTES:  
 
(1)  The above minutes are presented to Council for information only.  Members can 

ask questions on their contents to the relevant Chairman but questions as to the 
accuracy of the minutes must be asked at the meeting of the Committee when the 
relevant minutes are approved as a correct record; and 

 
(2)  If any recommendations to Council have been made by those Committees, these are 

included within separate reports for Council to decide upon (i.e. by noting the 
minutes those recommendations are not approved at this stage of the proceedings). 

  
13 Motions to Council  
 
 No Motions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 12 have been submitted by 

Councillors on this occasion. 
  

14 Joint Report of the Monitoring Officer and the Cabinet - A.4 - Annual Review of the 
Council's Constitution (Pages 37 - 140) 

 



 In accordance with the provisions of Article 15.02 (a) and (c) of the Council’s Constitution, 
to approve the recommended changes to the Constitution put forward by the Monitoring 
Officer and the Cabinet following a review undertaken by the Corporate Finance and 
Governance Portfolio Holder through a Working Party constituted for this purpose. 
  

15 Reports Submitted to the Council by an Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
 The Council will consider any reports submitted to it by an Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. 
  

16 Report of the Head of Democratic Services and Elections - A.5 - Review of the 
Scheme of Members' Allowances by the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP)  

 
 To consider any potential uplift in the current Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2022/23. 

 
To determine the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2023/24 and beyond. 
 
(REPORT IS “TO FOLLOW”) 
  

17 Questions Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11.2 (Pages 141 - 142) 
 
 Subject to the required notice being given, Members of the Council can ask questions of 

the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders or Chairmen of 
Committees. 
 
The time allocated for receiving and disposing of questions shall be a maximum of 30 
minutes. Any question not disposed of at the end of this time shall be the subject of a 
written response, copied to all Members the following working day unless withdrawn by 
the questioner. 
  

18 Urgent Matters for Debate  
 
 The Council will consider any urgent matters submitted in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rules 3(xv), 11.3(b) and/or 13(p). 
 

 
Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting of the Council 
 
Tuesday, 14 February 2023 at 7.30 pm - Princes Theatre - Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton-
on-Sea, CO15 1SE 
 

 

INFORMATION FOR VISITORS 
 
 

PRINCES THEATRE FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting. In the event of an alarm sounding, 
please calmly make your way out of any of the four fire exits in the auditorium and follow 
the exit signs out of the building. 
 
Please follow the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist in leaving 
the building. 
 
Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant 
member of staff. 
 
The assembly point for the Princes Theatre is in the car park to the left of the front of the 



building as you are facing it. Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated. 
 

 
 
 

 
PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 
Welcome to this evening’s meeting of Tendring District Council. 

 
This is an open meeting which members of the public can attend to see Councillors debating 
and transacting the business of the Council. However, please be aware that, unless you are 
included on the agenda to ask a public question, members of the public are not entitled to 
make any comment or take part in the meeting. You are also asked to behave in a 
respectful manner at all times during these meetings.  

 
Members of the public do have the right to film or record council meetings subject to the 
provisions set out below:- 
 
Rights of members of the public to film and record meetings  

 
Under The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, which came into 
effect on 6 August 2014, any person is permitted to film or record any meeting of the 
Council, a Committee, Sub-Committee or the Cabinet, unless the public have been excluded 
from the meeting for the consideration of exempt or confidential business.  

 
Members of the public also have the right to report meetings using social media (including 
blogging or tweeting). 
 
The Council will provide reasonable facilities to facilitate reporting. 

 
Public Behaviour 

 
Any person exercising the rights set out above must not disrupt proceedings. Examples of 
what will be regarded as disruptive, include, but are not limited to: 

 
(1) Moving outside the area designated for the public; 

(2) Making excessive noise; 

(3) Intrusive lighting/flash; or 

(4) Asking a Councillor to repeat a statement. 

In addition, members of the public or the public gallery should not be filmed as this could 
infringe on an individual’s right to privacy, if their prior permission had not been obtained. 

 
Any person considered being disruptive or filming the public will be requested to cease 
doing so by the Chairman of the meeting and may be asked to leave the meeting. A refusal 
by the member of the public concerned will lead to the Police being called to intervene. 
 



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL, 
HELD ON TUESDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2022 AT 7.30 PM 

IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, 
CO15 1SE 

 
Present: Councillors Harris (Chairman), V Guglielmi (Vice-Chairman), Amos, 

Baker, Bray, Calver, Cawthron, Chapman BEM, Chittock, Clifton, 
Codling, Davidson, Davis, Fairley, Fowler, Griffiths, C Guglielmi, 
I Henderson, J Henderson, P Honeywood, S Honeywood, King, 
Knowles, Land, McWilliams, Miles, Morrison, Placey, Porter, Scott, 
Skeels, Stock OBE, Talbot, Turner, White, Wiggins and Winfield 

In Attendance: Ian Davidson (Chief Executive)(except item 56), Lisa Hastings 
(Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer), Lee Heley (Corporate 
Director (Place & Economy)), Richard Barrett (Assistant Director 
(Finance and IT) & Section 151 Officer), Keith Simmons (Head of 
Democratic Services and Elections), John Higgins (Head of IT and 
Corporate Resilience), Ian Ford (Committee Services Manager), 
Keith Durran (Committee Services Officer) and Matt Cattermole 
(Communications Assistant) 

 
 

35. SILENT TRIBUTE TO HER LATE MAJESTY QUEEN ELIZABETH THE SECOND  
 
This being the first meeting of the Full Council since the death of Her Late Majesty 
Queen Elizabeth the Second, the Chairman of the Council led Members and Officers 
present in a silent tribute to the memory of her long, blessed and glorious reign. 
 

36. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Alexander, Allen, Barry, 
Bush, Casey, Coley, Newton, Steady, G L Stephenson and M E Stephenson. 
 

37. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE COUNCIL  
 
It was moved by Councillor Stock OBE, seconded by Councillor G V Guglielmi and:- 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Council held on Tuesday 12 
July 2022 be approved as a correct record and be signed by the Chairman. 
 

38. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Leader of the Council (Councillor Stock OBE) declared an Interest in Agenda Item 
21, Report A.10 – Freeport East Limited: Appointment of Alternate Director insofar as he 
was a Director of Freeport East Limited. 
 
The Chief Executive (Ian Davidson) also declared an Interest in Agenda Item 21 insofar 
as he was named within that report. He informed Council that he would withdraw from 
the meeting at the appropriate juncture. 
 

39. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL  
 
Veterans and Services Day 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

The Chairman announced that he had been proud during August 2022 to host the first 
Veterans and Services Day. Thousands of people had attended to pay their respects to 
veterans, members of the Armed Forces and to the emergency services. He hoped that 
this would become an annual event and grow larger. 
 
Clacton Air Show 2022 
 
The Chairman felt that it had been a huge success. He had been very honoured to have 
two World War II veterans to take the salute from the “Tigers” British Army Parachute 
Team, who had been treated as heroes by the public and by the members of the Armed 
Forces who were present. He placed on record his sincere thanks to the Council 
Officers and everyone else involved in making this event such a huge success. 
 
Kinder Transport Memorial 
 
The Chairman reminded Council that, on 1 September 2022, the Kinder Transport 
Memorial had been unveiled in Harwich by Dame Stephanie Shirley, who had herself 
been one of the “Kinder”. The Memorial commemorated the 10,000, mostly Jewish, 
children who had been rescued from the Nazi regime in 1938/39.  
 
The Chairman informed Members that he had had the great honour of meeting her and 
other refugees and descendants at this event. He had been humbled to hear their about 
their experiences. He felt that this was not just an historic event for Harwich or the wider 
District but was a moment of reflection for the whole world. He urged those Members 
who had not yet been to go and see the statue and experience the “talking” memorial 
bench as soon as possible. 
 
The Chairman then invited Councillor I J Henderson, the current Mayor of Harwich Town 
Council to address the Council. 
 
Councillor Henderson informed Members that he had found it to be an emotional 
experience not just on the day but working with the committee in the months leading up 
to the unveiling in fund raising and organising the event. Visiting the foundry in 
Manningtree with the committee to see the statue being made and reading the 
inscriptions on the statue had brought home to him just how much this meant to the 
refugees and their descendants. It was an honour that Harwich had been recognised for 
its role as a safe haven for those children who had been rescued from the Nazi regime 
and Harwich Town Council were very pleased to take ownership of the memorial for 
preservation and safekeeping.  
 
Councillor Henderson outlined the parts played by the then Mayor of Harwich, the local 
residents, the local Doctors and Dovercourt Holiday Camp (of later Hi-de-Hi fame) in 
making the children feel safe and secure on their arrival. 
 
Members marked their appreciation for Councillor Henderson’s speech with a round of 
applause. 
 
The League of TDC Chairmen Group 
 
The Chairman announced that he wished to formulate a “League of Chairmen” group in 
order to nurture the relationships between the TDC Chairman ‘of the day’ and their 
predecessors as Chairman. The group would include all past Chairmen whether they 

Page 2



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

were still TDC Members or not. They would be invited to join with the aim of working 
together for the good of the District and charity. The immediate past TDC Chairman, 
Councillor Bray, had agreed to assist in forming the group. Further details would be 
announced at the next Full Council meeting. 
 
Colchester – City Status  
 
The Chairman informed Members that the next day (Wednesday 23 November 2022) 
would see Colchester officially become a City. He felt that this was a well-deserved 
recognition and success. On behalf of TDC he recorded his congratulations to all those 
who had played their part in securing city status. Colchester had been of immense 
strategic military importance in England’s history stretching from Roman times to the 
modern era as an Army Garrison town. 
 

40. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
There were no announcements by the Chief Executive on this occasion. 
 

41. STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
 
There were no statements made by the Leader of the Council on this occasion. 
 

42. STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS OF THE CABINET  
 
Demolition of Carnarvon House, Carnarvon Road, Clacton-on-Sea 
 
The Corporate Finance & Governance Portfolio Holder (Councillor G V Guglielmi) made 
the following statement:- 
 
“I am delighted to announce that thanks to some sterling work by Officers, £420,001 has 
been awarded to the Council from the Brownfield Land Release Fund to demolish 
Carnarvon House so that it can be prepared for future re-development. 
 
The office building in Carnarvon Road has been owned by TDC and in recent years was 
leased to the NHS as office space until it was no longer needed. 
 
It has been empty since July 2021 when the NHS vacated it and it was used as a 
temporary location base for filming the movie “Morris Men”, shot in and around 
Tendring, which was screened here in the Theatre in the October half term for its 
premiere. 
 
Carnarvon House has served the public well for a number of decades but the building is 
of its time and I don’t think many people will be sad to see it go; sadly it is not a structure 
that can be made energy efficient, nor can be adapted to any sustainable use, and with 
this grant funding we will be able to create an important space in the town centre, which 
will make a huge difference to the town. 
 
Being able to pay for this work from Government funding, and not local taxpayer 
contributions, is a huge help to the Council – while demolition also removes ongoing 
costs we face with owning an empty building. 
 

Page 3



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

In the short term Carnarvon House will be demolished, with some internal work, such as 
asbestos removal and soft furnishing before the building comes down in the New Year. 
In the longer term, the site is proposed for development as a flexible use community 
space and housing. Hopefully, the Planning Committee will look at this favourably when 
the planning application is passed to them.” 
 
Action on Climate Change Update 
 
The Environment and Public Space Portfolio Holder (Councillor Talbot) made the 
following statement:- 
 
“Following my report to the last Council meeting on the 12th of July,19 weeks ago, 
Members asked me to contact ECC, as the highway authority, to enquire about their 
plans for EV charging points in the roads within Tendring. I will not report the detail but 
suffice to say the County Council Portfolio Holder Councillor Lee Scott, was most 
supportive of my request, recognising our special situation as a coastal authority, 
needing facilities for holiday visitors. He offered to set up a meeting using MS Teams 
with both of us as Councillors being accompanied by our Officers. With annual holidays 
intervening a meeting was eventually set up by Essex County Council for Councillor 
Scott on EV charging on the 7th of September.  I was accompanied by Councillor Alex 
Porter and by Ian Taylor.  County Councillor Lee Scott attended from the County 
Council but was on his own with no officers to support him. Councillor Porter spoke 
about the need to address problems in our Town Centre where EV charge points could 
encourage increased business in the centre, and Ian Taylor referred to modest progress 
with our off-street provision, but the need was in our roads, where nothing was 
happening at this moment in time. Councillor Scott then left the meeting saying he 
would ask his officers to prepare a meeting with his responsible officers and Members 
and with representatives of a Private Company, and this I happily accepted. 
Unfortunately, this is over two months ago and to date I have heard nothing back. 
 
It is of note that the Monday following our meeting, Essex County Council set up an 
officer meeting to discuss EV Strategy in Essex – a coincidence, or saying it “with 
tongue in cheek,” perhaps on the 7th when we met, they had no policy? Only yesterday 
after I had written this report Lee Heley telephoned me to say that he had just received 
an invitation from ECC to attend a meeting on 14 December 2022 to present their draft 
strategy. 
 
The Government have said it will provide £450m of funding to local authorities for the 
rollout of new electric vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure for 300,000 electric vehicle 
(EV) chargers by 2030. 
  
£500 million will be invested to bring public charge points to communities across the UK 
with a Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) fund of £450 million for projects such 
as EV hubs and on-street charging solutions. In March, the Government invited LA’s to 
bid for £10 million in funding for options such as the On-Street Residential Charge point 
Scheme (ORCS), but this of course is a matter in the hands of ECC as our Highways 
Authority.  
 
All the above colleagues is outside of our control, but my report to Members is supposed 
to be about what Climate Change activity is taking place in Tendring. To this end I have 
received the following reports: 
   

Page 4



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Ian Taylor informs me that we will see eight electric vehicle charging points installed in 
the Starlings car park and events space which will be complete early next year. 
 
The Council has also met with UK Power Networks regarding costs for installation of EV 
points in our TDC car parks. 
  
Officers are currently gathering data from EV charge point operators for options for the 
Council to provide a range of slow (7kw) and medium (22kw) EV points across selected 
car parks in Tendring. 
  
Options for delivery will include Charge Point Operators delivering EV points where they 
fund installation and benefit from charging income, or the Council delivering EV points 
with 60% grant funding, and so benefiting from charging income - or a mix of both. We 
expect a full report on this early in the new year. 
 
One item of special interest to me arises from a query I raised with Morrisons 
supermarkets Head Office in Bradford, about the 20 charging bays they have installed in 
the new Centenary Way super store. They kindly supplied me with all the information I 
asked for, but of special interest were two of the bays that have 300kW chargers which 
can deliver an 80% charge in as little as eight minutes, for cars capable of refuelling at 
this capacity. I just wonder if this points the way forward.  
 
In terms of our overall use of electricity, Richard Barrett says that the Council continues 
to take the opportunity at each new procurement milestone, to ensure the electricity 
used across our various sites is delivered from carbon neutral sources. 
 
I have reported before that we are keen to develop the use of Solar Panels on our TDC 
properties. Tim R. Clarke informs me that the Building Research Establishment (BRE) 
has been commissioned to undertake work to develop business cases for the 
installation of solar panels on our estate. Tim says the work is progressing well and we 
have supplied BRE with electricity usage data and other information, in respect of the 
sites we have asked them to advise us on, that will enable our Officers to develop 
options on the way forward. The BRE will also provide us with their view on what we 
could do to install solar Photo Voltaic panels on our council homes, and we expect a 
draft report early in December, to be part of our policy considerations in the New Year.  
 
The Council has purchased £102,000 worth of trees to be planted at Burrsville Park, 
Great Clacton, Jaywick and Parkeston. Ian Taylor, wearing his Open Spaces hat, says 
these are 8ft high of mixed varieties and that we have received further funding to 
maintain the trees for the next three years. This funding has come from the 
Government’s Urban Tree Challenge Fund, via the Essex County Council’s Essex Tree 
Initiative bid. Tendring have been awarded 45 percent of the whole successful ECC bid 
amounting of over £300,000. 
  
The Council is also waiting for final confirmation of a bid for tree planting and green 
projects at The Cliff, Dovercourt from the Government’s Levelling Up Fund – this is in 
the region of £87,000. 
 
It is of note that ECC’s target of planting 375,000 trees across Essex by 2025 is well on 
the way with 143,059 trees planted so far. Surely a ‘Star’ on the back of their hand for 
the County Council.  
 

Page 5



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Energy Efficiency surveys of the General Fund building stock have been completed and 
the process for prioritising, funding, and resourcing the various projects is under way. 
Andy White tells me that £60,000 from the TDC Climate Action Fund, has been agreed 
to support additional building surveyor resource within the team, to help deliver projects 
including energy saving building work. These will ultimately save money and carbon 
emissions.  
 
I thank Lee Heley for contacting the responsible officers on my behalf, so that I can, in 
turn, inform all Members of what is being done in their name. Thank you.” 
 
Councillor Talbot then responded to questions raised on his statement by Councillors I J 
Henderson and Scott. 
 

43. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE - A.1 - PETITION TO COUNCIL: NELSON 
ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA  
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, the Chief 
Executive formally reported the receipt of a petition submitted by Councillors Alexander 
and Griffiths on behalf of Ms Maria Monteith, the lead petitioner, on 30 September 2022. 
The petition had been supported by 60 residents of Nelson Road, Clacton-on-Sea (and 
further supported by 33 other local residents) and had requested that the Council 
“…urgently exercised its planning enforcement powers to serve a Breach of Condition 
Notice on Lane Homes Construction Group in order to ensure that the contractor 
responsible for the new nine build houses makes good the unmade pavement and drop 
kerbs in Nelson Road that are required by the planning permission for this site.” 
 
Accordingly, this matter had been investigated and a report prepared and presented to 
the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 25 October 2022. 
 
At that meeting, and in accordance with the Council’s approved scheme, Ms Monteith, 
as the lead petitioner, addressed Members and outlined the action that the petitioners 
wanted the Council to take. The Ward Members, Councillors Alexander and Griffiths, 
had also addressed the Planning Committee. The Committee had then discussed and 
deliberated on the petition and the report and had decided:- 
 
“That the Planning Committee instructs our Director of Planning to write, formally, to the 
Portfolio Holder responsible for Highways at Essex County Council to escalate this 
matter with a view to a speedy and satisfactory resolution – bearing in mind this is a 
matter that has been unresolved for in excess of a year and should have been 
concluded prior to occupation of the new homes.  
 
The letter will explain that there has been a strong petition from a significant number of 
local residents that, with good reason, demonstrates that this is a matter of great public 
interest which is causing a great deal of local distress and which is undermining the 
public’s faith in both their District and County Councils in carrying out their duties. 
Furthermore, the state of the footway has given rise to genuine concerns about the 
safety of pedestrians and damage to residents’ vehicles – which could potentially give 
rise to claims against the Highway Authority as it falls within its duty to maintain the 
public highway.  
 
With the full support and backing of the Members of this Planning Committee, the letter 
will demand that the completion of the footpath is given a higher priority and is resolved 

Page 6



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

as a matter of urgency, utilising the available enforcement powers if necessary, and that 
this Council is provided with an explanation of the current position and a timetable for 
completing the works – which can be reported back to the Planning Committee and local 
residents.”   
 
Ms Monteith was subsequently informed, in writing, of the Planning Committee’s 
decision and the decision had been published on the Council’s website by way of the 
Minutes of that meeting.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Stock OBE, seconded by Councillor G V Guglielmi and:- 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of this report be noted. 
 

44. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE - A.2 - PETITION TO COUNCIL: GREEN 
SPACE DEVELOPMENT AND SALE - HOLLAND HAVEN  
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, the Chief 
Executive formally report the receipt of an e-petition submitted by Sharon Tyler, as lead 
petitioner, on 8 October 2022. The petition had been signed by 171 persons and 
stated:- 
 
“We the undersigned petition the Council to not sell or develop the green spaces by The 
Gap and at Haven Avenue/The Esplanade in Holland-on-Sea.” 
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, this matter 
would now be investigated and a report would be prepared and presented to the 
Cabinet on the basis that it contained between 30 and 500 signatures and related to a 
matter that was an Executive function under the law. 
 
Members were aware that the next practicable ordinary meeting of the Cabinet was on 
16 December 2022. 
 
At that meeting, and in accordance with the Council’s approved scheme, Sharon Tyler, 
as lead petitioner, would be invited to address the Cabinet, explain the petition and 
outline the action that the petitioners would like the Council to take.  Members would 
then discuss the petition and decide what action, if any, should be taken.  Cabinet’s 
decision would be confirmed in writing to Ms Tyler and the decision would be published 
on the Council’s website via the Minutes of that meeting.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Stock OBE, seconded by Councillor G V Guglielmi and:- 
 
RESOLVED that the receipt of the Petition and the contents of the report be noted. 
 

45. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.1  
 
No Questions had been submitted pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 10.1 for this 
meeting. 
 

46. REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL - A.3 - EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
TAKEN AS A MATTER OF URGENCY  
 

Page 7



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 16.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules and Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, Council 
received a report from the Leader of the Council which notified Members of any recent 
Executive Decision(s) taken in the circumstances set out in Rule 15 of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules and/or Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules and/or Rule 6(b) of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
 
Local Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund Scheme for Business Rates for 2021/22 
 
It was reported that, on  23 September 2022, the Leader of the Council, in view of the 
urgency of the issue concerned, and in accordance with Rule 15 of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules and Rule 18(i) of the Overview & Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules, had sought and subsequently obtained the Chairman of the Resources and 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s consent that his decision relating to the 
approval of a local Covid-19 additional relief fund scheme for Business Rates for 
2021/22 be taken under the Council’s “Special Urgency” procedure and that it also be 
exempted from the call-in procedure.  
            
The Leader of the Council’s decision had been as follows:-  
 
“That a Local Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund Scheme 2021/22 be adopted.” 
           
It had been felt that any delay likely to be caused by the usual key decision forward plan 
and call-in process would have seriously prejudiced the Council’s and the public’s 
interest for the following reason:- 
 
“In accordance with the associated legislation, the proposed local relief scheme for 
2021/22 had to be adopted before 30 September 2022.” 
 
Council noted the foregoing. 
 

47. MINUTES OF COMMITTEES  
 
It was moved by Councillor Stock OBE and:- 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following Committees, as circulated, be received 
and noted:- 

 
(a) Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny of Tuesday 28 June 2022; 
 
(b) Audit of Thursday 30 June 2022; 
 
(c) Resources and Services Overview & Scrutiny of Thursday 30 June 2022;  
 
(d) Human Resources & Council Tax of Thursday 7 July 2022; 
 
(e) Tendring/Colchester Border Garden Community Joint Committee of Monday 18 July 

2022;  
 
(f) Standards of Wednesday 3 August 2022; 
 
(g) Audit of Thursday 29 September 2022; 

Page 8



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

(h) Planning Policy & Local Plan of Monday 10 October 2022; 
 
(i) Human Resources & Council Tax of Tuesday 11 October 2022; 
 
(j) Resources and Services Overview & Scrutiny of Monday 17 October 2022; and 
 
(k) Standards of Wednesday 26 October 2022. 
 

48. MOTIONS TO COUNCIL PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12  
 
No motions on notice, pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 12, had been submitted by 
members of the Council for this meeting. 
 

49. REFERENCE FROM THE CABINET - A.4 - THE LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT 
SCHEME 2023/2024 - COUNCIL TAX EXEMPTIONS/DISCOUNTS FOR 2023/2024 
AND THE ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 
2023/2024  
 
The Council considered the recommendations submitted to it by the Cabinet in respect 
of the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/2024 (including the associated 
exceptional hardship policy), Council Tax Exemptions, Discounts and Premiums for 
2023/2024 and the Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2023/2024 
(Minute 73 – Cabinet meeting of 4 November 2022). 
 
A copy of the Housing Portfolio Holder and the Corporate Finance and Governance 
Portfolio Holder’s published joint report (and its appendices) to the Cabinet meeting held 
on 4 November 2022 were attached as appendices to item A.4 of the Reference from 
the Cabinet. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P B Honeywood and:- 
 
RESOLVED that Council approves that –  
 
(a) the LCTS scheme for 2023/24 remains the same as the current year, as set out as 

Appendix A to item A.6 of the joint report of the Housing Portfolio Holder and 
Corporate Finance & Governance Portfolio Holder as submitted to the meeting of 
the Cabinet held on 4 November 2022 with the maximum LCTS award being 80% 
for working age claimants [APPENDIX 2 to item A.4 of the Reference from Cabinet]; 

 
(b) the Assistant Director (Finance and IT), in consultation with the Housing Portfolio 

Holder be authorised to undertake the necessary steps to implement the LCTS 
scheme from 1 April 2023; 

 
(c) the Council Tax Exceptional Hardship Policy, as set out in Appendix B to the 

aforementioned joint report as submitted to the meeting of the Cabinet held on 4 
November 2022 be approved [APPENDIX 3]; 

 
(d) the locally determined council tax discounts, as set out in Appendix C to the 

aforesaid joint report as submitted to the meeting of the Cabinet held on 4 
November 2022 be approved [APPENDIX 4]; 

 

Page 9



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

(e) the council tax discount policy for young people leaving care, as set out in Appendix 
D to the above mentioned joint report as submitted to the meeting of the Cabinet 
held on 4 November 2022 be approved [APPENDIX 5];  

 
(f) the discretionary council tax premiums, as set out in Appendix E to the 

aforementioned joint report as submitted to the meeting of the Cabinet held on 4 
November 2022 be approved [APPENDIX 6]; 

  
(g) the Assistant Director (Finance and IT), in consultation with the Housing Portfolio 

Holder, be authorised to undertake the necessary steps to implement the council 
tax exemptions, discounts and premiums from 1 April 2023; and  

 
(h) the Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement for 2023/24, as 

set out in Appendix F to the aforesaid joint report as submitted to the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 4 November 2022 be approved [APPENDIX 7]. 

 
50. REPORTS SUBMITTED TO THE COUNCIL BY AN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  
 
No reports from an overview and scrutiny committee had been submitted for Council’s 
consideration and determination at this meeting. 
 

51. REFERENCE FROM THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE - A.5 - PROPOSED FORMAL 
ADOPTION OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION'S MODEL MEMBERS' 
CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
Council considered the recommendation of the Standards Committee in relation to the 
formal adoption of the Local Government Association’s Model Members’ Code of 
Conduct as Tendring District Council’s code as regards the conduct, which was 
expected of all elected Councillors, voting co-opted members and appointed members 
(Sections 27 & 28, Localism Act 2011). 
 
Council was aware that the Standards Committee, at its meetings held on 6 April 2022 
(Minute 30 referred) and 3 August 2022 (Minute 5 referred) had reviewed the elected 
Members’ Model Code of Conduct (“the Model Code”), as authored by the Local 
Government Association (LGA), in comparison to Tendring District Council’s (TDC) 
Members’ Code of Conduct (“the Code”), for eventual determination as to whether to 
recommend the Model Code to Full Council for adoption. 
 
At its meeting held on 3 August 2022 the Standards Committee had unanimously 
resolved, inter alia, that it:- 
 
“(c) recommends to Full Council that the LGA Model Code be approved and adopted.” 
 
A copy of the published report (minus appendices) of the Monitoring Officer to the 
meeting of the Standards Committee held on 3 August 2022, was attached as Appendix 
1 to item A.5 of the Reference from the Standards Committee. The LGA’s Model 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct was attached as Appendix 2 to that reference report. 
 
Councillor Baker asked a question on how the word “mandatory” would be defined in 
relation to recommendation (c) of the reference report. The Monitoring Officer (Lisa 

Page 10



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Hastings) informed the meeting that she would circulate a briefing note on this to 
Members after the meeting. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Land and:- 
 
RESOLVED that Council approves:- 
 
(a) the adoption of the Local Government Association’s Model Members’ Code of 

Conduct, as set out in Appendix 2, for the purposes of Sections 27 & 28 of the 
Localism Act 2011, with a commencement date of the Annual Meeting of the 
Council in May 2023; 

 
(b) that all Town and Parish Councils in the Tendring District be invited by the 

Monitoring Officer to adopt the same Code for their own Councils;  
 
(c) that all the duly elected Tendring District Council members at the Council’s 

elections in May 2023 attend mandatory training sessions on the new Code of 
Conduct; and 

 
(d) that the new Code of Conduct be incorporated into Part 6 of the Council’s 

Constitution in due course. 
 

52. REFERENCE FROM THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE - A.6 - TERMS OF OFFICE 
AND RECRUITMENT OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL'S STATUTORY 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL AND ALSO THE COUNCIL'S 
STATUTORY INDEPENDENT PERSONS  
 
Council considered the recommendations of the Standards Committee in relation to the 
terms of office and future recruitment of the members of the Council’s Independent 
Remuneration Panel and its Independent Persons. 
 
Council was aware that the Standards Committee, at its meeting held on 3 August 2022 
(Minute 6 referred), had considered the Independent Remuneration Panel’s and 
Independent Persons’ terms of office, with the aim of exploring alternative options as to 
future recruitment, with a view to making recommendations to full Council on this matter.   
 
Having duly considered all of the information and advice contained in the Officer report 
the Standards Committee had unanimously resolved:- 
 
“That the Standards Committee:-  
 
(a) notes the contents of the Deputy Chief Executive’s report;  
 
(b) recommends to Full Council that alternative arrangements for the Independent 
Remuneration Panel are explored further in order to maximise options available with 
other Councils within Essex and to give consideration to the outcome prior to any future 
recruitment; and  
 
(c) recommends further to Full Council that the term of office for those Independent 
Persons, who express an interest in doing so, be extended for a further year without an 
application process, in order to allow the review within resolution (b) above to be 
undertaken.” 

Page 11



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

A copy of the published report of the Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer to the 
meeting of the Standards Committee held on 3 August 2022, was attached as an 
appendix to item A.6 of the Reference from the Standards Committee. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Land and:- 
 
RESOLVED that Council approves:- 
 
(a) that alternative arrangements for the Independent Remuneration Panel are 

explored further in order to maximise options available with other Councils within 
Essex and to give consideration to the outcome prior to any future recruitment; and  

 
(b) that the term of office for those Independent Persons, who express an interest in 

doing so, be extended for a further year without an application process, in order to 
allow the review within recommendation (a) above to be undertaken. 

 
53. REFERENCE FROM THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE - A.7 - REVIEW OF THE 

MONITORING OFFICER'S PROTOCOL  
 
Council considered the recommendation of the Standards Committee in relation to its 
review of the Monitoring Officer Protocol. 
 
Council was aware that the Standards Committee, at its meeting held on 26 October 
2022 (Minute 13 referred), had reviewed the Monitoring Officer Protocol and had 
decided whether, if any changes were felt to be required, to recommend those to Full 
Council for formal approval and adoption. 
 
Having duly considered all of the information and advice contained in the Officer report 
and its appendices the Committee had unanimously resolved:- 
 
“That, having reviewed the Monitoring Officer’s Protocol, the Committee agrees that the 
suggested proposed amendments to that Protocol, as set out in the Monitoring Officer’s 
report, be submitted to Full Council for formal approval and adoption.” 
 
A copy of the published report (minus appendices) of the Monitoring Officer to the 
meeting of the Standards Committee held on 26 October 2022, was attached as 
Appendix 1 to item A.7 of the Reference from the Standards Committee. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Land and:- 
 
RESOLVED that Council approves:- 
 
(e) the proposed amendments to the Monitoring Officer, as shown in Appendix 2 to 

item A.7 of the Reference from the Standards Committee, and 
 
(f) that the revised Monitoring Officer Protocol, as set out in Appendix 3 to the 

aforesaid reference report be adopted and be incorporated into Part 6 of the 
Council’s Constitution in due course. 

 
54. REFERENCE FROM THE LICENSING & REGISTRATION COMMITTEE - A.8 - 

ADOPTION OF A NEW STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (LICENSING ACT 
2003)  

Page 12



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Council considered the recommendation of the Licensing and Registration Committee 
that it agreed and adopted the Council’s new Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing 
Act 2003). 
 
Members were reminded that the Council was required to determine its Statement of 
Licensing Policy every five years in accordance with Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and by the 
Policing and Crime Act 2017).  The Licensing Act 2003 stated that a Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy would set out the Council’s policy with respect to the 
exercise of its licensing functions within the 2003 Act. 
 
It was reported that the Council had last adopted a Statement of Licensing Policy in 
2016 for the period 2016-2021. As such, and in order to comply with its legal duty under 
the aforementioned Section 5, the Council was seeking to adopt a new Statement as 
soon as practicable. 
   
Members were informed that the review and renewal of the Statement had been 
subjected to the required public consultation and a final draft of the Statement had been 
scrutinised and agreed by the Licensing and Registration Committee at its meeting held 
on 3 November 2022. 
  
The Statement had to be adopted by Full Council on the recommendation of the 
Licensing and Registration Committee and then published on the Council’s website and 
by way of a public notice in a local newspaper. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Winfield and:- 
 
RESOLVED that -  
 
(a)    the Council’s new Statement of Licensing Policy, as set out as an Appendix to 

item A.8 of the Reference from the Licensing and Registration Committee, be 
agreed and adopted;   

 
(b)   the Council’s new Statement of Licensing Policy be published via the Council’s 

website and by way of a public notice in the local newspaper; and  
 
(c)  the Council’s new Statement of Licensing Policy will come into force from 23 

November 2022. 
 

55. REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR CORPORATE FINANCE & 
GOVERNANCE - A.9 - INFORMATION GOVERNANCE  
 
Council considered a report of the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and 
Governance, which presented to it an update on proposals for IT changes. That ongoing 
work was aimed at reaching an outcome whereby Members could undertake their role 
effectively, whilst ensuring that information held by the Council was safe, secure and 
compliant with relevant legislation. This work would also include looking at various 
different IT solutions and the associated costs. 
 
Council was aware that, like all modern twenty-first century organisations, it was reliant 
upon information, data and digital services to deliver its services.  The Council securely 
stored and held guardianship over some 60 terabytes of residents’, customers’, visitors’, 

Page 13



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Members’ and Officers’ personal and special category data. To put that into context, 60 
terabytes of data represented the equivalent of 390 million document pages. 
 
It was recognised that Members were reliant upon access to their emails to undertake 
their role as a Councillor.  Members also had a responsibility to ensure that the 
sometimes sensitive personal or organisational information that they were sent was kept 
safely and confidentially. 
 
It was reported that throughout 2018-2021 the Council’s IT Service had implemented 
and achieved compliance with increasing NCSC technical security standards. The UK 
had adopted its UK Data Protection Act 2018 and UK General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) legislation on 25 May 2018. The key Principles of UK Data 
Protection legislation required that the data was stored: lawfully, fairly and 
transparently, adequate and relevant and limited to what was necessary, accurate 
and where necessary kept up to date, kept for no longer than was necessary in a 
form which permitted identification of data subjects, ensuring ‘integrity and 
confidentiality’ protecting against unauthorised or unlawful processing and against 
accidental loss/ destruction/ damage through using appropriate security.  
 
Council was informed that the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC) had commenced local authority security resilience audits in 2021.  In 
December 2021 the DLUHC ‘Health Check’ scan had identified the Council’s auto-
forwarding of emails practice as a risk and had recommended that the practice be 
phased out as soon as possible. Those DLUHC local government cyber-security audits 
were being rolled-out to all authorities during 2023. 
 
The original proposal to cease the auto-forwarding of emails had also emerged from an 
information governance / GDPR review undertaken by Internal Audit. The associated 
review, which supported that approach, had been undertaken in line with the Council’s 
existing risk management processes and had included input from the Council’s Data 
Protection Officer, Section 151 Officer, Internal Audit Manager and Senior Information 
Risk Owner (SIRO). 
 
Members were made aware that Internal Audit’s findings and the DLUHC audit had 
been considered and agreed by the Audit Committee who after considering the matter 
at its January 2020 meeting, had resolved that: 
 
“The Committee supports the implementation, as soon as possible, of the proposal set 
out within the report for providing the necessary IT equipment and training to Members 
to ensure that only Council equipment is used when conducting Council business in 
order to reduce the financial and reputational risk associated with processing personal 
data.” 
 
Subsequently, the March 2022 Corporate Risk Register had reported the need to cease 
the practice of auto-forwarding of Councillors’ emails. 
   
Council was advised that the UK Data Protection legislation (6th Principle) required that 
information and data were processed in a manner that ensured appropriate security of 
the personal data including protection against unauthorised or unlawful processing and 
against accidental loss/ destruction/ damage through using appropriate technical or 
organizational measures (integrity and confidentiality).  In all matters of council 
business, the Council was the Data Controller and had legislative responsibility to 

Page 14



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

ensure, and to evidence, that information was being managed and protected in 
accordance with the principles of the legislation.  
 
The risk of cyber-attack was not new, but it was escalating in terms of frequency, 
severity and complexity. To counter those sophisticated attacks the Council’s protected 
domain used a range of best of breed, commercial-grade security services from multiple 
vendors.  
 
It was noted that the original proposal of ceasing auto-forwarding of emails had been 
met with concern from some Members as they felt that it might curtail their ability to 
access information and fulfil their role. Therefore, the Portfolio Holder had instructed 
Officers to explore different solutions (including some new processes of creating an app 
for Members to be able to access their emails securely on their own devices), whilst 
being mindful of ensuring the security of such information and protection against cyber-
attacks. 
 
The Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee had included Cyber-
security in their work programme. In consultation with the Chairman of that Committee, 
(Councillor M E Stephenson), it was proposed that their remit be extended to include the 
issue of Members’ access to their information and the alternative solutions available, 
mindful of the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the issues of 
confidentiality, Data Protection and cyber security.  All Members would have the 
opportunity to have an input into this and any recommendations would be brought back 
to a future Council meeting. 
 
As this Council had all-out elections in May 2023, it was proposed that any and all 
changes would be implemented for the newly elected Council.  
 
It was also proposed that a workshop be scheduled for all Members to highlight the 
requirements of Data Protection and the prevalent issues of cyber breaches and 
security requirements. This would assist in mitigating the risks of breaches. 
 
In terms of the proposed review by the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, it was highlighted that the Council’s existing adopted Risk Management 
Framework sought to address a number of key elements such as the identification of 
risks, the analysis of those risks and whether they could be ‘tolerated’ or needed to be 
‘treated etc., with the latter including reviewing potential options. With the above in mind, 
it was felt logical / pragmatic to structure the proposed review around those existing risk 
management principles, which formed part of the original work undertaken by Officers 
and the Audit Committee. That approach would also complement a wider review of 
various cyber related issues as part of the Cyber Assessment Framework recently 
published by the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) that had been considered at 
the first meeting on 27 October 2022 of the Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee’s Cyber Security Task and Finish Group. 
 
Members were invited to submit any comments or thoughts on the subject of cyber 
security and email forwarding for the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Task and Finish Working Group to take into consideration.  
 
During the debate on this matter, Councillors G V Guglielmi, Talbot, Turner, Baker, I J 
Henderson, Clifton, Miles, Porter, Scott, Chapman BEM and Stock OBE addressed the 
Council. 

Page 15



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

With the acquiescence of the Chairman, Councillor G V Guglielmi read out a statement 
on behalf of the Chairman of the Audit Committee (Councillor Coley) who had been 
unable to attend the meeting. 
 
It was moved by Councillor G V Guglielmi, seconded by Councillor Stock OBE and:- 
 
RESOLVED that –  
 
1. Full Council acknowledges that the ongoing risk of the Council, in acting as Data 

Controller, could potentially be in breach of the Data Protection Act 2018 remains, 
whilst the auto-forwarding of Councillor emails practice continues;   

2. the Resources and Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee extend its work 
programme of cyber security to include reviewing the different proposals of 
Members’ access to emails, in line with the Council’s Risk Management 
Framework, and make recommendations to Cabinet and Council along with 
relevant costings; 

3. such proposals be mindful of the recommendations of the Audit Committee, Data 
Protection Act requirements and cyber security; 

4. a workshop be scheduled for all Members to ensure awareness of the requirements 
of the Data Protection Act 2018 and cyber security; and  

5. the implementation of any and all changes required be planned for no later than 1st 
April 2023 in readiness for the commencement of the new Council, following the 
elections in 2023 and that the new Councillors be given the training as detailed in 4 
above. 

 
56. REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & MONITORING OFFICER - A.10 - 

FREEPORT EAST LIMITED: APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATE DIRECTOR  
 
The Chief Executive (Ian Davidson) declared an Interest in this matter insofar as he was 
named within the report and withdrew from the meeting whilst this item was deliberated 
and determined by Members. 
 
The Leader of the Council (Councillor Stock OBE) also declared an Interest in this 
matter insofar as he was this Council’s Member representative Company Director on the 
Board of Freeport East Limited. 
 
It was reported that, at its meeting held on 25 March 2022, Cabinet had resolved 
(minute no. 151 referred) that: 
 

 the Leader and Officers participate in the governance proposals set out in the Full 
Business Case for Freeport East on the principle that Tendring District Council 
becomes a member of the body set up to govern Freeport;  

 any decision to formally become part of the governing body would be taken by the 
Leader, in accordance with previous delegations, following consultation with his 
Portfolio Holder Working Party; and 

 it approves the Leader of the Council appointing a Member representative to that 
governing body. 

 
Subsequently, having considered the recommendations made by the Freeport East 
Portfolio Holder Working Party, at its meeting held on 31st August 2022, the Leader had 
made the following Executive Decision on 17th October 2022, namely that: 
 

Page 16



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

i) Tendring District Council joins the Freeport East Company as a founding Member; 
ii) Tendring District Council enters into a Members’ Agreement with other partner 

organisations in Freeport East; and 
iii) The Leader of the Council is to join the Board of the Company as the Member 

representative Company Director from Tendring District Council. 
  
Council was made aware that Clause 16 of the Articles of Association provided for 
Alternate Directors to be appointed by any Public Sector Director (the Appointor) who 
was an officer or employee, or an elected member, of their appointing Member as an 
alternate. Each alternate would be appointed to exercise the Appointor’s powers and to 
carry out the Appointor’s responsibilities. The appointment or removal of an Alternate 
must be effected by notice in writing to the Company signed by the Appointor.  Such 
appointment or removal would take effect when the notice was received by the 
Company or on such later date (if any) specified in the notice. The Board would be 
responsible for registering any Alternate Directors at Companies House. 
  
Council was informed that the Leader of the Council had decided, in acting as a Director 
of the Company that he wished to appoint Ian Davidson, Chief Executive as the 
Alternate Director. However, this proposal required the endorsement of Full Council in 
accordance with Part 3.4 of the Constitution, Schedule 1, Responsibility for Local 
Choice Functions i.e.   
   
Full Council had delegated the authority to the Chief Executive for the appointment of 
any individual – 
 

(a) to any office other than an office in which they are employed by the authority; 
 

(b) to any body other than – 
 

(i) the authority; 
(ii) a joint committee of two or more authorities; or 

 
(c) to any committee or sub-committee of such a body. 

 
and the revocation of any such appointment. 

 
However, it was appreciated that the Chief Executive could not exercise those powers 
for his own appointment(s) and therefore it was moved by Councillor Stock OBE, 
seconded by Councillor G V Guglielmi and:- 
 
RESOLVED that Full Council endorses the appointment of Ian Davidson, acting as 
Chief Executive of Tendring District Council, as Alternate Director to Freeport East Ltd. 
 

57. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 11.2  
 
Subject to the required notice being given, Members of the Council could ask questions 
of the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders or Chairmen 
of Committees. 
 
One question on notice had been submitted by a Member for this meeting as set out 
below. 

Page 17



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Councillor Bill Davidson asked Councillor Carlo Guglielmi, the Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Finance and Governance: 
 
“Will the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance and Governance please advise the 
Council of: 
 
(a) the amount that TDC received from the Government in revenue support grant for 

the year 2013-14; and  
 
(b) the amount that TDC received from the Government in revenue support grant for 

the year 2022-23?” 
 

The Corporate Finance and Governance Portfolio Holder replied as follows:- 
 
“Thank you, Councillor Davidson, for your question. 
 
The Revenue Support Grant received in 2013/14 was £6.720 million. 
 
The equivalent funding received in 2022/23 is £444,000. 
 
It is also worth taking this opportunity to echo the comments made at the meeting of 
Cabinet on 4 November.  
 
In terms of responding to the financial challenges we are facing, we are doing this in a 
very open, honest, and inclusive way, and will be engaging with all Members throughout 
the budget setting process, as I had already announced at the Cabinet meeting of 7th 
October.  
 
What won’t be helpful is looking back to reflect on politics from 10 years ago, especially 
as translating historic decisions in the context of the issues we currently face today, 
would largely be based on conjecture.  
 
As it has always been my view and firm belief, we need to look at the position that is in 
front of us. In February we will therefore make the necessary recommendations to the 
Budget meeting, by very much having the Council’s financial sustainability at the heart 
of any decisions we need to take.” 
 

58. URGENT MATTERS FOR DEBATE  
 
No urgent matters had been submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 
3(xv), 11.3(b) and/or 13(p) for this meeting. 
 

59. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
It was moved by Councillor Stock OBE, seconded by Councillor G V Guglielmi and:- 
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of Agenda Item 25 on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A, as amended, of the Act. 
 

Page 18



 Council 
 

22 November 2022  

 

60. EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & COUNCIL 
TAX COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY 7 JULY AND TUESDAY 11 OCTOBER 
2022  
 
It was moved by Councillor Stock OBE, seconded by Councillor G V Guglielmi and:- 
 
RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the meetings of the Human Resources & 
Council Tax Committee held on Thursday 7 July and Tuesday 11 October 2022. 
  

 The Meeting was declared closed at 9.03 pm  
  

 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
COUNCIL  

 
24 JANUARY 2023 

 
REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 
A.1 PETITION TO COUNCIL: GREEN SPACE DEVELOPMENT  

(Report prepared by Keith Durran) 
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, I formally 
report the receipt of an e-petition submitted by Caroline Saye, as lead petitioner, on 15 
November 2022. The petition is signed by 432 persons and states:- 
 
“We the undersigned petition the council to take no further action in respect of exploring the 
potential for development /disposal for each of the 69 proposed areas of land reported to 
Cabinet on 15 July 2022 until such time as a public meeting or meetings have been held to 
provide all residents with the ability to express their views.” 
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, this matter will 
now be investigated and a report will be prepared and presented to the Cabinet on the 
basis that it contains between 30 and 500 signatures and relates to a matter that is an 
Executive function under the law. 
 
Members will be aware that the next practicable ordinary meeting of the Cabinet is on 17 
February 2023. 
 
At that meeting, and in accordance with the Council’s approved scheme, Caroline Saye, the 
lead petitioner, will be invited to address the Cabinet, explain the petition and outline the 
action that the petitioners would like the Council to take.  Members will then discuss the 
petition and decide what action, if any, should be taken.  Cabinet’s decision will be 
confirmed in writing to Ms Saye and the decision will be published on the Council’s website 
via the Minutes of that meeting.  
 
RECOMMENDED - That the receipt of the Petition and the contents of the report be 
noted. 
 
 

 
 
 

 IAN DAVIDSON 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



 
COUNCIL  

 
24 JANUARY 2023 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS LIST FOR 

REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 

 
A.1 PETITION TO COUNCIL: GREEN SPACE DEVELOPMENT  
 
 E-Petition submitted by Caroline Saye to the Council on 15 November 2022. 

Page 22



 
COUNCIL  

 
24 JANUARY 2023 

 
REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 
A.2 PETITION TO COUNCIL: RE-INSTATEMENT OF TOILETS ON MIDDLE PROMENADE 

BELOW CONNAUGHT GARDENS EAST, CLACTON-ON-SEA  
(Report prepared by Keith Durran) 
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, I formally 
report the receipt of an e-petition submitted by Colin Underwood, as lead petitioner, on 18 
November 2022. The petition is signed by 41 persons and states:- 
 
“We the undersigned petition the council to re-instate public toilets in the vicinity of the 
demolished toilets on the middle promenade below Connaught Gardens East”. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for dealing with petitions, this matter will 
now be investigated and a report will be prepared and presented to the Cabinet on the 
basis that it contains between 30 and 500 signatures and relates to a matter that is an 
Executive function under the law. 
 
Members will be aware that the next practicable ordinary meeting of the Cabinet is on 17 
February 2023. 
 
At that meeting, and in accordance with the Council’s approved scheme, Colin Underwood, 
the lead petitioner, will be invited to address the Cabinet, explain the petition and outline the 
action that the petitioners would like the Council to take.  Members will then discuss the 
petition and decide what action, if any, should be taken.  Cabinet’s decision will be 
confirmed in writing to Mr. Underwood and the decision will be published on the Council’s 
website via the Minutes of that meeting.  
 
RECOMMENDED - That the receipt of the Petition and the contents of the report be 
noted. 
 
 

 
 
 

 IAN DAVIDSON 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



 
COUNCIL  

 
24 JANUARY 2023 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS LIST FOR 

REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 

 
A.2 PETITION TO COUNCIL: RE-INSTATEMENT OF TOILETS ON MIDDLE PROMENADE 

BELOW CONNAUGHT GARDENS EAST, CLACTON-ON-SEA 
 
 E-Petition submitted by Colin Underwood to the Council on 18 November 2022. 

Page 24



COUNCIL 
 

24 JANUARY 2023  
 

REPORT OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 
A.3 EXECUTIVE DECISION(S) TAKEN AS A MATTER OF URGENCY  
 
PART 1 – KEY INFORMATION 
 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
To notify Members of recent Executive Decision(s) taken in the circumstances set out in 
the Council’s Constitution in:- 
 
(a) Rule 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules (Special Urgency); and/or 
 
(b) Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Call-in and Urgency); 
and/or 
 
(c)       Rule 6(b) of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
In accordance with the requirements of Rule 16.2 of the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules and/or Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules and/or Rule 6(b) of 
the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules, this report notifies Members of recent 
Executive Decision(s) taken in the circumstances set out in Rule 15 of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules and/or Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
 
PART 2 – SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
BACKGROUND 
The “Special Urgency” procedure in Rule 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules 
provides that where a key decision cannot be reasonably deferred to allow the procedure 
in Rule 14 (General Exception) of those procedure rules to be followed, it may still be 
taken with the agreement of the Chairman of the relevant overview and scrutiny 
committee, or failing him/her, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Council. 
 
Rule 18(i) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules provides that the “call-in” 
procedure will not apply to a decision if the Chairman, or failing him/her the Vice-
Chairman, of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee agrees both that the decision is 
reasonable in all its circumstances and that any delay likely to be caused by the call-in 
process would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public’s interests. 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



DECISION(S) TAKEN AS A MATTER OF URGENCY 
(1) Acceptance of the allocation of £1.18m from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
 
In  December 2022, the Corporate Director (Economy & Place), in view of the urgency of 
the issue concerned, and in accordance with Rule 18(i) of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules, sought and subsequently obtained the Chairman of the Resources and 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s consent, that his decision relating to the 
acceptance of the Council’s allocation of money from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, be 
exempted from the call-in procedure.  

            
The Corporate Director’s decision was as follows:-  
 
“To accept the allocation of £1.18m plus resourcing allocation from the Government’s UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF), as applied for in July 2022.” 

           
It was felt that any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process would have seriously 
prejudiced the Council’s and the public’s interest for the following reason:- 
 
“The Government notified TDC Officers of the application’s success and gave a deadline 
of Friday 16th December 2022 to sign and return a MoU and associated documents to 
accept the allocation. A Cabinet report on the subject, including the projects proposed, is 
on the agenda for Cabinet’s meeting on the 16th December in order to gain approval to 
commence spend of the Year 1 allocation (which must be spent by 31 March 2023). 
 
An exemption from call-in is sought due to the overlapping deadline, which would 
otherwise mean Tendring District Council would not be able to receive the allocation 
through the UKSPF.” 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  
(1) Acceptance of the allocation of £1.18m from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
 
Letter from the Corporate Director (Economy and Place), to the Chairman of the 
Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Councillor Mark Stephenson). 
 
Reply dated 16 December 2022 from the Chairman of the Resources and Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee signifying his consent to allow the Corporate Director’s 
decision to be exempt from call-in. 
 
 
APPENDICES 
None 
 
 

Page 26



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

15 November 2022  

 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 

HELD ON TUESDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 2022 AT 7.30 PM 
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, 

CO15 1SE 
 
Present: Councillors Scott (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), Amos, Baker, 

Codling, Griffiths and Skeels 

Also Present: Councillors Clifton and Wiggins 

In Attendance: Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services and Elections) and 
Keith Durran (Committee Services Officer) 

 
 

8. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Barry, Morrison (with no 
substitutions) and M Stephenson (with Councillor Baker substituting).  
 
Councillor Scott (as the Committee’s Vice-Chairman) chaired the meeting in the 
absence of the Chairman (Councillor M Stephenson). 
 

9. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Monday 17 
October 2022 be approved as a correct record. 
 

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none on this occasion. 
 

11. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38  
 
There were none on this occasion. 
 

12. REPORT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND ELECTIONS - A.1 - WORK 
PROGRAMMING INCLUDING MONITORING OF PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS 
AND SUMMARY OF THE FORTHCOMING DECISIONS.  
 
The Committee had before it a report that provided them with an update on its approved 
Work Programme for 2022/23 (it included progress with enquiries set out in that Work 
Programme),feedback to the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous 
recommendations from the Committee in respects of enquiries previously undertaken 
and a list of forthcoming decisions for which notice had been given since publication of 
the agenda for the Committee’s last meeting. 
 
The Committee heard oral updates from the Chairmen of the following groups, set up by 
it: 
 
Councillor Scott in relation to the Beach Hut Task and Finish Group. 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 12



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

15 November 2022  

 

 

 

Councillor Baker in relation to the Planning Enforcement Task and Finish Group. 
 
Councillor Clifton in relation to the Cyber Security Task and Finish Group. 
 
A short statement was also read out by Councillor Scott in relation to the Customer 
Service Task and Finish Group, chaired by Councillor M Stephenson, in the absence of 
the Groups Chairman.  
 
The Committee heard an update on the Procurement and Contract Management 
enquiry. This enquiry was, as it stated in the report, being undertaken through informal 
meetings involving the whole Committee’s membership.  The first informal meeting for 
this enquiry was held on 17 October and the next meeting was now scheduled for 7 
December 2022.  Members of the Committee had been asked for their views on the 
issues covered at the meeting on 17 October.  However no views were submitted from 
them. There was a lot of written material for Councillors to read through and so it was 
understood that some of that reading would take place after 17 October.  As such, the 
view was expressed that if Committee Members could be encouraged again to submit 
comments etc. in response to the email request from officers on this matter. 
 
The issue of inflation in contract pricing for schemes approved for delivery by the 
Council, was something the Committee had already identified would be a matter it would 
specifically look at as part of its Committee’s budget scrutiny work that would take place 
on 11 January at the full day process.   
 
The Committee also heard that an update on progress with ambition towards 
achievement of Carbon Neutral by 2030 – The Off Agenda Briefing Paper – based on 
questions provided by the Committee’s designated Carbon Neutral Champion (Cllr 
Barry) had been requested and it was anticipated that this would be provided by the end 
of this month.  Once received it would be circulated to the whole Committee. The off 
agenda briefing paper would look at how the Climate Action Plan implementation was 
progressing.   
 

How are we measuring carbon reduction?  
What measures have  
a) actually been implemented and what impact have they had 
b)  are planned in next 2-3 yrs and what are anticipated savings 
c) what is planned 2025 – 2030 to continue commitment to achieve neutrality 
and what are obstacles and problems.? 

 
It was reported to Members that the reply from the Portfolio Holder for Environment to 
the recommendations from the Committee on 30 July 2022 on Waste, Recycling and 
Littering was set out in recommendation 10 on Page 22 of the Agenda, Council 
approved on 12 July 2022 that the development of proposals for the waste, recycling 
and street cleaning contract specification from 2026 be included in the work programme 
of enquiries for the Committee for 2022/23. 
 
On respect of the forthcoming decision item, “Proposed new TDC Road Closure Policy”, 
there had not been the required notice to consider it at this meeting. 
 
After a short discussion in relation to the Waste Item in the Recommendations 
Monitoring report it was moved by Councillor Skeels and seconded by Councillor Amos 

Page 28



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

15 November 2022  

 

 

 

and RESOLVED that the reply from the Portfolio Holder to the Committee’s 
recommendations on the matter, can usefully be added to the Waste Enquiry which has 
been timed to take place in the Spring 2023. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services and Elections confirmed that the sentiments of the 
Committee arising from the discussion of the proposed Road Closure Policy notice in 
the forthcoming decisions would be reported to officers and the relevant Portfolio 
Holders as follows: 
 

a) this policy should be aligned with the proposed Open Spaces that has previously 
been referenced to this Committee and; 

b) that it is vitally aware that consultation is undertaken prior to any adopted policy 
in this regard. 

 
 The meeting was declared closed at 8.17 pm  
  

 
 

Chairman 
 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 Community Leadership Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

22 November 2022  

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 

HELD ON TUESDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2022 AT 6.00 PM 
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM  - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, 

CO15 1SE 
 
Present: Councillors Chittock (Chairman), S Honeywood (Vice-Chairman), 

Clifton, Codling, Davidson, King and Miles 
In Attendance: Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services and Elections), Keith 

Durran (Committee Services Officer) and Matt Cattermole 
(Communications Assistant) 

 
 

13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Steady and Nash (no 
substitutions). Councillor Steady was able to participate in the meetings by way of a 
remote connection using MS teams. 
 

14. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Tuesday 
28 June 2022 be approved as a correct record. 
 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest by Councillors in relation to any item on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

16. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38  
 
On this occasion no Councillor had submitted notice of a question. 
 

17. CONFIRMATION OF THIS COMMITTEES TASK AND FINISH GROUPS FOR 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ENQUIRES IN THE REMAINDER OF 2022/23  
 
The Committee had a report that sought formal confirmation of the establishment of the 
Task and Finish Groups with the terms of reference, scope and membership identified.  
The terms of reference of two of the Task and Finish Groups had been determined by 
Council (Minute 26 of 12 July 2022 refers).  The membership of all four Task and Finish 
Groups were the subject of consultation and agreement by all Members of this 
Committee. This informed the decision of the Head of the Democratic Services and 
Elections on 7 November 2022 to appoint the initial membership of the four relevant 
Task and Finish groups. This decision identified that endorsement of that decision would 
be requested at this meeting of the Committee.  
 
In this consultation referred to above, further nominations were made for individual Task 
and Finish groups and those were identified at the meeting. The Committee agreed that 
the nominee names should be added to the Task and Finish Groups concerned. (The 
additional nominations are shown in the table below with “*” against their name). 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 31



 Community Leadership Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

22 November 2022  

 

Jaywick Sands Colchester 
Borders 

Children 
Education 

Cost of Living 

Cllr Codling* Cllr Chittock* Cllr S Honeywood* Cllr Chittock (Chr) 
Cllr Placey Cllr Skeels Cllr Miles Cllr Casey 
Cllr Winfield Cllr Barry Cllr Knowles Cllr Knowles 
 Cllr Steady* Cllr Winfield Cllr Fairley 
   Cllr Barry 
   Cllr Davidson* 
 
 
Where other volunteers had identified themselves, they would be thanked for 
volunteering. 
 
After a short discussion the Committee RESOLVED to approve the Membership details 
in the table above for Task and Finish groups identified and, consequently, authorised 
Task and Finish groups to commence the scrutiny enquires concerned as approved by 
Council. 
 
This approval also included the terms of reference/scope of the reference/scope of the 
relevant enquires being undertaken through the above mentioned Task and Finish 
Groups as set out in the report on this matter. 
 
 
  

 The meeting was declared closed at 6.15 pm  
  

 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 32



 Audit Committee 
 

15 December 2022  

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, 
HELD ON THURSDAY, 15TH DECEMBER, 2022 AT 10.30 AM 

IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM  - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, 
CO15 1SE 

 
Present: Councillors Coley (Chairman), Alexander (Vice-Chairman), Fairley 

and Steady 
In Attendance: Richard Barrett (Assistant Director (Finance and IT) & Section 151 

Officer), Craig Clawson (Internal Audit Manager), Karen Townshend 
(Executive Projects Manager (Governance)) and Keith Durran 
(Committee Services Officer) 

Also in 
Attendance via 
MS Teams: 

Aphrodite Lefevre and Tharshiha Vosper of BDO LLP (the Council’s 
External Auditors) 

 
 

15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Miles (with no substitution). 
 

16. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on Thursday 29 September 2022 
were approved as a correct record and were signed by the Chairman. 
 

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion. 
 

18. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38  
 
No Questions on Notice pursuant to the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 38 had 
been submitted on this occasion. 
 

19. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, FINANCE & IT - A.1 - UPDATE ON OUR 
EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 
The Committee had before it a progress report from the Council’s External Auditors, 
which set out the work that they had completed on the areas of significant risk and the 
results of that work. The results were still going through a quality and review process but 
what was very positive to report was that the Auditors had not identified any errors or 
significant concerns or any control weaknesses that they needed to bring to the 
Council’s attention. 
 
Aphrodite Lefevre and Tharshiha Vosper of BDO LLP (the Council’s External Auditors) 
talked the Committee through their report. 
 
Members heard that the report included:  
 
“an overview of our work and it confirms a number of items on the consistency of the 
narrative report which includes the governance statement with the financial statements 
and we haven't identified any significant accounting policy changes”,  

Public Document Pack

Page 33



 Audit Committee 
 

15 December 2022  

 

and that, 
 
“we have confirmed that to date we haven't identified any confirmed misstatements that 
we need to bring to your attention”  
 
Regarding risk the Committee heard that: 
 
“our risk assessment is an ongoing process throughout the audit however just to confirm 
we haven't raised any new significant risks other than the ones that we've reported 
within our planning report” 
 
The Committee also heard that: 
 
“Our work on investment properties is complete however some of the other work around 
land and buildings and the work is still in progress namely it's around the verification”. 
 
In relation to fraud, it was reported that: 
 
“we haven't identified any instances of suspected fraud or confirmed fraud, the same 
with laws and regulations we haven't identified any instances of non-compliance with 
laws and regulations and then in respect to related parties from the work that we've 
undertaken whilst we've raised one internal control weakness we haven't identified any 
significant issues”, 
 
and also in relation to the pension liability it was said that: 
 
“in summary we didn't find any issues when we assess the competency of the 
management expert and we also agreed all of the disclosures included within the 
financial statements to the report that was provided by the actuary. The assumptions on 
which the Council has based its disclosure are consistent with those used by the actuary 
and then we have also checked what assumptions the Council actually has used and 
made sure that they are in line with other actuaries and other kind of market data and 
confirmed that these are all within acceptable ranges and are appropriate”. 
 
The Committee questioned an issue on page 16 of the report regarding “undisclosed 
directorships” and asked for more context on both. 
 
The Auditors responded that in respect of the undisclosed directorships that it this was 
still in the very early stages of investigation and that they still had to check if those 
directorships belonged to Members or just other people with the same name. 
 
The Committee pointed out that that these were “quite explosive comments” to include 
within a report without any confirmation. 
 
The Auditors confirmed that once they had finished their investigations, they would edit 
the report appropriately. 
 
It was reported to Members that the Auditors had now increased their staffing on this 
particular Audit in order to complete it in January 2023. 
  

 The meeting was declared closed at 10.58 am  
  

Page 34



 Audit Committee 
 

15 December 2022  

 

 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 

 

      
COUNCIL 

 
24 JANUARY 2023   

 
JOINT REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND THE CABINET 

 
 
A.4 ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION 
  
PART 1 – KEY INFORMATION 
 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Article 15.02 (a) and (c) of the Council’s Constitution, to 
approve the recommended changes to the Constitution put forward by the Monitoring Officer 
and the Cabinet following a review undertaken by the Corporate Finance and Governance 
Portfolio Holder through a Working Party constituted for this purpose.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On 16 December 2022, Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Finance and Governance 
Portfolio Holder, which requested it to approve the recommended changes to the Constitution 
for referral onto Full Council following a review undertaken by the Portfolio Holder through a 
Working Party constituted for this purpose.  
 
The main proposals cover a number of miscellaneous amendments to the Council Procedure 
Rules, Articles of the Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, the Property 
Dealing Procedure, the Procurement Procedure Rules, the Financial Procedure Rules and 
Delegated Powers in order to ensure the Council’s Constitution remains effective, efficient and 
consistent at an operational level. 
 
A summary of the proposed changes compared to the existing Parts of the Constitution is 
provided under each heading in the background section of this report and in each case, the 
content has been revised to provide greater clarity, ensure effectiveness and efficient up to 
date working practices for both Members and Officers and also to ensure it is in accordance 
with legislation, where necessary. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That subject to Members’ consideration of the recommendations of the Cabinet arising 
from its meeting on 16 December 2022, Council resolves that: 
 
(a) the Council’s Constitution be amended to reflect the proposed changes as set out in 

Appendices A to M attached hereto this report and that those changes come into 
immediate effect; 

 
(b) Council notes and endorses the Monitoring Officer’s firmly reiterated advice that 

Members using the “Approval of the previous Minutes” item on agendas as a way of 
raising matters from that previous meeting, whether loosely connected or not, is not 
acceptable as such actions did not comply with the need to give the requisite public 

Page 37

Agenda Item 14



 

 

notice of matters that would be discussed at a committee etc. meeting i.e. it 
breached local government law;  

 
(c) Council further notes and endorses the proposed change to Article 7.08 (Cabinet 

Procedure Rule 1.5), as set out in Appendix N; and 
 

(d) Council additionally notes that:-  
 

(i)   the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, Lawyers in Local Government and the 
Association of Democratic Services Officers are proposing to issue guidance in 
the area of “call-ins” of Executive decisions and so it is likely that this Council 
will need to look further at this in 2023 (and particularly its implications for 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 17 and 18) once that guidance is issued; 

 
(ii)  the practice guides prepared by the Head of Democratic Services & Elections to 

assist members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees and support officers to 
develop appropriate approaches to individual enquiries would be reviewed in 
Autumn 2023;  

 
(iii) the Council’s Procurement Strategy and the Procurement Procedure Rules will 

need to be reviewed once the Procurement Bill (HL) currently at Report Stage in 
the House of Lords is enacted and come into effect; and 

 
(iv) the review of the Council’s procedure for Planning Committee Site Visits as set 

out in the Members’ Planning Code and Protocol (in Part 6 of the Constitution) is 
still ongoing although at this current time no constitutional changes have been 
highlighted as being necessary. 

 
 
REASON(S) FOR THE RECOMMENDATION(S) 
Having considered the outcome of the annual review of the Constitution and the Cabinet’s 
recommendations arising therefrom, and in order to enable those recommendations to be 
approved and adopted. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
(1) Not to approve some or all of the Cabinet’s recommendations; 

 
(2) To amend or substitute some or all of the Cabinet’s recommendations. 

 
 
PART 2 – IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
 
DELIVERING PRIORITIES 
Agreeing the proposed changes will ensure that the Council demonstrates good governance 
and operates efficiently in pursuit of its priorities. 
 
OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
The outcome of the annual review of the Constitution by the Review of the Constitution 
Portfolio Holder Working Party is reported elsewhere in this report. During the review 
members of the working Party consulted, as appropriate, the members of their respective 
political groups.  
 

Page 38



 

 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS (including legislation & constitutional powers) 
 
In accordance with Section 37 of the Local Government Act 2000, as amended, a local 
authority operating executive arrangements must prepare and keep up to date a document 
which contains a copy of the authority's standing orders for the time being and such other 
information as the authority considers appropriate. 
 
Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) Regulations 2000, as 
amended, sets out functions which must not be the responsibility of the Executive and 
therefore rests with Council or its committees.  The power to make amendments to the 
standing orders and the Constitution rests with full Council.   
 
ities i n the Uni ted King dom are requir ed to keep their accounts  in accordance with ‘pr oper practices’. This i ncludes compli ance wi th the ter ms of the Code of Prac tice on Local  Authority Accounting i n the U nited King dom pr epared by the C IPF A/LASAAC Local  Authority Accounting Code Board (CIPFA/LASAAC).   

Article 15 of the Council’s Constitution provides that changes to the Constitution are approved 
by Full Council after receiving a recommendation from Cabinet following consideration of a 
proposal from the Monitoring Officer and a recommendation via the Portfolio Holder with 
responsibility for corporate governance. Article 15 also provides authority to the Monitoring 
Officer to make minor changes to the Constitution arising from changes to the organisational 
structure of the Council. 
 
Article 12 of the Constitution provides that the Council’s Monitoring Officer will ensure the 
Constitution is up to date.  This function takes into account legislative requirements and best 
practice.   
 
Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 states: 
 
(1) Every local authority shall ensure that it has a committee (the “crime and disorder 

committee”) with power– 
 

(a)  to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions; 

(b)  to make reports or recommendations to the local authority with respect to the 
discharge of those functions. 

 … 
 
(3)  A local authority must– 
 

(a)  ensure that its crime and disorder committee has power (whether by virtue of [section 
9F(2) or 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2000]2 or regulations made under [section 
9JA(2) or 32(3)]3 of that Act or otherwise) to make a report or recommendations to the 
local authority with respect to any matter which is a local crime and disorder matter in 
relation to a member of the authority, and 

(b)  make arrangements which enable any member of the authority who is not a member 
of the crime and disorder committee to refer any local crime and disorder matter to the 
committee. 

 
Regulation 4 of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009/942 states: 
 
“A crime and disorder committee shall meet to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other 
action taken, in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and 
disorder functions as the committee considers appropriate but no less than once in every 
twelve month period.” 
 
 

Page 39

https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I76B270B126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I76B270B126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I5FADB9A1E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I7A35DD00D59011ECB55BA782F2778208/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=dd6b22d8c57b46259f2501e6e2bc4819&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&comp=wluk&navId=0D588CF234F57E727549B347DD55A2E7#co_footnote_I7A35DD00D59011ECB55BA782F2778208_2
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I76BBBF8126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I76BBBF8126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I21800BC0E44F11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/Document/I7A35DD00D59011ECB55BA782F2778208/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=dd6b22d8c57b46259f2501e6e2bc4819&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&comp=wluk&navId=0D588CF234F57E727549B347DD55A2E7#co_footnote_I7A35DD00D59011ECB55BA782F2778208_3


 

 

FINANCE AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Risk 
 
Providing clarity through clearer and consistent procedure rules contained within the 
Constitution prevents confusion and different interpretation and enhances the Council’s overall 
governance arrangements. 
 
X The Section 151 Officer confirms they have been made aware of the above and any 

additional comments from them are below:  

The Section 151 Officer provided feedback on some of the proposed amendments through the 
review. 

USE OF RESOURCES AND VALUE FOR MONEY 
The following are submitted in respect of the indicated use of resources and value for money 
indicators: 
A)    Financial sustainability: how the body 
plans and manages its resources to ensure 
it can continue to deliver its services; 

N/A 

B)    Governance: how the body ensures 
that it makes informed decisions and 
properly manages its risks, including; and  

N/A 

C)    Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness: how the body uses 
information about its costs and   
performance to improve the way it manages 
and delivers its services. 
  

N/A 

MILESTONES AND DELIVERY 
Annual review of the Constitution carried out by the Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder 
Working Party – October and November 2022. 
 
Submission of Corporate Finance & Governance Portfolio Holder’s recommendations to 
formal Cabinet meeting – 16 December 2022. 
 
Submission of Cabinet’s recommendations to Full Council for approval and adoption – 24 
January 2023. 
 
Implementation of approved changes to the Constitution – 25 January 2023. 
 
ASSOCIATED RISKS AND MITIGATION 
Not implementing the amendments to the Constitution will negatively impact the Council’s 
governance arrangements. 
 
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
The purpose of the Constitution is to: 
 

1 Provide key elements of the Council’s overall governance arrangements; 
2 Enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively; 
3 Create an effective means of holding decision-makers to public account; 
4 Enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community, working in partnership 

with the local community, businesses and other organisations for the long term well-being 
of the District; 

5 Support the involvement of the local community in the process of local authority decision 

Page 40



 

 

making; 
6 Ensure that no one will review, or scrutinise, a decision in which they were directly 

involved; 
7 Help Councillors represent their residents more effectively; 
8 Ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly identifiable to local people 

and that they explain the reasons for their decisions; and 
9 Provide the framework and structure in which cost effective quality services to the 

community are delivered. 
 
SOCIAL VALUE CONSIDERATIONS  
None 
 
IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S AIM TO BE NET ZERO BY 2030  
The Council’s previous decision in March 2022 to continue with the encouragement of 
Members to opt out of the default position of receiving printed copies of the summons of a 
meeting (with agendas and reports) before reverting to solely receiving summons via 
electronic notifications from May 2023 is consistent with the Council’s policy of its operations 
becoming carbon neutral by 2030. 
 
OTHER RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS OR IMPLICATIONS 
Consideration has been given to the implications of the proposed decision in respect of 
the following and any significant issues are set out below. 
 
Crime and Disorder None 
Health Inequalities None 

 
Area or Ward affected None directly. 
 
PART 3 – SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party (CRWP)’s membership included 
the Portfolio Holder and Councillors Allen, Barry, Coley, I J Henderson, M E Stephenson, 
Talbot, Wiggins and Winfield (with Councillors Baker, Fowler and Placey as designated 
substitutes). The CRWP met on 24 October, 14 November and 21 November 2022, and 
reviewed various areas of the Constitution and submitted, via the Portfolio Holder for Corporate 
Finance & Governance, various proposals.  
 
Cabinet, at its meeting held on 16 December 2022 (Minute 83 refers), considered those 
proposals and following that meeting the following changes are recommended (note that 
references to Part numbers relate to the Constitution prior to any amendments now submitted): 

 
(a) Council Procedure Rules – Section 1 (Full Council)(Part 4.1 to 4.24): 
 

Rule 8 – Quorum 
 
In order to provide clarity as to the actions the Chairman should take if, at the time that it 
is scheduled to start, the meeting is found to be inquorate. Currently, Rule 8 only sets out 
the action to be taken in the event that the meeting becomes inquorate after it has 
started. 
 
Rule 11 – Questions by Members 
 

Page 41



 

 

Considered whether the text of a Question submitted pursuant to Rule 11 should be 
printed within the Council Book given that the question usually also contained a 
statement, and given that the Council had had a recent occurrence when it had been 
alleged that that accompanying statement had not been factually correct. 
 
Rule to be amended so that only the text of the Question will be included within the full 
Council Agenda. None of the accompanying preamble or explanatory statements (if any) 
submitted by the Questioner will be so included (Rule 11.2). The minutes of the Council 
meeting will record the text of the question plus any preamble or supporting statement (if 
any) together with the response given thereto and that, if appropriate, a question of 
clarification and a response was asked and given, without detailing the content (Rule 
11.7). 
 
Rule 11.8 amended to clarify that the time limit of two minutes for asking the question 
includes the making of any preamble or statements in support of that question. 
 
Rule 11.9 amended to clarify that once the Council meeting has commenced a Member 
may withdraw their question with the consent of the Chairman. 
 
Rule 16.5 (Amendments to Motions)  
 
Minor amendment of clarification. 
 
Rule 19 (Voting) 
 
Amended to include, inter alia, a clarifying paragraph (new Rule 19.1) to make it clear that 
a Member should not vote if they have not been present for the whole of the 
consideration of that item. 
 
Consequential “knock-on” amendments to Rule 25.1 (Suspension of Council Procedure 
Rules) and Rule 32 (Application to Committees and Sub-Committees). 
 
Rule 20 (Minutes) 
 
The CRWP considered at the Monitoring Officer’s request the content of the Minutes of 
Council, Committee or Sub-Committee meetings. The Monitoring Officer felt that this was 
especially relevant for the Planning Committee, particularly as the Courts, within their 
judgements had looked at the content of the minutes, as a record of the discussion within 
the meeting in order to give an indication of what had been taken into account before the 
decision had been made, whilst accepting that not everything could be included i.e. the 
Minutes could not be a verbatim record of the proceedings.  
 
The Monitoring Officer also raised the issue of the “Approval of the previous Minutes” 
item on agendas being used as a way of raising matters from that previous meeting, 
whether loosely connected or not. The Monitoring Officer had reiterated firmly to 
Members that this did not comply with the need to give the requisite public notice of 
matters that would be discussed at a committee etc. meeting i.e. it breached local 
government law. 
 
Rule 20.2 (Form of Minutes) to be amended to clarify that the Minutes of committee and 
sub-committee meetings will include only summarised details of the issues covered in the 
debate when that body is considering applications, hearings and appeals or receiving 
evidence. In addition, when a Member has submitted their apologies for absence, and if 
so requested by the Member concerned, the Minutes will record the reason for their 

Page 42



 

 

absence. 
 
Rule 32 (Application to Committees and Sub-Committees) 
 
To add, inter alia, a reference to Rule 15 (Motions or Questions affecting persons 
employed by the Council) within Rule 32 in order to correct an omission given that the 
text of Rule 15 specifically refers to meetings of a committee or sub-committee. A 
consequential amendment be made to Rule 15 itself in order to remove some superfluous 
words. 
 

The proposed changes to the Council Procedure Rules (Section 1) are shown in RED in 
Appendix A. 

 
(b) Council Procedure Rules – Section 2 (Committees)(Part 4.25 to 4.31): 

 
Rule 34 (Appointment of Substitute Members of Committees, Sub-Committees and 
Working Parties) 
 
The Working Party considered at the Monitoring Officer’s request whether a substitution 
should apply for the whole meeting of a committee or sub-committee or whether the 
Member being substituted should have the option of appointing a substitute for a 
particular Agenda item or items only. 
 
Rule 34.2 (Eligibility and Effect) to be amended to make it clear that a substitution applies 
for the whole meeting of a committee or sub-committee. 
 
Rule 36 – Attendance at Meetings 
 
To include a formal right for the Portfolio Holder with the responsibility for Planning to 
attend and to speak, on behalf of the Cabinet, on strategic planning issues that are to be 
considered by the Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee. 
 
Amendments to clarify, inter alia, the rights of the Mover of the Motion under Rule 12 
should their motion be referred by full Council to a Committee. 
 

The proposed changes to Section 2 of the Council Procedure Rules are shown in RED in 
Appendix B. 
 
(c) Article 4.01(a) – Policy Framework – Review of Local Choice inclusions 

The Working Party noted that the Monitoring Officer (MO) will be exercising her delegated 
powers (under Article 15.02(b) – Changes to the Constitution) to delete the Sustainable 
Community Strategy from the Policy Framework as the Council is no longer required by 
statute to produce one (Deregulation Act 2015 – Section 100(1)). 
 
The Working Party also reviewed the list of “local choice” plans and strategies included 
within the Policy Framework and decided to recommend that the reference to the IT 
Strategy and Information Governance should be deleted and a reference to the Social 
Value Policy should be added. 
 

Proposed changes to Article 4 are shown in RED in Appendix C. 
 
(d) Article 6 – Overview and Scrutiny Function (Part 2): (Part 2.13 to 2.15) 
 

Page 43



 

 

Article 6.02(i) (Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny Committee: Terms of 
Reference)  
 
In order to make it clear and obvious that the Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee is the Council’s designated “crime and disorder committee” for the purposes 
of fulfilling the requirements of the Police and Justice Act 2006. 
 

The proposed changes to Article 6 are shown in RED in Appendix D. 
 

(e) Article 7.08 (Cabinet Procedure Rule 1.5) 
 
In order to make clear that where a Member has submitted a Motion to Council under the 
proposed new Council Procedure Rule 12.2 and that motion has been referred to the 
Cabinet under new Rule 12.6 or new Rule 12.7, that Member will have the right to attend 
the relevant meeting of the Cabinet and present their Motion, as appropriately permitted 
under new Rule 12.10. 
 

Proposed changes to Article 7 are shown in RED in Appendix E. 
 

(f) Article 13.03 (Key Decisions) 
 

In order to incorporate a regular review mechanism for the definition of a Key Decision 
and to clarify the circumstances in which an executive decision would not necessarily 
have to be treated as a Key Decision. 
 

Proposed changes to Article 13.03 are shown in RED in Appendix F. 
 

(g) Licensing and Registration Committee: Terms of Reference and Delegated Powers 

The Working Party considered a recommendation made by the Licensing and 
Registration Committee, at its meeting held on 31 August 2022, that the delegated 
powers under that Committee be amended insofar as, in future, any requests to amend 
the Hackney Carriage Fare Scale will be determined by Officers, in consultation with the 
Chairman of that Committee and that the full Committee will become involved only in the 
event that public representations are received in response to the statutory Public Notice. 
 
The Working Party also considered and endorsed the outcome of the wider review of the 
terms of reference and delegated powers of the Licensing and Registration Committee 
and its Sub-Committees carried out by the Head of Democratic Services & Elections and 
the Licensing Manager which put forward a number of other changes. 
 

The proposed changes to the terms of reference and delegated powers of the Licensing and 
Registration Committee are shown in RED in Appendix G. 

 
(h) Planning Committee: Terms of Reference and Delegated Powers 

The Working Party reviewed the terms of reference and delegated powers of the Planning 
Committee and put forward a change in relation to increasing the amount of time 
available to a Tendring District Councillor to make a request in accordance with the 
Members’ Referral Scheme that a planning application should be referred to the Planning 
Committee. 
 

The proposed change to the terms of reference and delegated powers of the Planning 
Committee is shown in RED in Appendix H. 

Page 44



 

 

 
(i) Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 5) 
 

Rule 8 (Agenda Items)  
 
To include a provision to enable any member of the authority who is not a member of the 
crime and disorder committee to refer any local crime and disorder matter to that 
committee (i.e. the Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny Committee). 
 
Rule 10 (Procedure at Committee Meetings)  
 
In order to clarify and confirm that Council Procedure Rule 38 (Questions on Notice at 
Committees and Sub-Committees) does apply to meetings of the Council’s overview and 
scrutiny committees. 
 
Other proposed changes to Rules 1, 4, 6, 7, 11, 12, 13, 15 and 16 reflect the outcome of 
the review of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules undertaken by the Council’s 
lead officer for the overview and scrutiny function, Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic 
Services & Elections) with a view to amending them, where felt appropriate, in order to 
reflect the recent operational experience of conducting task and finish reviews through 
working groups and the holding of informal meetings of the overview and scrutiny 
committees. 
 
The Working Party also noted that:- 
 
(1) the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, Lawyers in Local Government and the 

Association of Democratic Services Officers are proposing guidance in the area of 
“call-ins” of Executive decisions and so it was likely that the Council would need to 
look further at this in 2023 (and particularly its implications for Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules 17 and 18) once the guidance was issued; and 
 

(2) the practice guides prepared by the Head of Democratic Services & Elections to assist 
members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees and support officers to develop 
appropriate approaches to individual enquiries would be reviewed in Autumn 2023. 

 
The proposed changes to the Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules are shown in RED in 
Appendix I. 

 
(j) Financial Procedure Rules (Part 5): (Part 5.32 to 5.62) 
 

In order to clarify that an Officer Decision will be required in relation to virements in 
certain circumstances. 
 

The proposed change to the Financial Procedure Rules is shown in RED in Appendix J. 
 
(k) Property Dealing Procedure (Part 5): (Part 5.63 to 5.65) 

 
In order to, inter alia, amend the Property Dealing Procedure (including the table in 
Appendix A (Levels of Decision Making)) having reviewed the levels of decision making 
for acquisitions and/or disposal of property as set out in the Property Dealing Procedure 
(PDP).  
 

Proposed changes to the Property Dealing Procedure are shown in RED in Appendix K. 
 

Page 45



 

 

(l) Procurement Procedure Rules (Part 5): (Part 5.66 to 5.80) 
 

In order to, inter alia, update Officer responsibilities and references to EU rules following 
a review of the Rules by the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) and the Assistant Director 
(Governance). 
 
The Working Party also noted that the Council’s Procurement Strategy and the 
Procurement Procedure Rules would need to be reviewed once the Procurement Bill (HL) 
currently at Report Stage in the House of Lords was enacted and came into effect. 
 

The proposed changes to the Procurement Procedure Rules are shown in RED in Appendix 
L. 
 
(m) Scheme for Dealing with Petitions (Part 5): (Part 5.86 to 5.91) 
 

To make a minor amendment to Section 1 (How to Submit a Petition to the Council) to 
reflect the fact the E-petitions are required to be submitted to the Council via the petitions 
function on the Council’s website and not via email. The opportunity has also been taken 
to clarify the formal status, or lack of it, of e-petitions throughout the process, together 
with other minor amendments arising from recent operational experience. 
 

The proposed changes to the Scheme for Dealing with Petitions are shown in RED in 
Appendix M. 
 
(n) Members’ Referral Scheme for Planning Applications (Part 6): (Part 6.54 to 6.56) 

 
To make a change in relation to increasing the amount of time available to a Tendring 
District Councillor to make a request in accordance with the Members’ Referral Scheme 
that a planning application should be referred to the Planning Committee and to make it 
clear that reasons for making such a request should be included. 
 

The proposed changes to the Members’ Referral Scheme for Planning Applications are shown 
in RED in Appendix N. 
 
OTHER MATTERS CONSIDERED BY THE CRWP AND REPORTED TO CABINET AND 
NOTED: 
 
(o) Planning Committee: Pooling of Substitute Members 

At the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 6 April 2022 (Minute 32 refers) and:- 

“In response to a request made by Councillor Alexander, the Monitoring Officer (Lisa 

Hastings) undertook to refer the issue of whether a member of the Planning Committee 

should be enabled to appoint their substitute from a different political group to their own to 

the Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party for its consideration.” 

The CRWP considered that issue at its meeting held on 14 November 2022 (Note 14 
refers). The CRWP recalled that the exact same request had been made by Councillor 
Alexander at the Standards Committee meeting held on 5 February 2020 (Minute 25 
refers) which had been referred to the CRWP and considered by it at its meeting held on 
25 February 2020 (Note 25 refers). The CRWP had decided, inter alia, on that occasion 
not to put forward as a recommendation the use of ‘pooled substitutes’ at Planning 
Committee. 

Page 46



 

 

 
At its meeting held on 14 November 2022 the CRWP reiterated its previous decision i.e. 
not to put forward as a recommendation the use of ‘pooled substitutes’ at Planning 
Committee. 
 

(p) Review of the Procedure for Committee Site Visits 

Following a very difficult situation with members of the public at a site visit ahead of the 

meeting of the Planning Committee held on Thursday 22 September 2022 and at the 

request of the Monitoring Officer,  the CRWP, at its meeting held on 14 November 2022, 

had an initial discussion on the procedure for committee site visits as set out in section 7 

of the Members’ Planning Code and Protocol (February 2021).  

At that particular site visit the local Parish Council had encouraged public attendance to 

lobby the Planning Committee members. 

During that initial discussion by the CRWP the following matters had been raised:- 

(1) What was the purpose of a site visit? 

(2) Whether every planning application going before the Planning Committee did, in fact, 

merit a pre-meeting Member site visit; 

(3) What was the definition of “lobbying”? 

(4) Whether the attendance of parish councils and/or the public at Planning Committee 

site visits should be allowed to continue; 

(5) The role of the Chairman in leading the Planning Committee’s site visits and whether 

such site visits should instead be led by a senior Planning Officer; and 

(6) Whether the Officer(s) in attendance should keep a record of the interaction between 

the Committee members and the public etc. at the site visits. 

The CRWP subsequently, at its meeting held on 21 November 2022, was informed that a 

survey had been emailed to all Members of the Council to ascertain their views on this 

matter with a deadline for responses of 25 November 2022. In addition, Officers 

discussed the matter informally with members of the Planning Committee on 24 

November 2022. It is intended that the results of the survey will be reported to the All 

Member Briefing early in 2023. Any changes that are felt to be necessary in relation to the 

Site Visits Procedure and the wider Constitution will be considered, as appropriate, by the 

Planning Committee and the Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party 

and thence, via Cabinet, by the Full Council. 

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12 (MOTIONS ON NOTICE) AND OTHER 

CONSEQUENTIAL CHANGES 

In accordance with the decision of Full Council taken at its meeting held on 29 March 2022 
(Minute 150 referred), the CRWP discussed the outcome of the fundamental review by Officers 
of the way in which Motions on Notice submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 
(CPR) 12 were dealt with procedurally at meetings of the Full Council. The CRWP expressed 
their compliments to the drafting of a new procedure which was welcomed as being clearer 

Page 47



 

 

and worked on the principle of a motion being debated at the Full Council meeting to which it 
was put, unless there were reasons not to, following Officers’ advice.  
 
The CRWP, via the Portfolio Holder, proposed to Cabinet that the current Rule 12 be deleted 
and replaced in its entirety by a new proposed Rule 12, with a consequential amendment to 
Rule 14. 
 
Cabinet, at its meeting held on 16 December 2023, decided to defer the proposed changes to 
Council Procedure Rules 12 and 14 pending their further consideration at an All Members’ 
workshop and thence a further re-consideration at another meeting of the Review of the 
Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party. 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT DECISIONS  
 
Full Council, at its meeting held on 29 March 2022 (Minute 150 refers), decided, inter alia, that: 
 
“the Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party be requested to carry out a 
fundamental review during 2022 of the way in which Motions to Council, submitted in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12, are dealt with procedurally and that the results of 
that review be submitted to Full Council, via the Cabinet, in due course.” 
 
The Cabinet’s decision at its meeting held on 16 December 2022 (Minute 83 refers) was as 
follows:- 
 
“RESOLVED:- 
 
1. That Cabinet RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL that: 

 
(a) the Council’s Constitution be amended to reflect the proposed changes, as set out in 

Appendices A to D and F to N attached hereto this report, with the exception of the 
proposed changes to Council Procedure Rules 12 and 14… which are deferred at this 
time; 

 
(b) Council notes and endorses the Monitoring Officer’s firmly reiterated advice that 

Members using the “Approval of the previous Minutes” item on agendas as a way of 
raising matters from that previous meeting, whether loosely connected or not, is not 
acceptable as such actions did not comply with the need to give the requisite public 
notice of matters that would be discussed at a committee etc. meeting i.e. it breached 
local government law;  

 
(c) Council further notes and endorses the proposed change to Article 7.08 (Cabinet 

Procedure Rule 1.5); and 
 
(d) Council additionally notes that:-  

 
(i) the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, Lawyers in Local Government and the 

Association of Democratic Services Officers are proposing to issue guidance in the 
area of “call-ins” of Executive decisions and so it is likely that this Council will need to 
look further at this in 2023 (and particularly its implications for Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules 17 and 18) once that guidance is issued; 

 
(ii) the practice guides prepared by the Head of Democratic Services & Elections to 

assist members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees and support officers to 
develop appropriate approaches to individual enquiries would be reviewed in Autumn 

Page 48



 

 

2023;  
 
(iii) the Council’s Procurement Strategy and the Procurement Procedure Rules will need 

to be reviewed once the Procurement Bill (HL) currently at Report Stage in the House 
of Lords is enacted and come into effect; and 

 
(iv) the review of the Council’s procedure for Planning Committee Site Visits as set out 

in the Members’ Planning Code and Protocol (in Part 6 of the Constitution) is still 
ongoing although at this current time no constitutional changes have been highlighted 
as being necessary.”  

 
For Full Council’s information only the Cabinet further RESOLVED –  
 
(2) That Cabinet resolves that Cabinet Procedure Rule 1.5 be amended to reflect the 

proposed change…” 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS AND PUBLISHED REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 
Notes of the meetings of the Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party held on 
24 October, 14 November and 21 November 2022. 
 
Report of the Corporate Finance and Governance Portfolio Holder which was submitted to the 
meeting of the Cabinet held on 16 December 2022. 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 16 December 2022. 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
A.4 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
APPENDIX B 
 

Part 4 
 
Part 4  

Amended Council Procedure Rules – Section One 
 
Amended Council Procedure Rules – Section Two 

APPENDIX C Part 2 Articles of the Constitution – Article 4 (Policy 
Framework) 

APPENDIX D Part 2 Articles of the Constitution – Article 6 (Overview & 
Scrutiny Function) 

APPENDIX E Part 2 Articles of the Constitution – Article 13 (Decision 
Making) 

APPENDIX F Part 3 Delegated Powers (Licensing and Registration 
Committee) 

APPENDIX G Part 3 Delegated Powers (Planning Committee) 
APPENDIX H Part 5 Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules - 

Amendments 
APPENDIX I Part 5 Financial Procedure Rules - Amendment 
APPENDIX J Part 5 Property Dealing Procedure – Amendments 
APPENDIX K Part 5 Procurement Procedure Rules – Amendments 
APPENDIX L Part 5 Scheme for Dealing with Petitions 
APPENDIX M Part 6  Members’ Referral Scheme for Planning Applications 
APPENDIX N Part 2 Articles of the Constitution – Article 7 (Executive) 

 
 

Page 49



 

 

REPORT CONTACT OFFICER(S) 
Names 
 

(1) Ian Ford 
(2) Lisa Hastings 

 
Job Titles (1) Committee Services Manager 

(2) Monitoring Officer 
 

Email/Telephone 
 

iford@tendringdc.gov.uk 
(01255) 686 584 
 
lhastings@tendringdc,gov.uk 
(01255) 686 561 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 50

mailto:iford@tendringdc.gov.uk
mailto:lhastings@tendringdc,gov.uk


 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

A.4 APPENDIX A 

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 

SECTION 1 – COUNCIL MEETINGS 

1. ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 

1.1 Timing and Business 

In a year when there is an ordinary election of councillors, the annual meeting will take place on 

the third Tuesday after the elections.  In any other year, the annual meeting will take place in 

April or May.  No business except that identified below in this Rule and Rule 1.2 will be included 

on the Agenda of the Annual Council meeting and all other Council Procedure Rules shall be 

construed accordingly. 

The annual meeting will: 

(i) Receive a report from the Returning Officer on the return of Members elected (if it is 

 the annual meeting following the District Council Elections); 

(ii) Receive apologies for absence; 

(iii) Elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council are not 

present; 

(iv) Receive any announcements from the retiring Chairman of the Council; 

(v) Elect the Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year; 

(vi) Elect the Vice-Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year; 

(vii) Receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive; 

(viii) Receive notification of memberships of political groups and the names of the Group 

Leaders and their Deputies (if it is the annual meeting immediately following the District 

Council Elections); 

(ix) Elect the Leader of the Council (if it is the annual meeting immediately following the 

District Council Elections); 

 (x) Selection of Councillors on Committees etc in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 

1.2; 

(xi) Reaffirm the Council’s Constitution; 

(xii) Approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council and Committees for the year; 

Page 51



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

(xiii) Appoint up to four Members, with each Member being a Member Authority 

Representative to serve on/at the General Assembly of the Local Government 

Association.  Two of the Members appointed will always be the Leader and Deputy 

Leader of the Council.  Up to two further names can be put forward to Council by the 

Leader of the Council, following consultation with Group Leaders; and 

(xiv) Consider any other business set out in the notice convening the meeting. 

1.2 Selection of Councillors on Committees 

 At the annual meeting, the Council will: 

(i) Appoint the Committees and Sub-Committees it considers appropriate for the municipal 

year; 

(ii) Decide the size and the terms of reference and delegated powers for any new 

Committees and Sub-Committees; 

(iii) Decide the allocation of seats for all Committees and Sub-Committees to political groups 

in accordance with the political balance rules; and 

(iv) Appoint Members to each Committee and Sub-Committee and the Chairman and Vice-

Chairman of each Committee and Sub-Committee as appropriate. 

2. BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX SETTING 

At the relevant ordinary meeting of the Council, when the Council’s Budget and Council Tax is 

approved and set, no business except that identified below will be included on the Agenda of 

the Budget and Council Tax Setting Meeting and all other Council Procedure Rules shall be 

construed accordingly.  The Budget and Council Tax Setting Meeting shall: 

(i) Receive apologies for absence; 

(ii) Elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council are not 

present; 

(iii) Deal with any business required by Statute to be dealt with before any other business; 

(iv) Approve the minutes of the last meeting; 

(v) Receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive and any 

Statements from the Leader of the Council and/or members of the Cabinet;(vi)

 Approve and set the Council’s Budget and Council Tax; 

 (vii) Deal with any business remaining from the last Council meeting; and 

(viii) Consider any Urgent Matters for Debate 

Page 52



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

Matters which are not on the agenda and which a Member considers should be reported urgently 

to the Council may, with the consent of, and in a form approved by, the Chairman, be brought 

before the meeting by way of a short written statement which shall be read by the Chief 

Executive, Section 151 Officer or the Monitoring Officer, as part of his or her reports and 

communications.  The Member concerned may, by leave of the Chairman, speak on the 

statement and move a motion unless advised otherwise by the Chief Executive, Section 151 

Officer or Monitoring Officer. 

Any amendment proposed to be made to the Cabinet’s budget proposals must have been 

submitted to the Council’s Section 151 Officer at least two working days before the Budget Full 

Council meeting(s) to enable them to consider the implications for the budget. The text and form 

of any and all such amendments must be emailed to the Committee Services Manager by no 

later than 5.00 p.m. on the day of the Budget Full Council meeting in order that copies of same 

can be printed and placed on Members’ seats prior to the commencement of the Council 

meeting. 

In addition, the text of the Leader of the Council’s budget presentation speech must also be 

emailed to the Committee Services Manager by no later than 5.00 p.m. on the day of the Budget 

Full Council meeting in order that copies of same can be printed and placed on Members’ seats 

prior to the commencement of the Council meeting. The Committee Services Manager will also 

email the speech to all Members of the Council as soon as possible after they receive it from 

the Leader of the Council.  

3. ORDINARY MEETING 

Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a programme decided at 

the Council’s annual meeting.  Such programmes shall ensure that the first ordinary meeting is 

held within 15 working days of the annual meeting of the Council except in a year when there is 

an ordinary election of Councillors.  The order of business at every ordinary meeting of the 

Council be as follows: 

 (i) To receive apologies for absence: 

(ii) To elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice Chairman are not present; 

(iii) To deal with any business required by Statute to be dealt with before any other business; 

(iv) To approve the minutes of the last meeting (or in the case of the first ordinary meeting 

of the municipal year, to approve the minutes of the Annual meeting and the preceding 

meeting); 

(v) To receive any announcements from the Chairman and the Chief Executive and any 

statements from the Leader and Members of the Cabinet; 

(vi) To deal with any Petitions; 

Page 53



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

(vii) In accordance with Rule 10, to receive questions from, and provide answers to the public 

in relation to matters which in the opinion of the person presiding at the meeting are 

relevant to the business of the meeting; 

(viii) To receive a report from the Leader on any Cabinet decisions taken as a matter of 

urgency in accordance with Access to Information Procedure Rule 16.2, Budget and 

Policy Framework Procedure Rule 6(b) and Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 18(i); 

(ix) To deal with any business from the last Council meeting; 

(x) To receive the minutes of Committees (with the exception of the Licensing and 

Registration and Planning Committees) and to receive questions and answers from 

Councillors on any of those items; 

(xi) To receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the business of joint 

arrangements and external organisations; 

(xii) To consider motions (in the order in which notice has been received); 

(xiii) To consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting, including 

consideration of proposals from the Cabinet in relation to the Council’s Budget and Policy 

Framework, other reports from the Cabinet, reports of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees, or other Committees for debate and reports from Officers for consideration;  

(xiv) To receive questions from Members in accordance with Rule 11.2; and 

(xv) Urgent matters for Debate 

 Matters which are not on the Agenda and which a Member considers should be reported 

urgently to the Council may, with the consent of, and in a form approved by, the 

Chairman, be brought before the meeting by way of a short written statement which shall 

be read by the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer or Monitoring Officer, as part of his 

or her reports and communications.  The Member concerned may, by leave of the 

Chairman, speak on the statement and move a motion unless advised otherwise by the 

Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer or Monitoring Officer. 

With the exception of items (i) (ii) (iii) and (iv), the order of items may be varied at the discretion 

of the Chairman or by a resolution passed on a motion (which need not be in writing) duly moved 

and seconded, which shall be put without discussion.  At the last ordinary  meeting of the Council 

in the municipal year, following item (v) the meeting will receive the annual State of Tendring 

Statement from the Leader. 

4. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS 

4.1 Calling Extraordinary Meetings 

An extraordinary meeting of the Council may be called in the following circumstances:- 

Page 54



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

1. An extraordinary meeting of the Council may be called at any time by the Chairman of the 

Council. 

 

2. If the Chairman refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the Council after a requisition 

for that purpose, signed by five members of the Council, has been presented to him, or 

if, without so refusing, the Chairman does not call an extraordinary meeting within seven 

days after the requisition has been presented to him, then any five members of the 

Council, on that refusal or on the expiration of those seven days, as the case may be, 

may forthwith call an extraordinary meeting of the Council. 

 

3. The Council by resolution; and 

 

4. The Monitoring Officer in circumstances where a Section 5 report is to be presented. 

 

4.2 Holding Extraordinary Meetings in the corresponding circumstances set out above 

1. The Chairman of the Council, in consultation with the Chief Executive, will decide the 

date of the meeting. 

 
2. Where such a request is received the meeting will be held within 14 days of the receipt 

of the call for an extraordinary meeting from those five members of the Council. 

 

3. The Council as part of its resolution will fix the date of the extraordinary meeting or will 

delegate that matter to the Chairman of the Council. 

 

4. Where such a request is received the meeting will be held within 14 days of the receipt 

of the call for an extraordinary meeting from the Monitoring Officer. 

 

4.3 Order of Business 

(i) To receive apologies for absence; 

(ii) To elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are not present; 

(iii) To deal with any business required by Statute to be dealt with before any other business; 

(iv) To consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting. 

5. TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS 

 The time and place of Council meetings will be notified in the summons. 

Meetings will normally be held at 7.30 p.m. in the Princes Theatre, Town Hall, Clacton-on-Sea 

and the Council may, from time to time, vary the place, date or hour of a meeting or meetings.  

Page 55



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

Where it is not practicable for the Council to meet to agree a variation, such variation shall be 

determined by the Chairman (or failing him the Vice-Chairman) of the Council. 

In accordance with the approved Protocol for such matters, the Council will make audio and/or 

audio-visual live stream and recording of meetings of the Full Council, which will be made 

available on the Council’s website for a period of at least one year from the date of the relevant 

meeting. 

6. NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETING 

The Committee Services Manager will give notice to the public of the time and place of any 

meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Rules.  In addition to sending an electronic 

notification, at least five clear days before a meeting, the Committee Services Manager will send 

a summons by post to every member of the Council or leave it at their usual place of residence. 

Although this is the default position, all members of the Council are encouraged to opt out of 

receiving paper copies and elect to solely receive the summons via electronic notification at 

least five clear working days before the meeting. The summons will give the date, time and place 

of each meeting and specify the business to be transacted, and will be accompanied by such 

reports as are available. 

7. CHAIRING OF MEETINGS 

The person presiding may exercise any power or duty of the Chairman.  Where these rules 

apply to Committee and Sub-Committee meetings, references to the Chairman also include the 

Chairman of Committees and Sub-Committees. 

8. QUORUM 

The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of Members, subject always 

to a minimum of three Members.   

If, at the scheduled commencement time of the meeting, there is not a quorum present, 

the Chairman will be permitted to delay the start of proceedings for up to a maximum 

period of 15 minutes. This will be in order to allow time for Members, who may have been 

delayed for some reason, to arrive. If, at the end of that 15 minute period, the Chairman 

counts the number of Members present and again declares there is not a quorum present 

the Chairman will declare the meeting to be null and void and cancelled for administrative 

purposes. The business will stand to be considered at a new time and date to be fixed by 

the Chairman. If the Chairman does not fix such a date, the business will be considered 

at the next ordinary meeting. 

During any meeting if the Chairman counts the number of Members present and declares there 

is not a quorum present, then the meeting will adjourn immediately.  The Chairman will decide 

at that point the duration of that adjournment. If it is not possible to resume the meeting 

on that date any remaining business will be considered at a time and date to be fixed by the 

Page 56



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

Chairman.  If he the Chairman does not fix a date, the remaining business will be considered 

at the next ordinary meeting. 

9. DURATION OF MEETING 

9.1 The business of ordinary meetings of the Council shall cease at 10.30 p.m. (or after a duration 

of three hours, whichever is the earliest) on the day on which the meeting commenced, or  such 

earlier, or later, time as the Chairman shall consider appropriate.  In the event that the Chairman 

wishes to extend the meeting beyond 10.30 p.m. (or beyond three hours) they will be expected 

to give an indication of the length of that extension and secure the consent of the Council in 

doing so. 

9.2 When the business of a meeting is terminated in accordance with 9.1 above any remaining 

business shall stand adjourned until a date and time to be fixed by the Chairman. 

9.3 Where 9.2 applies, given that the agenda and associated reports and papers for the original 

meeting have been published, the adjourned meeting can be called as soon as practicable and 

without necessary delay, having regard to the remaining business and venue availability.  In the 

case of Committees and Sub-Committees, where Substitutes have been appointed the same 

Members should attend (the Substituted Members must not take their seats). 

9.4 Notice of the adjourned meeting will be published on the Council’s website, unless the adjourned 

meeting is held within 24 hours. 

10. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC 

10.1 Scope of Questions and Time Allocated in the Meeting 

 Members of the public may ask questions of the relevant Members of the Cabinet or the Leader 

or Committee Chairmen on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or 

which affects the Tendring District.  The time limit for the asking of each question is two minutes 

and for the reply, five minutes.  The Chairman shall determine the number of questions to be 

tabled at a particular meeting in order to limit the time for questions and answers to 21 minutes. 

 Questions shall not be submitted to the Annual Meeting of the Council or to an Extraordinary 

Meeting of the Council or to the Budget and Council Tax setting meeting of the Council. 

10.2 Order of Questions 

 Questions will be asked in the order in which notice of them was received, except that the 

Chairman may group together similar questions. 

10.3 Notice of Questions 

 A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it in writing or by personal 

e-mail to the Committee Services Manager no later than midday 8 working days before the day 

Page 57



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.9 

of the meeting.  Each question must give the name and address of the questioner and must 

name the Member of the Council to whom it is to be put. 

10.4 Number of Questions 

 At any one meeting no person may submit more than one question and no more than one such 

question may be asked on behalf of one organisation. 

10.5 Reasons for Rejection of Questions 

 The Committee Services Manager and/or Monitoring Officer may reject a question if in their 

judgement it: 

(a) is not about a matter for which the local authority has a responsibility or which affects 

the District; 

(b)  is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 

(c) is substantially the same as a question already received to be put to the ordinary meeting 

of the Council in question; 

(d) is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of the Council 

in the past six months;  

(e) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information; or 

(f) the question is about a matter that is subject to call in or ongoing legal proceedings. 

10.6 Record of Questions 

The Committee Services Manager will keep a copy of each question for six years after the 

meeting at which the question was put and will immediately send a copy of the question to the 

Member to whom it is to be put.  Rejected questions will include reasons for rejection. 

10.7 Asking the Question at the Meeting 

All questions will be set out in the agenda and the Chairman will invite the questioner to put the 

question to the Member named in the notice.  There will be no further questions or debate.  If 

the questioner is not present, the Chairman may ask the question on the questioner’s behalf, 

indicate that a written reply will be given or decide, in the absence of the questioner, that the 

question will not be dealt with. 

10.8 Written Answers 

Any question that cannot be dealt with during public question time, either because of lack of 

time or because of the non-attendance of the Member, to whom it was to be put, will be dealt 

with by a written answer, with a copy circulated to all Members.

Page 58



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

10.9 Reference of Question to the Cabinet or a Committee 

No discussion will take place on any question, but any Member may formally, without discussion, 

move that a matter raised by a question be referred to the Cabinet or the appropriate Committee.  

Once seconded, such a motion will be voted on without discussion. 

10.10 Withdrawal of Question 

A member of the public may withdraw their question by giving notice of their wish to do so to the 

Committee Services Manager prior to the commencement of the meeting at which their question 

is to be put. 

11. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 

11.1 On Statements made by the Leader or a Member of the Cabinet to the Council, Reports 

or References from the Cabinet or Minutes of Committees 

 A Member of the Council may ask the Leader or a Member of the Cabinet any question without 

notice about any statement made by the Leader or a Member of the Cabinet to the Council when 

that item is being received. 

 A Member of the Council may ask the Leader or a Member of the Cabinet or the Chairman of a 

Committee any question without notice upon a report or recommendation of the Cabinet or the 

minutes or reference from a Committee when that item is being received by the Council.  

Supplementary Questions will not be permitted under this rule. 

11.2 Scope of Questions on Notice at Full Council and Time Allocated in the Meeting 

Subject to Rules 11.3, 11.4 and 11.5 a Member of the Council may ask:- 

 the Chairman; 

 a Member of the Cabinet; and 

 the Chairman of any Committee; 

a question on any matter, which is within their area of responsibilities as set out in Part 3 of the 

Constitution, in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the Tendring 

District. 

Questions from Members will be set out in the agenda in the order in which they were received. 

Only the text of the Questions will be included within the full Council Agenda and in the 

order in which the questions from Members were received. None of the accompanying 

preamble or explanatory statements (if any) submitted by the Questioner(s) will be so 

included. 

Page 59



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

The time allocated for receiving and disposing of questions shall be a maximum 30 minutes.  

Any question not disposed of at the end of this time shall be the subject of a written response, 

copied to all Members the following working day unless withdrawn by the questioner. 

Questions shall not be submitted to the Annual Meeting of the Council or to an Extraordinary 

Meeting of the Council or to the Budget and Council Tax setting meeting of the Council. 

11.3 Notice of Questions 

 A Member may only ask a question under Rule 11.2 if either: 

(a) notice has been given by delivering it in writing (or by personal e-mail) to the Committee 

Services Manager no later than midday 8 (eight) working days before the day of the 

meeting; or 

(b) the question relates to urgent matters, he has the consent of the person to whom the 

question is to be put and the content of the question is given to the Committee Services 

Manager by noon on the day of the meeting. 

11.4 Number of Questions 

 At any one meeting no Councillor may submit more than two questions. 

11.5 Reasons for rejection of Questions 

(a) the question is not about a matter for which the local authority has responsibility or which 

affects the District; 

(b) The Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgement it could be considered 

to be defamatory or offensive or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt 

information (as defined in the Access to Information Procedure Rules); 

(c) the Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgment it is substantially the same 

as a question already received to be put to the ordinary meeting of the Council in 

question; 

(d) The Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgement it is substantially the 

same as a question which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the past six 

months; 

(e) The Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgement it is likely to lead to a 

breach of the Members’ Code of Conductor; or 

(f) the question is about a matter that is subject to call in or ongoing legal proceedings. 

11.6 Response 

 An answer may take the form of: 

Page 60



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

 (a) a direct oral answer; 

(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other published work, 

a reference to that publication; or 

(c) where a reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer given later to all 

Members. 

The Member giving the response must provide an electronic or written copy of that response to 

the Committee Services Manager by Noon on the day of the meeting in order to enable the  

response to be circulated to the Questioner, the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the 

Council and relevant Officers. 

11.7 Recording of Questions and Responses and Questions of Clarification  

After the response has been given to a Question on Notice, the Member who asked the question 

may ask one question, of which no notice is required.  That question must solely relate to 

clarifying the response received.  No statements or other form of question will be allowed.  The 

ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of the question is final. 

The minutes of the meeting will record the text of the question plus any preamble or 

supporting statement (if any) together with the response given thereto and that, if 

appropriate, a question of clarification and a response was asked and given, without detailing 

the content. 

11.8 Time Limits for Asking/Answering Questions 

The time limit for asking each question (including any preamble or statements in support) 

is two minutes and the time limit for each reply is three minutes. 

11.9 Withdrawal of Question 

A Member may withdraw their question by giving notice of their wish to do so to the Committee 

Services Manager prior to the commencement of the meeting at which their question is to be 

put. 

Once the meeting has commenced a Member may withdraw their question with the 

consent of the Chairman. 

12. MOTIONS ON NOTICE 

12.1 Scope 

Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or which affect the 

Tendring District. 

12.2 Notices of Motion 

Page 61



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 13, written and signed notice 

(or notice by personal e-mail) of every motion by the Member or Members submitting it, must 

be delivered to the Committee Services Manager no later than midday eight working days before 

the day of the meeting.  The Monitoring Officer and/or the Committee Services  Manager will 

decide whether to accept the motion as a valid motion having had regard to the provisions of 

Rule 14. 

No Member shall, under the provisions of this Rule, submit more than one motion for 

consideration at any ordinary meeting of the Council.   

A maximum of two motions shall be accepted for inclusion in an agenda for an Ordinary Meeting 

of the Council under this Procedure Rule.  Motions shall not be submitted to the annual meeting 

of the Council or to the Budget and Council Tax setting meeting of the Council. 

12.3 Motion set out in Agenda 

Valid motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in the order in which 

notice was received, unless the Member giving notice states, in writing, that he proposes to 

move it to a later meeting or withdraw it. 

At the meeting the Chairman will invite the Member who submitted the motion to formally move 

it.  Thereupon the Chairman will then ask for a seconder for the motion.  If there is no seconder 

then the motion will be declared by the Chairman as having failed and the Chairman will 

immediately move onto the next business on the agenda. 

If the motion is seconded then it will be dealt with in accordance with Rule 12.4 (within the 

maximum 30 minute time limit normally allocated for each motion, which will only commence at 

the point the Chairman has decided to allow the motion to be dealt with at the meeting and they 

then call on the first Member to speak to the motion if it is a motion being considered at an 

ordinary meeting of the Council). 

If a motion thus set out in the agenda is not moved either by a Member who gave notice thereof 

or by a Member nominated by him it shall unless postponed by consent of the Council, be treated 

as withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice. 

12.4 Consideration of Motions 

12.4.1 At an Extraordinary Meeting of the Council any Motion listed on the Agenda will be dealt with at 

the meeting in accordance with the provisions, as applicable, of Rules 16, 19, 23, 24, 25, 28 

and 29. 

12.4.2 At an ordinary meeting of the Council the mover and seconder of the motion will be permitted to 

explain the purpose of the motion and, if they so wish, give reasons why they feel it would be 

appropriate for the motion to be dealt with at the meeting.  They will each have a maximum of 

three minutes to do so. 

Page 62



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

The Leader of the Council or the relevant Portfolio Holder or the relevant Chairman of a 

Committee will then be permitted to respond and they will either agree with the motion being 

dealt with at the meeting or they will put forward reasons why it would be more appropriate for   

the motion to stand referred to the appropriate body for further consideration.  They will have a 

maximum of three minutes to do so. 

After hearing the representations referred to above together with any necessary professional 

advice from the Chief Executive and/or the Monitoring Officer and/or the Section 151 Officer, 

the Chairman will then make a ruling on whether the motion should be dealt with at the meeting 

or stand referred to the appropriate body. 

In making their ruling the Chairman must have regard to the principles of decision making set 

out in Article 13.02 of the Council’s Constitution and the provisions of the Executive Function 

Regulations.  The Chairman must also provide to the meeting a short oral explanation of the 

reasons for their decision. 

If the Chairman decides to refer the motion to the appropriate body then the provisions of Rule 

12.5 will apply. 

If the Chairman decides to allow the motion to be dealt with at the meeting, then in considering 

the motion the provisions, as applicable, of Rules 16, 19, 23, 24, 25, 28 and 29 will apply. 

Regardless of whether the Chairman has decided to allow the motion to be dealt with at the 

meeting or they have decided to refer the motion to the appropriate body, the mover and 

seconder of the motion will, at this point in the proceedings, explain the purpose of the motion. 

They will each have a maximum of three minutes to do so. 

A maximum of 30 minutes for debate will normally be allowed for each motion the Chairman has 

decided they will allow to be dealt with at the meeting. That 30 minute time period will then 

commence at this point when the Chairman calls on the first Member to speak to the motion. 

Following the expiry of that 30 minute period the Mover of the Motion, the mover of an 

amendment and the Leader/relevant Portfolio Holder/relevant Committee Chairman shall have 

a right of reply in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.8. 

 All speakers on the motion will be allowed three minutes. 

If a valid amendment to the motion is accepted by the Chairman a separate 30 minute period 

will then normally be allowed to debate the amendment. Following the expiry of that 30 minute 

period the Mover of the Motion, the mover of an amendment and the Leader/relevant Portfolio 

Holder/relevant Committee Chairman shall have a right of reply in accordance with the 

provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.8. 

All speakers on the amendment will be allowed three minutes. 

12.5 Referral of Motions 

Page 63



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

Where a motion has been referred in accordance with Rule 12.4 the Cabinet or any relevant 

Committee shall (subject to the provisions of Rule 12.6) be required to consider such motion 

and to advise the Council (by no later than the second Ordinary Meeting of the Council held  

following the date of Council’s referral) of their opinion and reason as to whether such motion 

should be supported in its original format.   

Prior to making its decision Cabinet or the relevant Committee may following consultation with 

Officers, require further information to be presented to them for consideration on the implications 

of the proposed motion.  Such a report must be considered in a timely manner. 

If the Cabinet or relevant Committee decides to advise the Council of its opinion that such motion 

in its original format should not be not supported, the Cabinet or relevant Committee may, in 

addition, suggest to the Council that an amended motion be proposed. 

Once Cabinet or any relevant Committee has considered the motion it will be referred back to 

Council with the recommendation.  If an amended motion is proposed by Cabinet, or relevant 

Committee, when presented back to Council, the amended motion will be debated first, in 

accordance with Rule 16.5 and Rule 16.10 (b). 

12.6 Referred Motions – Right of Mover to Attend Meeting 

If a motion has, in accordance with the provisions of Rule 12.4, been formally referred to the 

Cabinet or relevant Committee(s), the mover (or some other Member on their behalf) shall 

attend the first practicable meeting of the Cabinet or relevant Committee(s) immediately 

following the Council meeting at which the motion was moved to answer any questions and/or 

points of clarification, if requested.   

13. MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE 

 The following motions may be moved without notice: 

 (a) To appoint a Chairman of the meeting at which the motion is moved; 

(b) In relation to the accuracy of the minutes; 

(c) To change the order of business in the agenda; 

(d) To refer something to, or back to, Cabinet or relevant Committee; 

(e) To receive reports or adoption of recommendations of Committees or Officers and any 

resolutions following from them; 

(f) To withdraw a motion; 

(g) To amend a motion; 

(h) To proceed to the next business; 

Page 64



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

(i) That the question be now put; 

(j) To adjourn a debate; 

(k) To adjourn a meeting; 

(l) To exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to Information Procedure 

Rules; 

(m) That a Member named under Rule 23.3 Disorderly Conduct not to be heard further or to 

exclude them from the meeting under Rule 23.4; 

(n) To give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this Constitution; 

(o) To extend the time limit for a speech; and 

(p) In the case of urgency, notice of motion may be given, in writing, signed by the Member, 

or Members, giving the notice and the reason for its urgency and delivered by noon on 

the morning of the day of the meeting at the office of the Chief Executive who will 

immediately advise the Chairman of its receipt.  If in the opinion of the Chairman, the 

matter is not urgent, the Chairman may direct that it be disallowed. 

14. MOTIONS NOT PERMITTED 

 No motion shall be submitted on a matter that relates to an item which; 

(a) is not about a matter for which the local authority has a responsibility or which affects 

the District; 

(b) is to be considered on the same Council agenda; 

(c) is substantially the same as a motion already received to be put to the ordinary meeting 

of the Council in question; 

(d) is substantially the same as a motion which has been put at a meeting of the Council in 

the past six months; 

(e) has been the subject of a Key Decision in the previous six months; 

(f) is included within the work programme of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

(g) is, at the time of submission, subject to call-in or on-going legal proceedings or requires 

the disclosure of confidential or  exempt information (as defined in the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules); 

(h) the Monitoring Officer will reject a motion if in their judgment it is likely to lead to a breach 

of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

15. MOTIONS OR QUESTIONS AFFECTING PERSONS EMPLOYED BY THE COUNCIL 

Page 65



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.17 

If any question arises at a meeting of the Council or of a Committee or Sub-Committee as to the 

appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary, superannuation or conditions of service, or as to the 

conduct of any person employed by the Council, such question shall not be the subject of 

discussion until the Council, Committee or Sub-Committee has decided whether or not the 

power of exclusion of the public shall be exercised. 

16. RULES OF DEBATE 

16.1 No Speeches until Motion Seconded 

No speeches may be made after a motion has been proposed and explained until it has been 

seconded.  However, a motion that the recommendations from Cabinet or references from the 

relevant Committee shall be adopted need not be seconded. 

A Member when seconding a motion or amendment may, if he then declares his intention to do 

so, reserve his speech until a later period of debate, subject to Rule 16.10 – Closure Motions. 

16.2 Right to Require Motion or Amendment in Writing 

Unless notice of the motion or amendment has already been given, the Chairman may require 

it to be written down and handed to him before it is discussed. 

16.3 Content and Length of Speeches 

Speeches must be directed to the motion under discussion or to a personal explanation or point 

of procedure.  No speech (including those to move motions) shall exceed three minutes except 

with the consent of the Council.  This does not apply to the statement by the Leader on the State 

of the District and the Leader’s presentation of the budget. 

16.4 When a Member May Speak Again 

A Member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it is the subject of debate, 

except: 

(a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another Member; 

(b) to move or second a further amendment if the motion has been amended since he last 

spoke; 

(c) if his first speech was on an amendment moved by another Member, to speak on the 

main issue (provided the amendment has not been carried); 

(d) in exercise of a right of reply; 

(e) on a point of procedure; and/or 

(f) by way of personal explanation.

Page 66



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.19 

16.5 Amendments to Motions 

 (a) An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and either be: 

(i) to refer the matter to the Cabinet or relevant Committee for consultation, 

further information on the implications of the potential decision to be 

researched and submitted, for consideration or reconsideration;  

(ii) to leave out words; 

(iii) to leave out words and insert or add others; or 

(iv) to insert or add words 

as long as the effect of (ii), (iii) or (iv) is not to negate the motion or introduce a new 

subject matter into the motion before the Council.  In addition, any amendment proposed 

to be made that may have budgetary implications must have been submitted to the 

Council’s Section 151 Officer at least two working days before the Full Council meeting 

to enable them to consider the implications for the Council’s Finances. 

Furthermore, no amendment will be accepted that could bind or fetter the Executive or 

a Committee in relation to matters that are within the responsibility of the Executive or a 

Committee of the Council. 

(b) Any amendment proposed to be made to the Cabinet’s budget proposals must have 

been submitted to the Council’s Section 151 Officer at least two working days before the 

Budget Full Council meeting(s) to enable them to consider the implications for the 

budget. 

(c) Any Member wishing to move an amendment or alternative recommendation to those 

made by the Independent Remuneration Panel in respect of the Members’ Scheme of 

Allowances must have submitted their proposals to the Council’s Section 151 Officer and 

the Monitoring Officer at least two working days before the relevant Full Council meeting 

to enable them to consider the legal and financial implications. Any such amendment or 

alternative recommendation must be accompanied by the reasons for departing from the 

IRP’s recommendations. Once deemed to be valid by the Monitoring Officer it will be 

immediately circulated by email to all Members of the Council. Copies of such 

amendment or alternative recommendation(s) will also be placed on Members’ tables 

prior to the commencement of the Council meeting. 

(d) Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time.  Subject to Rule 

16.10 no further amendment may be moved until the amendment under discussion has 

been disposed of.  However the Chairman may permit a Member to give formal notice 

of the terms of any further amendment which he proposes to move at a later stage in the 

proceedings. 

(e) A member may withdraw their proposed amendment with the consent of the seconder. 

Page 67



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.19 

(f) If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion may be moved. 

(g) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of the original 

motion.  This becomes the substantive motion to which any further amendments are 

moved. 

(h) After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the substantive motion 

before accepting any further amendments, or if there are none, put it to the vote.  

16.6 Alteration of Motion 

(a) A Member may alter a motion of which he has given notice with the consent of the 

seconder. 

(b) A Member may alter a motion that he has moved without notice with the consent of the 

seconder.  

(c) Only alterations that could be made as an amendment may be made. 

16.7 Withdrawal of Motion 

A Member may withdraw a motion that he has moved with the consent of the seconder unless 

it is the subject of an amendment.  No Member may speak on the motion after the mover has 

withdrawn it. 

16.8 Right of Reply 

(a) The seconder of a motion (including the seconder of a motion on which an amendment 

has been moved), the mover of a motion (including the mover of a motion on which an 

amendment has been moved) and the seconder and the mover of an amendment have 

a right of reply at the end of the debate on the motion or amendment.  Following this, the 

appropriate Portfolio Holder or the Chairman of the relevant Committee shall have the 

right to speak on the motion or amendment immediately before it is put to the vote.  

Where the mover of the motion or amendment was the Leader of the Council, he shall 

have the final right to speak. 

(b) A Member exercising a right of reply shall confine his remarks to answering the 

arguments employed or observations made during the debate and shall not introduce 

any new matter. 

(c) The right of reply of the seconder of a motion or amendment (as referenced in (a) above) 

will only apply if the seconder has not already spoken during the debate on the motion 

or amendment in question.

Page 68



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.20 

16.9 Motions Which May be Moved During Debate 

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the following procedural 

motion: 

(a) to withdraw a motion; 

(b) to amend a motion; 

(c) to proceed to the next business; 

(d) that the question be now put; 

(e) to adjourn a debate; 

(f) to adjourn a meeting; 

(g) to extend the time for speeches; 

(h) to give any consent required by these procedure rules; 

(i) to suspend one or more of the procedure rules; 

(j) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to Information 

 Procedure Rules; and 

(k) that a Member named under Rule 23.3 below (Disorderly Conduct), not to be heard 

further or to exclude them from the meeting under Rule 23.4. 

16.10 Closure Motion 

(a) A Member may move, without comment, the following motions at the conclusion of a 

speech of another Member; 

  (i) That the Council proceed to the next business; 
  (ii) That the question now be put; 

(iii) That the debate now be adjourned; or 
(iv) That the Council does now adjourn; or 
(v) That the matter be referred to the Cabinet or a Committee(s) in accordance with 

the responsibility of functions and the defined terms of reference. 
 

(b) On the seconding of which the Chairman shall, unless in their opinion the matter before 
the meeting has been insufficiently discussed, proceed as follows: 

 
(i) On a motion to proceed to the next business or to refer the matter to the Cabinet 

or a Committee(s): they shall first give the seconder and the mover of the original 
motion their right of reply, under Rule 16.8 above, and then put to the vote the 
motion to proceed to the next business or to refer the matter; 

Page 69



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.21 

 
(ii) On a motion that the question now be put: they shall put to the vote the motion 

that the question now be put, and if it is passed then the Chairman will give the 
seconder and the mover of the original motion their right of reply under Rule 16.8 
above before putting their motion to the vote; 

 
(iii) On a motion to adjourn the debate or the meeting: they shall put the adjournment 

motion to the vote without giving the seconder and the mover of the original 
motion their right of reply on that occasion. 

 
16.11 Point of Procedure 

 
A Member may raise a point of procedure at any time.  The Chairman will hear him immediately.  
A point of procedure may only relate to an alleged breach of these Council 
Procedure Rules or the law.  The Member must indicate the rule or law and the way in which he 
considers it has been broken.  The ruling of the Chairman on the matter will be final. 
 

16.12 Personal Explanation 
 
A Member has the right to make a personal explanation when directly related to some material 
part of an earlier speech by the Member if it appears to have been misunderstood in the present 
debate.   The ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of a personal explanation will be final. 
 

17. STATE OF TENDRING STATEMENT 
 
At the last ordinary meeting before the Annual Council meeting each year, the Leader will make 
a Statement on the State of the Tendring District.  The Chairman may permit debate following 
the statement. 
 
In addition, the text of the Leader of the Council’s Statement on the State of the Tendring District 

must be emailed to the Committee Services Manager by no later than 5.00 p.m. on the day of 

the relevant Full Council meeting in order that copies of same can be printed and placed on 

Members’ seats prior to the commencement of the Council meeting. The Committee Services 

Manager will also email the statement to all Members of the Council as soon as possible after 

they receive it from the Leader of the Council.  

18. PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS 
 

18.1 Motion to Rescind a Previous Decision 
 
A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of Council within the past six 
months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion is signed by at least 12 Members. 
 

18.2 Motion Similar to One Previously Rejected 
 
A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected at a meeting of Council 
in the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion or amendment is signed  

Page 70



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.23 

by at least 12 Members.  Once the motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a 
similar motion or amendment for six months. 

 
This procedure rule does not apply to motions moved to adopt a recommendation to the Council 
from the Cabinet or a Committee. 

 
19. VOTING 
 
19.1 Voting  
 

A Member cannot vote on a matter if they have not been present for the whole of the 
consideration of that matter. 

 
19.2  Majority 
 

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a simple majority of 
those Members present in the room, eligible to vote and voting at the time the question was 
put to the vote. 

 
19.3 Chairman’s Casting Vote 
 

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a second or casting 
vote.  There will be no restriction on how or whether the Chairman chooses to exercise a casting 
vote.  In the case of an equality of votes for the election of the Chairman of the Council, the 
retiring Chairman or the person presiding at the meeting must exercise a casting vote. 

 
19.4 Show of Hands 
 

Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Rule 19.4 19.5, the Chairman will take the vote by 
show of hands, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting. 

 
19.5 Recorded Vote 
 

If 9 Members present at the meeting demand it, the names for and against the motion or 
amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and entered into the minutes. 
 
A recorded vote is mandatory on any decision relating to the budget or Council Tax.  This 
includes not only the substantive budget motions agreeing the budget and setting Council taxes, 
but also on any amendments proposed at the meeting. 

 
19.6 Right to Require Individual Vote to be Recorded 
 

Where any Member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, his vote will be so recorded 
in the minutes to show whether he voted for, or against, the motion, or abstained from voting. 
 

19.7 Voting on Appointments 
 

Where there is more than one person nominated and seconded for any position to be filled by 
the Council then unless the Council decides otherwise at the time, the person receiving most 
votes shall be appointed.  Where there is only one person nominated and seconded, Members 

Page 71



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.23 

will cast their votes either for or against that person.  The person nominated will be appointed if 
the votes for are more than the votes against. 

 
20. MINUTES 
 
20.1 Signing the Minutes 
 

The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next suitable ordinary meeting.  
The Chairman will move that the minutes of any previous meeting be signed as a correct record.  
The only issue in relation to the minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy. 

 
20.2 Form of Minutes 
 

Minutes of any Council, Committee or Sub-Committee meeting shall comprise a brief summary 

of the proceedings of, and business transacted at, the meeting.  Minutes will not record details 

of the debate or the views or comments of individual Members. The exceptions to this are 

committees and sub-committees when considering applications, hearings and appeals 

or receiving evidence. The Minutes of such meetings will give summarised details of the 

issues covered in the debate. 

No Minutes of any meeting will be produced as a verbatim record of those proceedings. 
 
Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order the Chairman 
accepted them as being proper motions/amendments and put them to the vote. 
 
Minutes will also record those instances when a Member has submitted their apologies 
for absence. If so requested by the Member concerned the Minutes will also record the 
reason for their absence. 
 

21. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 
 

All Members present during the whole, or part, of any meeting must sign their names on the 
attendance sheets before the end of that meeting to assist with the record of attendance. 
 

22. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 
Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or Rule 24 (Disturbance by Public). 

 
23. MEMBERS’ CONDUCT 
 
23.1 Standing to Speak 
 

When a Member speaks at full Council he must stand (if possible) and address the meeting 
through the Chairman.  If more than one Member stand, the Chairman will ask one to speak and 
the others must sit.  Other Members must remain seated whilst a Member is speaking unless 
they wish to make a point of procedure or a point of personal explanation. 

 
23.2 Chairman Standing 

Page 72



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.23 

 
When the Chairman stands during a debate, any Member speaking at that time must stop and 
sit down.  The meeting must be silent. 

 
23.3 Member Not to be Heard Further 
 

If a Member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by behaving improperly, or 
offensively, or deliberately obstructs business, the Chairman or any other Member may move 
that the Member not be heard further.  If seconded, the motion will be voted on without 
discussion. 

 
23.4 Member to Leave the Meeting 
 

If the Member continues to behave improperly after a motion in Rule 23.3 is carried, the 
Chairman may move that either the Member leaves the meeting or that the meeting is adjourned 
for a specified period.  If seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. 

 
23.5 General Disturbance 
 

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the Chairman may adjourn 
the meeting for as long as he thinks necessary. 

 
24. DISTURBANCE BY PUBLIC 
 
24.1 Removal of a Member of the Public 
 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned.  
If he continues to interrupt, the Chairman will order his removal from the meeting room. 

 
24.2 Clearance of Part of Meeting Room 

 
If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman 
may call for that part to be cleared. 

 
25. SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
25.1 Suspension 
 

All of these Council Procedure Rules except Rules 19.5 19.6 and 20.1 may be suspended by 
motion on notice, or without notice, if at least 36 Members of the Council are present and 25 
Members vote in favour of suspension.  Suspension can only be for the duration of the meeting.  

 
25.2 Amendment 
 

Any motion by a Member to add to, vary or revoke these Council Procedure Rules will, when 
proposed and seconded, will stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting 
of the Council. 
 

26. RESIGNATION OF CHAIRMANSHIP ETC 
 

Page 73



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.23 

The Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Council may at any time, by notice in writing delivered 
to the Chief Executive, resign their position and such resignation shall take immediate effect on 
delivery of the notice. 

 
27. CASUAL VACANCIES ETC 
 

On a casual vacancy occurring in the office of Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Council an 
election to fill the vacancy shall be held not later than the next ordinary meeting of the Council  
after the date on which the vacancy occurs, or if that meeting is held within fourteen days after 
that date, then not later than the next ordinary meeting of the Council, and shall be conducted 
in the same manner as an ordinary election. 

 
28. STATUTORY OFFICERS’ ADVICE 
 

The Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer will provide advice on the scope 
of powers and authority to take decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and 
budget and policy framework issues to the Chairman and, if requested, to all Councillors 
present. 

 
29. INTERPRETATION OF PROCEDURE RULES 
 

At any meeting the ruling of the Chairman as to the construction or application of any of the 
Council Procedure Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council, shall not be challenged. 
 
Any advice provided by the Statutory Officers in assisting the Chair for the application of the 
Rules can be shared with all Councillors. 

 
30. PETITIONS 
 

Petitions will be dealt with in accordance with the scheme approved by Council, contained within 
Part 5 of the Constitution. 
 
The rules of debate will be in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules. 
 
The length of speeches by presenters of petitions shall not exceed three minutes. 

 
31. MINOR AMENDMENTS OF GUIDANCE 
 

Any minor amendment of these rules as a consequence of any written advice or guidance to 
Officers and Members is delegated to the Monitoring Officer. 

 
32. APPLICATION TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES 
  

All of the Council Procedure Rules apply to meetings of the Council. 
 

None of these rules apply to meetings of the Cabinet. 
 
Rules 6-9, 11.3-11.5, 11.7 – 11.9, 15, 16 (excluding 16.4), 19 (excluding 19.5 and 19.7 but 
including 19A), 20 – 24 (excluding 23.1), 26, 28, 29 and 31 including those in Part 2 below  
 

Page 74



 

 
(Yellow) 

(July 2020) Part 4.28 

 
apply with any necessary modification to meetings of Committees and Sub-Committees.  Rule 
40 applies only to the Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee and the Planning Committee. 

Page 75



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.27 

A.4 APPENDIX B 

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 

SECTION 2 – COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

33. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES/VACANCIES IN 

CHAIRMANSHIP 

33.1 General 

 Subject to the rules of political proportionality, as provided in the Local Government and Housing 

Act 1985 (Section 15) and the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) 

Regulations 1990, and Rule 33.2 below, Full Council (usually at its Annual Meeting) will appoint 

Committees and Sub-Committees in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 (Section 

102). 

33.2 Eligibility 

 Subject to the provisions of Rule 33.3 below the eligibility requirements with regard to 

membership of Committees and Sub-Committees are as follows:- 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 All Councillors except Cabinet members may be members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees. 

 Audit Committee, Human Resources and Council Tax Committee, Licensing and Registration 

Committee, Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee, Planning Committee and Miscellaneous 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

 All Councillors may be members of these Committees. 

 The members of the Miscellaneous Licensing Sub-Committee must also be members of the 

parent Licensing and Registration Committee. 

 CIPFA Guidance recommends that the membership of the Audit Committee should not cross-

over with either the Executive or Scrutiny functions.  However, Officers’ advice is that if Members 

feel that cross membership is necessary then this should be limited to one member from each 

of the Executive or Scrutiny functions.  The Chairman of the Audit Committee should not be a 

member of the Cabinet.  

Standards Committee 

 All Councillors may be members of this Committee except that no more than one member of 

the Committee shall be a member of the Cabinet (and that member cannot be the Leader of the 

Council).  In addition, no Leaders of Political Groups can be members of that Committee. 

Page 76



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.27 

 Premises/Personal Licences Sub-Committee 

 The membership of this Sub-Committee is appointed on an ad hoc basis from the membership 

of the Licensing and Registration Committee. 

33.3 Training Members of the Audit, Licensing and Registration, Planning and Standards 

Committees 

 In addition to specific training required as and when necessary, training shall be provided to all 

Members appointed to the Audit, Licensing and Registration, Planning and Standards 

Committees on an annual basis at an appropriate date and time after each annual meeting of 

the Council and such training shall be mandatory.  The Monitoring Officer shall define what is 

meant by the word “mandatory” and they will also decide whether the training offered/provided 

is/was sufficient and “fit for purpose”. 

 A Member cannot sit as a member of the Planning Committee unless they have received specific 

training with regard to the determination of planning applications. 

 A Member cannot sit as a member of the Licensing and Registration Committee unless they 

have received specific training with regard to the determination of applications for personal or 

premises licences submitted under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 A Member cannot sit as a member of the Audit Committee unless they have received specific 

training with regard to the determination of the Council’s Statement of Accounts and 

comprehension of Auditor reports. 

 A Member cannot sit as a member of the Standards Committee unless they have received 

specific training with regard to the Hearings Procedure and participation in Hearings. 

 No Member can continue to sit as a member of the above committees if they have gone more 

than two years without attending any of the relevant training events. 

33.4 Resignation of Chairmanship Etc. 

 Any Chairman, Vice-Chairman or Member of a Committee, Sub-Committee or Working Party 

may at any time, by notice in writing or personal email delivered to the Chief Executive, resign 

his position and such resignation shall take immediate effect on delivery of the notice. 

33.5 Casual Vacancies 

 In the case of a casual vacancy in the office of a Chairmanship or Vice-Chairmanship of a 

Committee, Sub-Committee or Working Party an item shall be placed on the agenda of the next 

meeting of the relevant body which shall, before proceeding to any other business, elect from 

its Members a Chairman or Vice-Chairman as the case may be for the remainder of the year. 

34. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES, SUB-COMMITTEES AND 

WORKING PARTIES 

Page 77



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.27 

34.1 General 

Substitute members may attend, speak and vote at meetings of Committees and Sub-

Committees of the Council, subject to Rules 33.3 and 33.4.  In the case of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees, such Substitute Members may not be Members of the Cabinet.  Substitute 

Members may not be appointed to any Working Parties unless that working party has been 

established in full accordance with the Widdicombe Rules. 

34.2 Eligibility and Effect 

A Substitute shall belong to the same political group (as defined in the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989) as the Member for whom he is a Substitute.  Substitution by, or of, Members 

not in a political group is not permitted. 

Only the Member being substituted or their Group Leader (or Deputy) can appoint substitute 

members.  Notification of a substitute from the Member being substituted or their Group Leader 

(or Deputy) must be given to Committee Services prior to the commencement of the meeting at 

which the substitution is to apply.  Where more than one notification is received, the Group 

Leader (or Deputy’s) request will take precedence. 

The substitution will be in effect for the whole of the meeting (including any part thereof 

that is adjourned to, and subsequently considered at, a later date). The Substituted 

Member must not take their seat. 

34.3 Training Substitute Members of the Audit, Licensing & Registration, Planning and 

Standards Committees 

 In addition to specific training required as and when necessary, training shall be provided to all 

named Substitute Members appointed to the Audit, Licensing and Registration, Planning and 

Standards Committees on an annual basis at an appropriate date and time after each annual 

meeting of the Council. 

34.4 Substitute Members of the Audit, Licensing & Registration, Planning and Standards 

Committees 

Group Leaders shall, provide named Substitute Members (in accordance with proportionality 

rules) and all substitutions will only be permitted from this list.  Any member of a political group 

shall be eligible to act as a named Substitute Member providing that they have received training 

in relation to all relevant Audit, Licensing & Registration, Standards-related or Planning matters 

under a continuing programme arranged by the Council.  When naming a designated substitute, 

Group Leaders shall, as far as reasonably practicable, satisfy 

themselves that the named Member is as conversant with all relevant Audit, Licensing and 

Registration, Standards-related and Planning matters as the appointed members of those 

Committees. 

34.5 Substitute Members of the Premises/Personal Licences Sub-Committees 

Page 78



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.28 

Substitutes for Members of the Premises/Personal Licences Sub-Committee shall be made from 

the appointed membership of the Licensing & Registration Committee.  Such substitute need 

not be a Member of the same political group and the provisions of Rule 34.2 shall not apply. 

The Committee Services Manager will, at the request of the Group Leader of a member of the 

Premises/Personal Licences Sub-Committee or at the request of the Member concerned, 

appoint a Substitute from amongst the appointed Membership of the Licensing & Registration 

Committee who should have received training in relation to licensing under a continuing 

programme arranged by the Council.  Such request need not be in writing. 

The Committee Services Manager will ensure that a fourth or standby Member, drawn from 

amongst the appointed membership of the Licensing & Registration Committee, is present at 

every meeting of the Premises/Personal Licence Sub-Committee.  Such Member shall act as a 

member of the Sub-Committee in the event that one of the three Sub-Committee members 

becomes unable to act due to e.g. illness, conflict of interest. 

35. MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES 

35.1 Ordinary Meetings 

The Committees of the Council will normally hold meetings (known as Ordinary Meetings for the 

purposes of these Procedure Rules) on dates and at times as the Council decides at its Annual 

Meeting. 

The business of ordinary meetings of a Committee etcetera shall cease after a duration of three 

hours on the day on which the meeting commenced, or such earlier, or later, time as the 

Chairman shall consider appropriate.  In the event that the Chairman wishes to extend the 

meeting beyond three hours they will be expected to give an indication of the length of that 

extension and secure the consent of the Committee etc. in doing so. 

For the avoidance of any doubt the above requirement does not extend to a meeting of any 

committee or sub-committee which is conducting a Hearing into licensing or standards/conduct 

or other regulatory matters.  On such occasions the Chairman will be 

expected to call regular adjournments of the Hearing in order for participants to have comfort 

and/or refreshment breaks. 

35.2 Special Meetings 

1. The Chairman of a Committee can call a Special Meeting of a Committee at any time.   

2. A Special Meeting shall also be called on the requisition of a not less than a quarter of 

the whole number of Members of the Committee, delivered in writing, or by email to the 

Chief Executive but in no case shall less than three Members requisition a Special 

Meeting. 

Page 79



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.29 

No business except that set out in the Summons and Agenda shall be carried out at a Special 

Meeting of a Committee. 

35.3 Recording and Streaming of Committee Meetings 

 In accordance with the approved Protocol for such matters, the Council will make an audio 

 and/or visual live stream and recordings of its Committees, which will be made available on 

 the Council’s website for a period of at least one year from the date of the relevant meeting. 

36. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

Except as otherwise provided in this Constitution and in particular having regard to the 

provisions of the Access to Information Procedure Rules:- 

36.1 Every Member of the Council shall be entitled to attend all meetings of Committees and Sub-

Committees.  This does not include attendance at Portfolio Holder Working Parties.  A Member 

of the Council shall not take part in any discussion at a meeting of a Committee or Sub-

Committee of which he is not a Member, unless specifically invited to do so by the Chairman of 

that meeting, or unless he is attending the meeting of the Committee under the provisions of 

Rule 12.6, and he shall in no case be entitled to vote.  The Member shall obtain the permission 

of the appropriate Chairman prior to the relevant meeting if he wishes to speak at that meeting.  

Exceptions to this include that the Portfolio Holder with the responsibility for Planning and 

the Chairman of the Planning Committee has each have a standing invitation to attend 

meetings of the Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee. and The Portfolio Holder with the 

responsibility for Planning will be permitted to express the views of the Executive on 

strategic planning issues and the Chairman of the Planning Committee will be permitted 

to to express the Planning Committee’s views and comments on the Report items that are being 

considered by the Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee.  Additionally, where a Member has, 

pursuant to notice duly given under Rule 12.2, moved a motion which has been referred to a 

Committee under Rule 12.5 , he shall have the right, in accordance with Rule 12.6 to attend the 

Committee meeting in order to answer any questions and/or points of clarification, if so 

requested. 

Additionally, where a Member has submitted a Motion to Council under Rule 12.2 and 

that motion has been referred to a Committee under Rule 12.6 or Rule 12.7 that Member 

will have the right to attend the relevant meeting of that Committee and present their 

Motion, as appropriately permitted under Rule 12.10. 

 Where the public speaking scheme (Rule 40) applies to a particular application or matter before 

the Planning Committee, no Member shall be entitled to address or speak to the Planning 

Committee under this Rule.  This does not detract from any rights the Member has under the 

public speaking scheme. 

 At such times as the Standards Committee (in respect of Hearings on standards/conduct related 

matters) or the Premises/Personal Licences Sub-Committee (in respect of Hearings on licensing 

related matters) exclude the press and public and retire to deliberate and reach their decision 

Page 80



 

 
(Yellow) 

(April 2022) Part 4.29 

“in camera”, only the duly appointed members of the decision making body will be allowed to 

remain in the meeting.  All other Councillors will be treated as members of the public and will be 

excluded from the meeting at that time. 

 

36.2 The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer have the right to attend, 

speak on an item of business, provide representations and present a report to discharge their 

statutory and constitutional duties whenever necessary.  In such instances, the Committee or 

Sub-Committee in question will give due regard of the relevant advice provided.  The decision 

and minutes of the meeting will record the advice, how it was taken into account and reasons 

for any departure. 

37. SUB-COMMITTEES AND WORKING PARTIES 

The Council will decide the establishment, terms of reference, delegated powers, number of 

Members and the allocation of seats to political groups for all new Sub-Committees.  

The Council, (normally at its Annual Meeting) will also appoint individual Members to standing 

Sub-Committees and will appoint the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of those Sub-Committees. 

Every non-overview and scrutiny Committee of the Council may appoint working parties for 

specified purposes in accordance with Part 3 of this Constitution.  The Committee may amend 

the constitution of the working parties or dissolve them at any time. 

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of any working parties appointed by a Committee will be 

determined at the first meeting of the working party.  Meetings of working parties will normally 

be convened, either at an earlier meeting of the working party or by the Committee Services 

Manager in consultation with their Chairman. 

38. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE AT COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES 

Subject to Rules 11.4 and 11.5 and upon providing two working days’ notice, a Member of a 

Committee may, at a meeting thereof, ask the Chairman of it a question on any matter in relation 

to which the Council has powers or duties of which affect the Tendring District and which falls 

within the terms of reference of that Committee. 

39. SITE VISITS, SPECIFIC BRIEFING OR TRAINING 

39.1 Where a site visit, specific briefing or training is called by Officers in relation to a planning or 

licensing application received by the Council, any Member or Substitute Member of that 

Committee who does not attend the site visit, specific training or briefing, shall not be eligible to 

take part at the meeting at which the application to which the site visit, specific training or briefing 

related is to be considered. 

39.2 Notification of site visits arranged by any Committee or Sub-Committee shall be given to the 

Members for the ward in which the site is situated.  Such Members shall have the right to attend 

Page 81



 

 
(Yellow) 

(March 2019) Part 4.34 

the site visit but shall not take part in any discussion unless specifically invited to do so by the 

Chairman of the body that has arranged the site visit.  The body arranging the site visit shall not 

exercise any delegated powers nor take any decisions in the course of the visit. 

 

40. SCHEMES TO PERMIT MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO SPEAK AT MEETINGS OF THE 

PLANNING POLICY & LOCAL PLAN AND PLANNING COMMITTEES 

The Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee and the Planning Committee will each have a 

scheme providing a limited right for speaking by members of the public in relation to applications 

or other matters of business.  The schemes shall be in such a form as the Full Council 

determines having considered a recommendation from the relevant Committee. 

Page 82



 

 

     A.4 APPENDIX C 

 

ARTICLE 4 – THE FULL COUNCIL 

4.01 Meanings 

(a) Policy Framework 

The policy framework means those statutory policies and plans which must be 

approved or adopted by the full Council and are, for the time being, the following: 

 Council’s Corporate Plan; 
 

 Sustainable Community Strategy; 
 

 Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy (Sections 5 and 6 of the Crime 

and Disorder Act 1998); 
 

 Plans and strategies which together comprise the Local Development 

Plan Documents (Section 15 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004); 
 

 The plan and strategy which comprise the Housing Investment 

Programme (HRA Business Plan and Housing Strategy); 
 

 Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003); 
 

 Statement of Licensing Policy (Gambling Act 2005) (on the 

recommendation of the Cabinet who will have considered a referral 

from the Licensing and Registration Committee); 

 

Other plans and strategies which the Council may decide from time to time 

are to be adopted by the Council as a matter of local choice as part of the 

policy framework, including but not limited to: 

 IT Strategy and Information Governance 
 

 Procurement Strategy (including the Social Value Policy) 
 

 Climate Change Action Plan 

 

Page 83



 

 

 
A.4 APPENDIX D 
 
ARTICLE 6 – OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 
6.02 Terms of Reference: 

 The terms of reference for each Overview and Scrutiny Committee are set out below: 

 (i) Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Meetings of the Committee will be held in accordance with the programme of 

meetings normally approved at the Annual Meeting of the Council.  In addition, 

extraordinary  meetings may be called from time to time as and when appropriate.  

A meeting may be called by the Chairman of the Committee, or by the Head of 

Democratic Services & Elections.  If considered necessary or appropriate.  

Meetings of Task and Finish Groups can be called as required, following the terms 

of reference being agreed by the Committee. 

To perform the role of Overview and Scrutiny and its functions in relation to 

 Community Leadership developing the external focus of overview and scrutiny 

on “district-wide” issues’ (and where appropriate sub regional, regional and 

national issues), in particular through collaborative work with local partner 

authorities, providers, stakeholders and members of the public. 

 Approval of discrete researched and evidenced reviews on the effectiveness 

of partnership operating in the area with particular focus on: 

o Community Safety 

o Health and Well-being 

o Economy, Skills and Educational Attainment 

 

 Community engagement, development and empowerment 

 Leisure and Tourism (except matters relating to budgets) 

 Housing Strategy and Homeless Service (except the Housing Revenue 

Account) 

 Emergency Planning 

 

The Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny Committee will also act as 

the Council’s designated “crime and disorder committee” for the purposes 

of Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 and will have the power -  

 

(a)  to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 

connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities[*] of their 

crime and disorder functions; 

(b)  to make reports or recommendations to the local authority with respect 

to the discharge of those functions. 

Page 84



 

 

 

* “The responsible authorities”  means the bodies and persons who are 

responsible authorities within the meaning given by section 5 of the Crime 

and Disorder Act 1998 (c. 37) (authorities responsible for crime and disorder 

strategies) in relation to the local authority's area. 

 

In fulfilling that function the Community Leadership Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee will have the power (whether by virtue of section 9F(2) or 21(2) of 

the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations made under section 

9JA(2) or 32(3) of that Act or otherwise) to make a report or 

recommendations to the local authority with respect to any matter which is 

a local crime and disorder matter in relation to a member of the authority. 

 

The crime and disorder committee shall meet to review or scrutinise 

decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by 

the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions as the 

committee considers appropriate but no less than once in every twelve 

month period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

Page 85

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FIF1362DE0E44F11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=N5VRBwh4huhAFLc0QGzx8fratu2PWtbtQT2IFm8d9Nk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI5FB6BA51E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Jim8WXUGGamznjS1tvY39z%2FlyFixz%2FIj%2FtUjnHjmt5Q%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI5FB6BA51E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Jim8WXUGGamznjS1tvY39z%2FlyFixz%2FIj%2FtUjnHjmt5Q%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI76B270B126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5ab1V6ZT5hTAeaEPOBQLdx6BDQsvhk4s8iYKCWHlsXk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI5FADB9A1E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=tSBR6BQq2LW9%2FCeaV84UPvHO6%2FGqG%2F%2BPnyO2KvM8D0I%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI76BBBF8126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=O7HFJw5y8ThUl%2FxHKz5qapPYl4uh1vcNEYKM7VAxDsk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI76BBBF8126D911E1ABDECFB240C8F543%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=O7HFJw5y8ThUl%2FxHKz5qapPYl4uh1vcNEYKM7VAxDsk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com%2FDocument%2FI21800BC0E44F11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65%2FView%2FFullText.html%3ForiginationContext%3Ddocument%26transitionType%3DDocumentItem%26ppcid%3D86768eedd7e6471d8661a457e8ee8870%26contextData%3D(sc.DocLink)&data=05%7C01%7Ciford%40tendringdc.gov.uk%7C068657481a9d4fd0ecae08da7c87a41f%7C85a13c52693e4c39bdfa85c3a9047d15%7C0%7C0%7C637959219252177063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cwQATJqXrg1g5T2Qt%2Bh2isOo%2Bz%2BKLe1etTEuSZ8fq%2FE%3D&reserved=0


A.4 APPENDIX F – ARTICLE 13 (KEY DECISIONS) 
 
 
13.03 Key Decisions 

 A “key decision” means an executive decision that is likely to – 

 result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings 

which are in excess of, £100,000 or is significant having regard to the local authority’s 

budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 

 be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area 

comprising two or more wards in the area of the local authority. 

 

The definition of a key decision will be reviewed as part of the compilation and 

approval of the Council’s Governance Statement by the Audit Committee. That 

Committee will submit any recommendations as to amending that definition to the 

Portfolio Holder with responsibility for the Constitution. 

A decision-taker may only make a key decision in accordance with the requirements of 

the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Article 7 of this Constitution and the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules. 

Where an executive decision has been taken on a matter and that decision was 

treated as a key decision and made in accordance with the requirements of the 

Constitution then any further executive decision regarding that matter that purports 

to enact all or part of the requirements of that original executive decision need not 

be treated as a key decision. 

 

 

Page 86



 

 

A.4 APPENDIX F 
 
CURRENT TERMS OF REFERENCE & DELEGATED POWERS OF THE LICENSING & REGISTRATION COMMITTEE, 
THE MISCELLANEOUS LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE AND THE PREMISES/PERSONAL LICENCES SUB-
COMMITTEE 
 
 
Committee Functions and Terms of Reference Delegated Functions 
Licensing 
and 
Registration 
Committee 

Functions relating to licensing, registration (B), 
Health and Safety at Work (C) and Smoke-free 
premises (FA) as set out in Schedule 1 of the 
Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as 
amended) and as detailed in Appendix 1 to Part 3 
of the Constitution. 
 
Additional roles and functions of the Committee 
are as set out below: 
 

 Setting the Hackney Carriage Fare Scale 

operating within the District. 

 Deciding whether to make a change to the 

Hackney Carriage Fare Scale operative 

within the Tendring District having 

considered the representations received 

in response to the Public Notice duly 

given pursuant to Section 65 of Part II of 

the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976; 

 
 Recommending the Licensing and Gambling 

Policy Statements and Sex Establishment 

Policy to full Council and the Gambling 

Statement of Licensing Policy to Cabinet; 

 
 Power to consider, consult and consider 

representations in respect of an Early 

Morning Restriction Order (EMRO) under 

Sections 172A to 172E of the Licensing Act 

2003 and to recommend implementation or 

rejection of application for EMRO to Full 

Council; and 

 
 Power to consult and consider 

representations in respect of Late Night Levy 

(LNL) Provisions under Chapter 2 of Part 2 of 

the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 

Act 2011 and to recommend implementation 

or rejection of an application to introduce LNL 

to Full Council. 

 

1. All licensing and 
 registration functions 
 are delegated to the 
 Miscellaneous 
 Licensing Sub-
 Committee or the
 Premises/Personal 
 Licences Sub-
 Committee as detailed 
 below and otherwise 
 the Assistant Director 
 (Governance)
 except  determining 
 standard licensing 
conditions  and 
determining or 
recommending
 proposed policies, 
 which remain with the 
 Committee. 
 
2. All functions relating to 
 Health and Safety at 
 Work and Smoke Free 
 Premises are 
 delegated to the 
 Corporate Director 
 (Operations and 
 Delivery). 
 
3. The initial, in principle, 
consideration of a 
proposal received for a 
change to the Hackney 
Carriage Fare Scale 
operative within the 
District and decision to 
give public notice 
(pursuant to Section 65 of 
Part II of the Local 
Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976) of 
the Council’s intention to 
amend the Fare Scale is 
delegated to the Assistant 
Director (Governance) in 
consultation with the 

Page 87



 

 

The discharge of the following Part II – 
Miscellaneous Functions as set out in Schedule 1 
of the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) Regulations 2000 (as amended) 
and as detailed in Appendix 1 to Part 3 of the 
Constitution: 
 

 Power to make closing order with respect to 

take away food shops; and 

 Power to make an order identifying a place 

as a designated public place for the purposes 

of police powers in relation to alcohol 

consumption. 

In addition the following powers and duties: 
 The setting of any fees and/or charges 

payable to the Council for the issue of any 

licences (with the exception under the Scrap 

Metal Act 2013 where the Council has 

discretion over such fees and/or charges) 

or otherwise in relation to any of the functions 

falling within the remit of the Licensing and 

Registration Committee and its Sub-

Committees. 

 

Chairman of the 
Committee. 
 
4. The final approval and 
implementation of the 
amended Hackney 
Carriage Fare Scale in the 
circumstances where no 
representations have 
been received in 
response to the public 
notice referred to in 3 
above is delegated to the 
Assistant Director 
(Governance) in 
consultation with the 
Chairman of the 
Committee. 

Committee Functions and Terms of Reference Delegated Functions 
Miscellan-
eous 
Licensing 
Sub-
Committee 

To consider and determine matters relating to all 
licences, consents, registrations and certificates that 
fall within the terms of reference of the Licensing and 
Registration Committee, except where: 
 
1. The function relates to the Licensing Act 2003 
and/or  the Gambling Act 2005; or 
 
2.   The function falls within the terms of reference of 
another Committee or Sub-Committee, board or 
body; or 
 
2. The function has been delegated to Officers of 
 the Council. 
 
In addition the Sub-Committee will exercise the 
following powers and duties: 
 
3. Consideration for recommendations to local 
 Highway Panel and Cabinet on: 
 

 installation of new taxi ranks and 

amendments/removals to existing taxi ranks. 

 
4. Consider appeals or objections received against 
 the Council’s Street Trading Policy or refusal of 
 consent by Officers. 
 

All matters are delegated to 
the Assistant Director  
(Governance) 
except in circumstances 
where the matter: 
 
(i) remains with the 
 Committee or Sub-
 Committee or 
 
(ii)  does not meet the policy 
criteria set by the Council 
 
(ii) officers are 
recommending approval 
contrary to a relevant 
adopted licensing policy. 

Page 88



 

 

6.  Approval for moving Street Collections except 
where it is for a recognised carnival for charitable 
purposes which is currently delegated to Officers. 
 
5. Consider appeals or objections received against 
 Officers’ refusal of Street or House Collection  
 applications. 

 
 

Page 89



 

 

Committee Functions and Terms of Reference Delegated Functions 
Premises/ 
Personal 
Licences 
Sub-
Committee 

1. To consider applications for licences where 
 representations have been received and not 
 withdrawn, and applications for the review of 
 licences, covered by the Licensing Act 2003 as 
 follows: 
(i) Application for Premises Licence 
(ii) Application for Provisional Statement 
(iii) Application for Variation of Premises Licence 
(iv) Application to vary Designated Premises 
 Supervisor following police objection 
(v) Application for transfer of Premises Licence 
 following police objection 
(vi) Consideration of police objections made to 
 interim Authority Notice 
(vii) Determination of application for Club Premises 
 Certificate 
(viii) Determination of application to vary Club  
  Premises Certificate 
(ix)  Decision to give counter notice following police 
  objection or environmental health   
  authority objection to temporary event notice 
(x)  Application for grant of personal licence  
  following police objection 
(xi)  Revocation of Licence where convictions  
  came to light after grant etc. 
(xii)  Application for review of Premises Licence 
(xiii) Application for review of Club Premises  
  Certificate 
(xiv) Review following Closure Order 

To the Assistant Director 
(Governance): 
 
1.   The approval or refusal 
of applications where no 
representations have been 
received 
 
1. All other Council 
 functions, powers and 
 duties in relation to the 
 Licensing Act 2003 and 
 the Gambling Act 2005 
 which do not remain 
 the specific function of 
 the Committee or Sub-
 Committee. 

 2. To consider applications for licences, where 
 representations have been received and not 
 withdrawn, and applications for the review of 
 licences, covered by the Gambling Act 2005, as 
 follows:  

 

(i)   Application for Premises Licence 
(ii)   Application for variation of Licence 
(iii)   Application for transfer of a Licence 
(iv)   Application for a Provisional Statement 
(v)   Review of a Premises Licence 
(vi)   Application for Club Gaming/Club Machine  
   Permit 
(vii)   Cancellation of a Club Gaming/Club Machine 
   Permit 
(viii)  Decision to give a Counter Notice to a  
   Temporary Use Notice (Section 224) 
(ix)   Matters referred to the Sub-Committee by  
   Officers, notwithstanding the delegations set 
   out opposite. 
(x)   Application for Prize Gaming Permit 

 

Page 90



 

 

(xi)   Application for Family Centre Gaming  
   Machine Permit 

 

Page 91



 

 

A.4 APPENDIX G 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE: CURRENT TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DELEGATED POWERS 
 
 
Committee Functions and Terms of Reference Delegated Functions 
Planning 
Committee 

The discharge of the Town and Country Planning 
and Conservation functions as specific in Schedule 1 
to the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as 
amended) and as detailed in Appendix 1 to Part 3 of 
the Constitution. 
 
Additional roles and functions of the Committee are 
as set out below: 
 
1. Any formal comment or view on applications or 
 proposals to be determined by Essex County 
 Council, any Statutory Body and government 
 departments relating to matters within the remit 
 of the Committee. 

All planning and 
conservation matters 
delegated to the Assistant 
Director (Planning) except 
in relation to the 
determination of certain 
planning applications as 
detailed below for 
determination by the 
Committee: 
 
(i) Officer 
 recommendations for 
 approval materially 
 contrary to national or 
 local policy. 
 
(ii) Officer 
 recommendation of 
 approval contrary to a 
 previous refusal by the 
 Planning Committee, 
 where the policies 
 remain substantially 
 unchanged. 
 
(iii) Office recommendation 
 of approval and the 
 application should be 
 referred to the 
 Secretary of State 
 under a Direction(s) or 
 “call in”. 
 
(iv) The applicant is the 
 Council or someone 
 acting as applicant on 
 the Council’s behalf or 
 in respect of Council 
 owned land. 
 
(v) The applicant is a 
 Member of the Council, 
 Planning Officer or a 
 Senior Officer and 
 there is an Officer 
 recommendation for 
 approval. 
 
(vi) Within 28 35 days of   

the commencement of 

Page 92



 

 

formal consultation, a 
written request is 
received from a 
Tendring District 
Councillor in 
accordance with the 
Member Referral 
Scheme(*) requesting 
that the application 
should be brought 
before the Planning 
Committee for 
determination giving 
material planning 
reasons for that 
request. 

 

 (*) Scheme to be 
 approved  by Full 
 Council 
  
(vii) Any application which 
 the Assistant Director 
 (Planning) in their 
 professional 
 opinion, taking into 
 account the written 
 representations 
 received, plans and 
 policies and other 
 material considerations 
 to be referred to the 
 Planning Committee 
 because it raises more 
 than significant local 
 issues. 

Page 93



 

 

 The discharge of the Miscellaneous functions – 
Part 1 – relating to Public Rights of Way, within 
the District Council’s responsibility as specified in 
Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as 
amended) and as detailed in Appendix 1 to Part 3 of 
the Constitution. 
 

The discharge of the following Miscellaneous 
functions – Part II – relating to hedgerows, trees 
and hedges as specified in Schedule 1 to the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000 (as amended) and as 
detailed in Appendix 1 to Part 3 of the Constitution. 

All public rights of way 
matters delegated to the 
Corporate Director) 
(Operations and Delivery) 
 
 
 
 
All hedgerows, trees and 
hedges matters delegated 
to the Assistant Director 
(Planning) 
 
 

 

Page 94



 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.22 

A.4 APPENDIX H 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES 

1. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council will have two Overview and Scrutiny Committees (“the Committees”), which 

together will perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council.  They will each 

consist of eleven nine members, who will be appointed by the full Council (normally) at its 

annual meeting.  Their terms of reference and functions will be as set out in Part 2, Article 6 of 

the Constitution. 

2. MEMBERSHIP 

All Councillors except Cabinet members may be members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees.  However, no Member may be involved in scrutinising a decision in which they 

have been directly involved in making. 

3. CO-OPTED MEMBERS (WITHOUT VOTING RIGHTS) 

Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to appoint people as Co-opted 

Members (without voting rights) as considered appropriate to enable them to perform their 

overview and scrutiny functions.  The duration of the appointment will be determined by the 

Committee.  In addition, the Council may determine which groups or bodies should be 

represented on a particular Committee by Co-opted Members (without voting rights). 

4. MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE 

Meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees will be held in accordance with the 

programme of meetings approved at the Annual Meeting of the Council.  In addition, 

extraordinary meetings may be called from time to time as and when appropriate.  An Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee meeting may be called by the Chairman of the relevant Committee, or 

by the Head of Democratic Services & Elections, if considered necessary or appropriate. 

Programmed meetings may also be cancelled, following consultation with the 

Committee's Chairman, where the business to be transacted would not warrant the 

holding of the meeting as originally envisaged. 

5. QUORUM 

 The quorum for the Committee shall be as set out in Part 4 (Council Procedure Rules). 

6. CHAIRMEN 

The Chairmen of the Committees shall be appointed as set out in Part 4 (Council Procedure 

Rules). 

Page 95



 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.22 

The Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees will meet with the Head of Democratic 

Services & Elections and appropriate Heads of Service or relevant officers to co-ordinate the 

business of the relevant Committees and determine which Committee will assume responsibility 

for any particular issue. In consultation with the Chairmen of the two Committees, it may 

be proposed that a joint Panel or Group be established by the Committees.   

7. WORK PROGRAMME 

Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee will submit a work programme for the year ahead and 

a review of the previous year’s activities to the Council for approval.  In addition, it will be 

responsible for co-ordinating and prioritising its work programme on an ongoing basis. 

In preparing, co-ordinating and prioritising its programme, each Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee will take into account:- 

 The General Role and Principles of undertaking its functions, as set out in Part 2 Article 6 

 

 the planned work on the preparation of elements of the Budget and Policy Framework; as 

set out in the Council’s Business Plan; 

 

 the need for statutory timetables to be met; 

 

 the expressed wishes of all the members of the committee; 

 

 requests from the Cabinet to carry out reviews and/or suggestions from the liaison 

meetings held under the Cabinet-Overview & Scrutiny Protocol; and 

 

 requests from Members and/or Group Leaders in accordance with Rule 8. 

8. AGENDA ITEMS 

Any member of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to give notice to the Head 

of Democratic Services & Elections that they wish an item relevant to the terms of reference and 

the functions of the Committee (but with the exception of matters relating to crime and 

disorder) to be included on the agenda for the next meeting of that Committee.  Such notice 

must be given by delivering it, in writing (or by personal e-mail) to the Head of Democratic 

Services & Elections no later than midday seven working days before the day of the meeting.  

On receipt of such a notice the Head of Democratic Services & Elections will ensure that the 

item is included on the agenda. 

Any such request by Members will be considered at the next available meeting where the 

Committee will decide if the item should form part of the work programme. 

The Leader of any political group may request that an item be included on the Overview and 

Scrutiny work programme.  The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the 

Page 96



 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.22 

request on the agenda and determine at its meeting, whether the item is appropriate for inclusion 

on the work programme. 

The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee will respond, as soon as their work programme 

permits, to requests from the Council and if it considers appropriate, the Cabinet to review 

particular areas of Council activity.  Such referrals will be accompanied by Council/Cabinet’s 

view on the matter under consideration to assist the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

in effective investigation of the matter.  Where they do so, the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee shall report their findings and any recommendations back to the Cabinet and/or 

Council.  The Council and/or Cabinet shall consider the report at its following meeting. 

In addition to the above, any member of the Authority who is not a member of the 

Council’s designated crime and disorder committee (i.e. the Community Leadership 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee) can refer any local crime and disorder matter to that 

committee for its consideration in accordance with the legislative requirements. Such a 

reference must be given by delivering it, in writing (or by personal e-mail) to the Head of 

Democratic Services & Elections no later than midday seven working days before the day 

of the meeting. On receipt of such a notice the Head of Democratic Services & Elections 

will ensure that the item is included on the agenda. Any such reference by a Member will 

be considered at the meeting concerned where the Committee will decide how to proceed 

with the reference (within the legislative requirements). 

9. COUNCILLORS CALL FOR ACTION 

The Councillors Call for Action is an additional means for Councillors to raise issues of local 

community concern, for consideration by the Council’s overview and scrutiny function, on behalf 

of residents.  A Councillors Call for Action should only be raised where other means of resolving 

the matter have been exhausted. 

(a) Any Member of the Council may raise a Councillors Call for Action, which should be sent 

to the Council’s Head of Democratic Services & Elections. 

(b) Once the Councillors Call for Action is received, the matter must be considered by the 

relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee, whose terms of reference the matter falls 

within and they must endeavour to consider the matter within a reasonable timescale.  

Where the matter falls within the terms of reference of more than one Committee, the 

Chairmen of the Committees will determine the most appropriate Committee to deal with 

the matter, except where the matter relates to a crime and disorder issue where all such 

matters must be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee responsible for 

crime and disorder matters. 

(c) If a Councillors Call for Action is deemed not to be valid, a letter will be sent to the 

Member concerned informing them of the reasons for this.  Where the issue has been 

deemed not to be valid because other methods of resolution have not been exhausted, 

Page 97



 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.22 

the Call for Action may be re-submitted, if necessary, once the Councillor concerned has 

pursued the matter further. 

10. PROCEDURE AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 (a) The Committees shall consider the following business: 

 (i) Minutes of the last meeting; 

 (ii) Declarations of Interest; 

 (iii) Questions raised on forthcoming executive decisions in accordance with Rule 13; 

 (iv) Responses of the Cabinet to reports and/or recommendations (the 

“recommendations monitoring report”) of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

 (v) Responses of the Cabinet to called-in decisions referred for reconsideration; 

 (vi) Consideration of any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to 

the call-in of a decision;  

(vii)  its Work Programme (having due regard to the General Role and Principles   as set 

out in Article 6 of the Constitution); and 

 (viii) The business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting. 

(i)      Minutes of the last meeting;  

(ii)     Declarations of Interest;  

(iii)  Consideration of any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in 

relation to the call-in of a decision; 

(iv) Any Councillors Call for Action raised in accordance with Overview and 

Scrutiny Rule 9;  

(v)   Questions submitted pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 38;  

(vi)  Work Programming Issues (having due regard to the General Role and 

Principles as set out in Article 6 of the Constitution) which shall include: 

(1) Matters raised by a Member/Group Leader under Overview and Scrutiny 

Rule 8; 

(2) Questions raised on forthcoming executive decisions in accordance 

with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 13;  

(3) Responses of Council/Cabinet/Partners to reports and/or 

recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 98



 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.22 

(4) Responses of the Cabinet to called-in decisions referred for 

reconsideration; and 

(5) Summary of forthcoming (and completed) enquiries as directed by 

Council or otherwise approved by the Committee for that year.  

(vii)  Interim and/or Finalised Reports from Task and Finish Groups on enquiries 

undertaken by those Groups; and 

(viii)  The business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting. 

 (b) Where an Overview and Scrutiny Committee undertakes researched and evidence 

reviews on a specific topic, on a task and finish basis (e.g. with a view to policy 

development), the relevant Committee may also ask people to attend to give evidence 

at the Task and Finish Group meetings that are to be conducted in accordance with the 

following principles: 

  (i) that the terms and reference of any Task and Finish Group must be agreed by the 

relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to its commencement; 

  (ii) consideration being given to the Council’s priorities and resources when making 

researched and evidenced recommendations and referral decisions as an outcome 

of the scrutiny; 

  (iii) that the reviews be conducted fairly and all members of the Task and Finish Group 

be given the opportunity to ask questions of attendees, and to contribute and speak; 

  (iv) that those assisting the Task and Finish Group by giving evidence be treated with 

respect and courtesy; and 

  (v) that the review by the Task and Finish Group be conducted so as to maximise the 

efficiency of the investigation or analysis. 

 (c) Following any Task and Finish review, the Committee shall prepare a report, for 

submission to the Cabinet and/or Council as appropriate and shall make its report and 

findings public. 

11. POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT 

 (a) The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees in relation to the development of the 

Council’s Budget and Policy Framework is set out in detail in the Budget and Policy 

Framework Procedure Rules within this Constitution. 

 (b) In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other matters not forming part 

of its Budget and Policy Framework, each Overview and Scrutiny Committee may make 

proposals or act as consultee for the Cabinet for developments in so far as they relate to 

matters within their terms of reference. 

Page 99



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.26 

 

 (c) Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee where relevant to their terms of reference, may 

investigate undertake enquiries into the available options for future direction in policy 

development and may appoint advisers and assessors to assist them in this process.  

Enquiries may involve Councillors going They may go on site visits, conducting 

public surveys, holding public meetings, commissioning research and doing all other 

things that they reasonably consider necessary to inform their deliberations.  They may 

ask witnesses to attend to address them on any matter under consideration and may pay 

to any advisers, assessors and witnesses a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so 

(subject to the appropriate budget being available). 

(d)  To assist Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees to develop appropriate 

approaches to individual enquiries (and support officers in their role for individual 

enquiries), the Head of Democratic Services & Elections may (from time to time) 

issue practice guides on such approaches. 

 (e)   Where resources permit, each Overview and Scrutiny Committee may establish, task 

and finish groups to undertake the matters in (c) above and to gather the evidence in the 

ways set out.  Likewise, enquiries may also be conducted through informal 

meetings of the Members of the Committee, scrutiny days and off agenda 

briefings. Joint task and finish groups (which may be styled panels) may be formed, 

where necessary, by two Overview and Scrutiny Committees in agreement to examine 

subjects that are, in part, in both of the terms of reference for those Committees. 

 Membership of task and finish groups will not be limited to members of the 

relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee (s). While they are not subject to the 

political balance rules that apply to formal Committees/Sub-Committees of the 

Council, from among the nominees for a particular task and finish group regard 

will be given to the broad overall political balance of the Council when determining 

the membership of the group. 

(f) All enquiries undertaken away from a formal meeting of the relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee will conclude with a final report to that Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. It will be for that Committee to determine the finalised report and 

recommendations arising from the enquiry. An enquiry can identify the need for 

an interim report, ahead of the final report, and this too will be subject to 

consideration by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 If Full Council has directly requested a report on that matter then the final report 

will be submitted to Full Council for its determination. 

12. REPORTS FROM AN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 (a) Specific evidence based reports from an Overview and Scrutiny Committee that contain 

recommendations on proposals for development, will be submitted formally for 

Page 100



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.26 

consideration by Cabinet (or to Full Council directly (if appropriate) from the "crime 

and disorder committee" or otherwise if Full Council has directly requested a 

report on that matter). If the proposals would involve a change to the existing Budget 

and/or Policy Framework, the Cabinet will consider the matter and make a 

recommendation to Full Council.  The report will be drafted by Officers and agreed by 

the relevant Chairman in respect of the proposals from the relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee. 

 (b) If an Overview and Scrutiny Committee cannot agree on one single final report to the 

Cabinet or Council, the report may refer to the contrary views of a Member, if the Member 

concerned specifically requests this. 

 (b) The Cabinet shall consider the report from the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at the next meeting of the Cabinet for which the agenda has not yet been 

published. 

 (c) In addition to making recommendations on specific proposals for development, the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees may make more general comments/suggestions 

regarding matters they have considered, which they would like the relevant Cabinet 

Member to consider and take appropriate action.  In such instances, a copy of the 

relevant minute will be sent to the Cabinet Member. 

 (d) Where specific evidence-based recommendations on proposals for development from 

the Overview and Scrutiny Committees relate to matters that are the responsibility of 

Partner Authorities and organisations, notice in writing by way of a formal report will be 

provided to the relevant Partner Authority or organisation requiring them to have regard  

  to the recommendations.  The Partner or organisation will be requested to respond to 

the relevant Committee within two calendar months setting out action, if any, that is to 

be taken in response to the recommendations. 

 (f) On occasions, matters may be referred to Overview and Scrutiny from Council.  On such 

occasions, the Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee will respond 

to the request, be this via an Overview and Scrutiny Committee or a Task and Finish 

Review Group.  Upon concluding the necessary work, the matter and any 

 recommendations made by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be referred to the 

Cabinet for consideration.   The matter, along with the recommendations of the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee, and any comments or recommendations of the Cabinet shall 

be referred back to Full Council for consideration. 

13. SCRUTINY OF PROPOSED AND RECENT DECISIONS 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will, at their ordinary meetings, review the new and/or 

amended forthcoming decisions relevant to their terms of reference.  If they wish to enquire into 

any forthcoming decisions, such an enquiry might consist of questioning members of the Cabinet 

and Officers, and seeking the views of local stakeholders and/or other interested parties.  The 

Page 101



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.26 

Cabinet will take into account any recommendations expressed by the relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees when determining the final decision and record their response within any 

report and/or decision. 

 Matters may only be raised on the forthcoming decisions at Committee meetings where the 

Member has notified the Head of Democratic Services & Elections in writing (or by personal 

email) of the question they wish to ask, no later than Midday, two working days before the day 

of the meeting. 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall also be provided with a list of decisions by 

Cabinet/an individual Portfolio Holder taken since the Committee’s last ordinary meeting 

and which that previous meeting had not itself had notice of in the record of forthcoming 

decisions. As such, if after preparation of the agenda for an ordinary meeting of an 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee notice of a proposed decision is given and the 

decision then is taken prior to the following ordinary meeting of the Committee, that 

second meeting of the Committee will be advised of the decision.  This list is for the 

purpose of completeness and to inform the work programme discussion of the 

Committee.  Other than informing this process the Committee may only note the list.  

14. RIGHTS OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS TO DOCUMENTS 

 (a) In addition to their rights as Councillors, members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees in fulfilling their functions have the right to documents, and as provided for 

in Access to Information Procedure 20 (Rights of Overview and Scrutiny Members). 

 (b) This would not prevent more detailed liaison between the Cabinet and any Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee as appropriate. 

15. MEMBERS AND OFFICERS GIVING ACCOUNT 

 (a) It shall be for the relevant Management Team member to determine which Officers 

attend to provide advice to Overview and Scrutiny Committees, subject to each 

Committee being able to supplement this as thought necessary through (b), (c) and (d) 

below: However, the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer have 

the right to attend, speak on an item of business, provide representations and 

 present a report to discharge their statutory and constitutional duties whenever 

necessary.  In such instances, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will give due regard 

of the relevant advice provided.  The decision and minutes of the meeting will record the 

advice, how it was taken into account and reasons for any departure. 

 (b) Any Overview and Scrutiny Committee may scrutinise and review decisions made or 

action taken in connection with the discharge of any Council functions.  As well as 

 reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the Overview and Scrutiny role, it may require any 

 Cabinet Member, or any Senior Officer to attend before it to explain in relation to matters 

within their remit: 

Page 102



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.26 

  (i) any particular decision or series of decisions (excluding decisions made as a 

consequence of a hearing/decision on an application by the Planning, Licensing and 

Registration, Audit, Human Resources and Council Tax or Standards Committees or 

Sub-Committees/Panels of those Committees); and/or  

  (ii) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy. 

 (c) Where any Cabinet Member or Senior Officer is required to attend a meeting of the 

relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at least seven working days’ notice of the 

meeting at which they are required to attend shall be given.  The notice will state the 

nature of the item on which they are required to attend to give account and whether any 

papers are required to be produced for the relevant Committee.  Where the account to 

be given to the Committee will require production of a report, then the Member or Officer 

concerned will be given sufficient notice to allow for the preparation of that document. 

 (d) Where, in exceptional circumstances, the Cabinet Member or Senior Officer is unable to 

attend on the required date, the Chairman of the relevant Committee, shall, in 

consultation with the Member or Officer, arrange a substitute or an alternative date for 

attendance. 

 (e) Participation by any Cabinet Member(s) in the general debate of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees will be at the discretion of the relevant Chairman (this rule does not 

apply when the Committee is considering a call-in). 

(f) In this paragraph, reference to an Overview and Scrutiny Committee includes 

enquiries undertaken through informal meeting of Members of the Committee, 

task and finish groups, scrutiny days and off agenda briefings etc. 

16. ATTENDANCE BY OTHERS 

 Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee may, in so far as it relates to matters within their terms 

of reference, invite people other than those referred to in paragraph 15 above to address them, 

discuss issues of local concern and/or answer questions.  It may for example wish to hear from 

residents, stakeholders and Members and Officers in other parts of the public sector and may 

invite such people to attend.  Attendance by those invited is entirely optional but encouraged in 

the spirit of partnership working and community engagement. 

 All such invitations will be made through the Head of Democratic Services & Elections, 

in his capacity as the Council’s designated Scrutiny Officer (Article 12 of the 

Constitution), so that a consistent and co-ordinated approach to invitations can be 

maintained. All such requests from individual Members shall be referenced to the Head 

of Democratic Services & Elections. This approach shall be followed in respect of less 

formal overview and scrutiny enquiries (such as through task and finish groups). 

17. CALL-IN 

Page 103



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.26 

 When a decision is made by the Cabinet, or an individual member of the Cabinet, the decision 

is published, normally within five working days of being made.  The Chairman of the relevant 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within 

the same timescale, by the person responsible for publishing the decision.  Decisions will also 

be sent to all Members. 

 That notice will include the date on which it is published and will specify that the decision will 

come into force, and may then be implemented, on the expiry of five working days after the 

publication of the decision, unless the decision is called-in. 

(a) The rules applying to call-in are: 

(i) All executive decisions taken at Cabinet meetings, or by individual Cabinet 

Members or by Officers (who are making a Key Decision as defined in Article 

13.03), may be called-in, subject to the exceptions outlined in Procedure Rule 

18; 

(ii) Prior to holding a call-in, the callers-in are expected to attempt to resolve the 

matter through informal mediation, together with the relevant Cabinet Member 

and/or the Leader of the Council, if appropriate to do so; 

(iii) The Committee Services Manager, will process call-in notices received from: 

 a. The Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee; or 

 b. Three Non-Cabinet Members of the Council. 

 All valid call-in notices will be referred to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee for determination and the decision-maker will be notified of the call-

in. 

(iv) A notice of call-in must be made on the appropriate prescribed form or email (so 

long as the email addresses the relevant information required) and must be 

received within five working days of the date of publication of the decision.  Use 

of the prescribed form is encouraged, and should be completed in full, with 

reference to the criteria for submitting call-in requests and stating the reasons 

why the issue needs to be scrutinised. 

(v) Individual decisions taken by Non-Executive Committees (Planning, Licensing, 

Standards and Audit Committees) cannot be the subject of call-in; and 

(vi) Any decision can only be called-in once. 

(b) Those seeking to call-in a decision shall be required to state their reasons, in accordance 

with the criteria set, in the call-in notice form based on one or more of the following seven 

assessment criteria.  These seven criteria are as follows:  

Page 104



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.27 

(i) The decision-maker has failed to consult relevant people, or bodies, in 

contravention of defined Council policies or procedures. 

(ii) The decision is contrary to the Council’s Budget or Policy Framework. 

(iii) The decision is not consistent with Council policy. 

(iv) The decision-maker did not take into account relevant considerations or other 

material factors and therefore, the decision is unreasonable. 

 (v) The decision is contrary to a previously agreed decision made in Full Council, 

which has not been superseded by a subsequent decision. 

(vi) The decision is inconsistent with a previous Overview and Scrutiny 

recommendation that has been accepted by Cabinet or Council and that 

recommendation has not been superseded by a subsequent decision. 

(vii) The decision was not taken in accordance with the principles set out in Article 13 

(Decision-Making) of the Constitution. 

 (c) Mediation Process 

(i) Those seeking to call-in a decision shall state, when providing their reasons in the 
call-in notice, whether they wish to enter into mediation with the relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) and if so, what element of the decision and/or further information would 
they wish to discuss as part of the mediation. 

(ii) Once those seeking the call-in have provided this information, the relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) must respond and confirm whether they wish to engage with the 
mediation process. 

(iii) Upon confirmation that the parties wish to mediate, Committee Services will set up 
a mediation, at which Officer(s) with knowledge of the background to the decision 
can attend to assist with providing or clarifying any information. 

(iv) The mediation meeting must be held no later than three working days before  the 
date of any meeting arranged to allow consideration of the call-in by the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

(v) The Council’s Monitoring Officer and/or Section 151 Officer (or their appointed 
deputies) may attend the mediation meeting at their individual discretion. 

(vi) The Officer from Committee Services attending the mediation, will within 24 hours, 
produce a note for circulation to all parties to the meeting for approval. That note 
must include any and all assurances given by, or agreements  reached with the 
Cabinet Member(s). 

(vii) Once those assurances or agreements are subsequently confirmed as being 
acceptable by all parties in writing then the call-in will be treated as having been 
dealt with and any further required action in relation to the decision will be 
undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. 

Page 105



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.29 

 
 The Mediation Process does not preclude the relevant Cabinet Member(s), upon 

being made aware of the call-in and the reasons for it, making an immediate, 
unilateral undertaking to amend or rescind their decision or undertake any other 
appropriate action.  Committee Services will inform the callers-in of such unilateral 
undertaking and ask if they are satisfied by that undertaking.  If the callers-in confirm 
the undertaking as being acceptable to them in writing then the call-in will be treated 
as having been dealt with and any further required action in relation to the decision 
will be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. 

  
 

 (d) The submission of a call-in notice shall have the effect of suspending the implementation 

of the decision pending consideration of the matter by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, who must meet to consider the matter within 15 working days from the date 

following receipt of the call-in notice. 

 If the relevant Committee does not meet within this period, the decision shall take effect 

on the expiry of the 15 working day period.  The Chairman of the relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee is under an obligation to ensure that the meeting is held within 15 

days. 

 If the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee has already commented or made 

recommendations on the specific matter which has been called-in prior to the decision 

being made then it will be deemed to be pre-determined on the matter and the call-in will 

be considered by another Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

(e) At the meeting to consider the call-in notice, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall 

limit its consideration to the reasons stated in the call-in notice. 

(i) The layout of the meeting will provide separate tables for both the callers-in and 

the relevant Cabinet Member to sit at for the item of the call-in. 

(ii) Stage One of the meeting – the Councillor(s) requesting the call-in shall attend 

and explain their objections to the decision and the reasons for the call-in against 

the stated criteria. 

(iii) Stage Two – the decision-maker (relevant Cabinet Member and relevant officer) 

shall establish the reasons behind the decision and can determine whether it 

should be referred back to the Cabinet Member for consideration. 

(iv) Stage Three – Questions can be asked by: 

   a. The callers-in; 
   b. The relevant Cabinet Member or relevant Officer; and 
   c. The Committee. 
    

Page 106



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.30 

All questions will be at the discretion of the Chairman, taking account of 
relevance to the subject matter.  

 
(f) It should be noted that, although a decision may be deemed to meet the criteria for call-

in, this does not automatically mean the matter should be referred back to the 
 decision-maker.  There may be compelling reasons for the decision being made and all 

evidence should be heard before determining what action should be taken. 
 
(h) Participation in the general debate will not be permitted but the callers-in and relevant 

Cabinet Member may answer questions or points of clarification arising through the 
debate, at the discretion of the relevant Chairman. 

 
(i) On considering the matter, the Committee will decide whether or not to ask the decision-

maker to reconsider its decision. 
 
(j) If, having had regard to the advice of the Monitoring Officer, which will be summarised 

within the Report, the Committee considers the executive decision is contrary to the 
Budget or Policy Framework; the Committee may refer the matter to the next practicable 
meeting of the Council, subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rules. 

 
(k) If the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee decides to ask the decision-maker to 

reconsider their decision, the decision-maker shall be required to do so within 15 working 
days following the meeting of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee, unless the 
decision maker was an Officer in which case it will be referred back to the Leader of the 
Council or relevant Portfolio Holder for consideration.  In that circumstance the Leader 
of the Council or relevant Portfolio Holder shall be required to reconsider the decision 
within 15 working days. 

 
(l) If the Overview and Scrutiny Committee decides that it does not wish to refer the matter 

back to the decision-maker or to Council, the decision shall be confirmed and take effect 
immediately following the meeting of the Committee. 

 
(m) If the matter is referred to Council, who do not object to the decision, the subject of call-

in, no further action is necessary and the decision will be effective on the date of the 
Council meeting.  If Council does object, it only has authority to make decisions where it 
is considered contrary to the Budget and Policy Framework.  The Council  
must refer any decision relating to Cabinet Functions, to which it objects, back to the 
decision-maker, together with the Council’s views on the decision.  The decision-maker 
shall, within a further 15 working days, choose whether to amend the decision or not 
before reaching a final decision and implementing it.  

 
 (n) Decisions referred back to the Decision Maker 
 

The comments and views provided by Council or the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee when referring a decision back for reconsideration shall be final and no 
further representations shall be made to the decision-maker. 
 
The decision-maker will send a report to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
once a decision has been reconsidered, and that report should include the reason why 

Page 107



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.30 

the decision-maker has either reconfirmed the original decision or why the decision has 
changed. 

 
 (o) Withdrawal of a Call-in 
 
  A request to call-in a decision may be withdrawn in writing (or by personal email) at 
  any time by one of the Members making the request. 
 
18. EXCEPTIONS TO CALL-IN 
 

The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply in respect of Cabinet decisions regarding 
the following: 
 
(i) Urgent Decisions 
 

A decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process would 
seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public interests.  The record of the decision, and 
notice by which it is made public, shall state whether in the opinion of the decision-
making person, or body, the decision is an urgent one and why, and therefore not subject 
to call-in. 
 
The Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee must agree that the 
proposed decision is reasonable in all its circumstances and that it should be treated as 
a matter of urgency.  In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman’s consent shall 
be required.  In the absence of both, the Head of Paid Service or his/her nominee’s 
consent shall be required. 
 
Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported by the Leader to the next 
practicable ordinary meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency. 

 
 (ii) Other Exceptions 
 

(a) “Provisional” or “in principle” decisions where the issue is to be referred to an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for comment. 

 
(b) Recommendations from Cabinet to Council. 
 
(c) Decisions by the Cabinet where the issue has been referred to them by the 

Council or an Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their view or comment shall 
not be subject to call-in. 

 
(d) Unless the decision has taken into account new material considerations arising 

since the original consultation with the Council or an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee a decision by the Cabinet in response to such consultation shall not 
be subject to call-in. 

 
(e) Where Full Council has delegated to the Cabinet the ability to approve additional 

information in respect of the Corporate Plan to ensure that statutory 
publishing deadlines are met, such decisions shall be construed as urgent for the 
purposes of Rule 18(i) above.  In such circumstances the Chairman of the 

Page 108



 

 
(Cream) 

(April 2022) Part 5.31 

relevant Committee, or other Chairman or Vice-Chairman so authorised to act in 
his absence, will only be required to agree that the proposed decision is 
reasonable in all the circumstances. 

 
(iii)  The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be monitored in 

accordance with Article 15 of this Constitution and a report submitted to Council with 
proposals for review if necessary. 

Page 109



 
 

A.4 APPENDIX I – FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
 
6.3 Virements 

6.3.1 A virement, unlike a supplementary estimate, will not increase the Council’s overall net 

expenditure.  However to ensure that the budget, functions and service levels approved 

by Council are not compromised virements can only be undertaken under the following 

conditions. 

6.3.2 Virement rules do not need to be followed in the following circumstances but a scheme 

will still need to be approved including agreement of what is to be delivered:- 

(a) Where expenditure is being funded entirely by income received under section 106 

agreements and that income has been received and accounted for in the current 

financial year and where that expenditure is in accordance with the terms of the 

section 106 agreement.  In these circumstances the Chief Financial Officer must 

agree the expenditure, and the financing. 

(b) For expenditure where the Council receives full funding from an external source for a 

specified project and there are no additional revenue costs to the Council in either the 

current financial year or future financial years.  In these circumstances the Chief 

Financial Officer must agree the expenditure and the financing. 

If there are additional costs to the Council then that expenditure must be financed in 

accordance with these Financial Procedure Rules. 

(c) Subject to agreement of the Chief Financial Officer: 

(i) Where a decision requires an amendment to the budgetary analysis within the 

Council’s financial information system in order that the Council’s accounts can 

properly reflect the financial transactions of that decision. 

(ii) Where the budgetary analysis within the Council’s financial information system 

need to be amended in order to comply with required accounting standards or to 

properly reflect the costs of an activity or function. 

(iii) If not subject to any separate delegation, where a budget has been 
established via an earlier decision of Cabinet / Full Council, any 
subsequent itemised expenditure from that budget (rather than a 
transfer between budget headings which would require a virement), 
in such circumstances, an Officer decision will be required following 
consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder. 

 

Page 110



 

 

A.4 APPENDIX J 

PROPERTY DEALING PROCEDURE 

1. NEGOTIATION OF PROPERTY DEALS 

1.1 Property Deal means the acquisition or disposal by the Council of any interest in land, including 

freehold, leasehold, by way of tenancy, any rent review, lease variation, lease renewal or any 

other dealing or proposed dealing with an interest in land or licence to use land. 

1.2 Members must not engage in negotiations of any kind relating to any Property Deal or proposed 

Property Deal. 

1.3 Every request to the Council from any party for a deal within this procedure shall be referred to 

the Assistant Director (Building & Public Realm), or, by the Chief Executive, to a Corporate 

Director. 

1.4 Every Property Deal shall be conducted in accordance with the Property Dealing Procedure, 

excluding the sale of dwellings under right-to-buy legislation, the sale and purchase of Shared 

Equity and DIYSO properties, and arrangements for utilities to be provided on Council owned 

land. 

1.5 Any Property Deal will be dealt with by appropriate officers in accordance with the Property 

Office Procedures to be agreed from time to time by the Assistant Director (Building & Public 

Realm) with the Council’s Section 151 and Monitoring Officers.  The Property Office Procedures 

set out the practice to be followed by any Officer acting under delegated powers. 

2. PROPERTY OFFICE PROCEDURE 

2.1 “Property Office Procedure” means all applicable steps of the Property Office Procedure at the 

time being. 

2.2 The Assistant Director (Building & Public Realm) will ensure that adequate office procedures 

are agreed with the Section 151 and Monitoring Officers and maintained.  The Property Office 

Procedures must include appropriate controls on the conduct of Property Deals.  The Property 

Office Procedure should contain other procedures and guidance on the management of property 

by other parts of the Council. 

2.3 In relation to those instances where a Portfolio Holder is the decision maker, the 

Assistant Director (Building & Public Realm), in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, 

the Section 151 Officer and the Head of Internal Audit, will ensure that there is an 

adequate set of formal principles for decision making in place and maintained. This set 

of principles should be set out in:- 

  the Property Strategy; or 

 the Housing Strategy; or 

  the Housing Acquisitions Policy; or 

 the Commercial Investment Property Policy. 

Page 111



 

 

  It should also enable the Portfolio Holder to demonstrate that they have assessed the 

deal against the principles. Where the deal is not in accord with the Property Strategy or 

the Housing Strategy or the Housing Acquisitions Policy or the Commercial Investment 

Property Policy, as appropriate, it will be referred to the Cabinet for determination. 

3. VALUATIONS 

3.1 In relation to Property Deals and to any appropriation of land the Assistant Director (Building & 

Public Realm) will carry out or obtain appropriate valuations proportionate to the open market 

value or rental: 

Type of Deal 
 

Valuation(s) Required 

Licences and Tenancies at Will Officer valuation to be prepared and retained 
Leases, interests and freeholds up to 
£100,000  £300,000 

One full external professional valuation to be 
obtained 
 

Leases, interests and freeholds over 
£100,000  at £300,000 or over 

Two A full external professional valuation to 
be obtained, plus a further valuation at the 
Property & Projects Manager’s discretion, if 
deemed necessary in their professional 
opinion.  
 

As above but in any ransom or other 
circumstances where the seeking of two 
valuations would be impractical in the opinion 
of the Assistant Director (Building & Public 
Realm) 

One full external professional valuation to be 
obtained. Assistant Director (Building & 
Public Realm) to include reasoning in the 
report for decision. 

 

3.2  The decision to initiate the Property Dealing Procedure will be taken by the Corporate 

Director (Operations and Delivery). In those instances where the decision involves a 

Freehold Acquisition or Disposal that decision to initiate the Property Dealing Procedure 

will be taken by the Corporate Director in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
Levels of Decision Making 

 
 

Right or interest to be 
granted/acquired 

Officer who is 
Head of 
Department 
or  
Corporate 
Director 

Officer who is 
Corporate 
Director 
(Operations & 
Delivery) 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder (See 
Note below) 

Cabinet 

Reporting Formal Record of Officer 
Decision to be completed and 
published* 

Formal Report and Record of 
Decision required to be 
completed and published 

1. A licence or access 
 agreement for 12 months 
 or  less 

    

2. a licence or access 
 agreement for more than 
 12 months or any 
tenancy  at will 

    

3. Tenancies for less than 
 seven years excluding 
 security of tenure 

    

4. Renewal, assignment or 
 surrender of tenancies as 
 3 above 

    

5. Tenancies for seven 
years  or more or tenancies 
not  excluding security of 
 tenure 

     

6. Renewal, assignment or 
 surrender of tenancies as 
 5 above 

    

7. Grant, acquisition or 
 release of Rights of Way, 
 Easements or other 
 permanent rights 

    

8. Freehold property interest 
 less than £100,000 

    

9.    Freehold property interest 
is £100,000 or over but 
less than £300,000 

    

10. Freehold property interest 
 is £300,000 or over 

    

11.  Decision whether to 
continue to pursue a 
transaction as an 
appropriate course of 
action, including under 
the General Disposal 
Consent Order, and in 

    

Page 113



 

 
(Cream) 

(March 2021) Part 5.65 

situations where the 
agreed price differs 
substantially from the 
valuation advice received 

12. Any disposal of open 
 space where objections 
 have been received 

    

13. Any disposal at less than 
 the Best Consideration 
 Reasonably Obtainable 

    

14. New Lease to residential 
 tenant under Chapter II of 
 Part I of the Leasehold 
 Reform, Housing and 
 Urban Development Act 
 1993 (commonly referred 
 to as a lease extension) 

   
 
 

 

 
 
 

15   Extensions to Shared 
Equity Leases 
(Leasehold Reform Act 
1967 – Deed of Variation 
to alter rent to a modern 
rent with no premium 
paid) 

    

 
 *Subject to access to information rules. 
 
Note: The relevant Portfolio Holder will be determined by whether the property sites, or will sit, within 
the General Fund or the Housing Revenue Account. Greyed box indicates level of decision making. 
 

Page 114



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 
(Cream) 

(December 2014) Part 5.66 

A.4 APPENDIX K 

SECTION 1 – SECTION SUMMARY 

1.0 Procurement rules are set out across the following sections: 

 SECTION 1 -  General Requirements 

 SECTION 2 – Exemptions from Procedure Rules 

 SECTION 3 – The Procurement Framework and Central Purchasing 

 SECTION 4 – Quotation and Tenders 

 

 4.1 General Requirements 

 4.2 Quotations (Procurement up to £50,000) 

 4.3 Tenders (Procurement over £50,000) 

  4.3.1 Selecting Suppliers 

  4.3.2 Open Competitive Tenders 

  4.3.3 Selective Tenders 

  4.3.4 The number of suppliers invited to tender 

  4.3.5 Going out to Tender 

  4.3.6 Receipt of Tenders 

  4.3.7 Opening of Tenders 

  4.3.8 Acceptance of Tenders 

  4.3.9 Tender Evaluation Panel 

 

 SECTION 5 – Other Procurement Rules 

 SECTION 6 – Official Order Rules 

SECTION 1 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1.1 Before undertaking any procurement, Departments should satisfy themselves that: 

 The works, goods or services are required and a need can be demonstrated 

 There are no reasonable alternatives e.g. sharing or utilising spare capacity/inventories 

elsewhere within the Council 

 They are aware of the current statutory contract value thresholds in accordance with 

the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (as amended) as shown on PING 

 Where relevant, they have considered the requirements of the Public Services (Social Value) 

Act 2012 and have recorded/evidenced the outcomes against the associated requirements:- 

 

 how what is proposed to be procured might improve the economic, social and 

environmental well-being of the relevant area 

 how, in conducting the process of procurement, it might act with a view to securing that 

improvement.

  

Page 115



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(December 2014) Part 5.70 

Procurement Procedure Rules apply to the procurement of ALL goods, works or services.  The 

Council’s approved computerised ordering system will be used for all procurement, except where 

otherwise detailed within these Procurement Procedure Rules. 

Procurement can only take place where budgetary provision is available to fund the goods, works 

or services required (see Financial Procedure Rules). 

Where the Council contracts with a third party (who is not an officer of this Council) to supervise a 

contract on its behalf, the Corporate Director/Head of Department entering into that contract will be 

required to ensure that the third party complies with the requirements of these Procurement 

Procedure Rules. 

Where the Council enters into or administers a contract either as an agent, or on behalf of another 

public body the Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules will apply unless written instructions have 

been received by the Council to the contrary. 

These Procurement Procedure Rules will not apply where statute or subordinate legislation 

prescribes otherwise. 

Delegation relating to the engagement of consultancy services is set out separately within the 

“Common to all Portfolio Holders” section of the Constitution.  However, for completeness, the 

Corporate Directors/Heads of Department only have delegated authority for the engagement of 

consultancy services or specialist professional advice up to the value of £15,000 and procurement 

rules must be followed.  For schemes where fees are expected to exceed £15,000 consultation 

with the Portfolio Holder or Committee Chairman is required. 

Procurement within the Council is co-ordinated by Finance, Benefits and Revenue  Governance 

Services and in all cases where catalogues or other pre-negotiated approaches are not used, then 

consultation with the Finance, Benefits and Revenue Governance Services should be undertaken 

to identify potential alternative options or additional procurement opportunities. 

Where building works form part of the procurement, then it is expected that Departments will 

discuss their requirements with the internal surveyor as appropriate. 

1.2 Use of Local Suppliers 

 All Procurement should be in line with the Council’s Procurement Strategy which includes the 

recognition of the use of local suppliers and providing a fair basis for them to compete for the 

provision of goods, works and services required by the Council. 

SECTION 2 – EXEMPTION FROM PROCUREMENT RULES 

2.1 The Corporate Directors/Heads of Department shall be exempt from the need to obtain competitive 

quotations/prices where any of the following circumstances apply:- 

 (a) The goods or services are procured from an in-house service 

 (b) The goods are proprietary items of which there is only one supplier, or are sold by all 

suppliers at a fixed price 

Page 116



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(December 2014) Part 5.70 

  

 (c) The matter is one of urgency as determined by the appropriate Corporate Director/Head of 

Department following consultation with the responsible Portfolio Holder or the Leader of the 

Council. 

 (d) The contractor or supplier is specified for works to this Council for which an external client 

is making payment. 

 (e) Where the work is of a specialist nature and the Corporate Director/Head of Department 

can demonstrate that it is not possible to obtain more than one quotation or tender. 

 (f) For the engagement of Counsel by the Assistant Director (Governance). 

 (g) Where a partnership arrangement has been entered into with a contractor or a supplier as 

a result of competitive tendering, and the proposed procurement is within or related to the 

documented scope of that partnership arrangement.  In such cases the Corporate 

Director/Head of Department must be able to demonstrate that the proposed procurement 

through such a partnership arrangement is advantageous to the Council (e.g. continuity of 

service or product supply, or extension of existing arrangements).  The documentation will 

be issued will take the form of a contract variation as determined in the partnership contract 

and/or via the Official Ordering rules or if appropriate the documentation to be issued will 

be as required by the  Procurement Procedure Rules for the value of the procurement.  (EU 

limits must be observed to ensure no thresholds are exceeded). 

 (h) For purchases from petty cash. 

 In all cases where an exemption is applied the Corporate Director/Head of Department shall 

maintain a record to evidence this. 

2.2 Further exemption from Procurement Procedure Rules may be sought where a Head of 

Department can demonstrate that exemption is justified by special circumstances. 

 (a) Where no specific exemption is provided above: 

 Where the value of the contract or procurement is estimated to be less than £50,000 

exemption may be granted by the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the Corporate 

Finance & Governance Portfolio Holder. The procuring service must publish an Officer 

Decision to record this. 

 

 Where the total value of the contract, or procurement, is estimated to be between £50,000 

and £250,000 the Corporate Finance & Governance Portfolio Holder may, on the 

recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer, grant exemption.  In such cases a formal 

Portfolio Holder decision must be made. 

 

 Where the total contract, or procurement, is estimated to exceed £250,000, the Cabinet, or 

a Committee may, on the recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer, grant exemption.   

 

Page 117



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(December 2014) Part 5.70 

 

 

In such cases a record of the exemption must be made in the minutes of the Cabinet, or 

Committee. 

2.3 Alternative/Indirect Service Delivery 

 Where the Council seeks to implement alternative delivery options, for whole or parts of services, 

those procurements will be achieved in accordance with the Council’s Procurement Strategy.  Such 

procurements may not necessarily be able to be undertaken within Procurement Procedure Rules 

given the number and combination of different procurement routes and processes that may be 

applicable, but must:- 

(i) Comply with all relevant statutory provisions including European Procurement Directives. 

(ii) Follow a documented process determined by the responsible Corporate Director/Head of 

Department, the Chief Financial Officer and the Assistant Director (Governance), and 

agreed by Management Team and the Cabinet, in advance of the process.  The process 

must demonstrate compliance with the principals of openness and accountability. 

(iii) Be capable of providing clear probity trails, particularly in respect of the opening and 

evaluation of any associated bids or tenders. 

(iv) Comply with any Procurement Procedure Rules that remain applicable, or offer alternatives 

that meet the requirements of the Chief Financial Officer and the Assistant Director 

(Governance). 

SECTION 3 – THE PROCUREMENT FRAMEWORK 

3.1 All procurement is expected to following the following process/framework taking each step in 

sequence noting that the overall value of procurement is not the initial consideration.  Finance, 

Benefits and Revenue Governance Services should be consulted at the relevant stage of the 

process as necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 118



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(December 2014) Part 5.70 

 

 
 
               
 
 
 

YES 
 
              NO 

YES 
         See section 2.2 

 
 

 
 

NO 
NO   

    
                 

            
                   NO 

                   
   
               NO 
     Yes (so can’t ‘piggy back’)                    
 
            
 
     
 
 
    NO  
 
 
 
 
    NO 
            
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Spending Need Identified  

Is there a suitable Internal Provider / Contractor that 

meets the procurement need? 

Discuss arrangements with Internal 

provider 

Is there a suitable TDC let contract already in place 

that meets the procurement need that can be ‘piggy 

backed’ 

Confirmation of price and other 

associated arrangements should be 

discussed with identified provider(s) or 

framework/contract rules followed as 

appropriate 

Is there a suitable catalogue / central contract / 

framework or Government sponsored list in place 

that meets the procurement need 

Will proposed     

aggregate spend 

impact on EU 

limits Threshold 

Limits as set out 

in Regulations  

Discuss 

arrangement 

with external 

provider / 

confirm price / 

place order  
Is there a contract negotiated by another body 

that meets the procurement need 
(EU Tendered as appropriate in accordance 

with Regulations 

Is the Procurement for Building Works?  

Select Suppliers from 

Constructionline following 

quotation and tender rules 

YES NO 

If building works, discuss 

requirements with internal surveyor 

where applicable 

Is there a suitable Local / Other Supplier list that meets the procurement 

need? 

Based on Value of the Spend, Follow 

Quotation and Tender Rules set out in 

section 4.2 and 4.3 using local / 

other supplier list(s)  

Based on Value of the Spend, Follow 

Quotation and Tender Rules set out in 

section 4.2 and 4.3 but going out to 

the wider market.  

Where more than one provider forms part of the 

contract or framework, then the principles of Section 

4.2.4 should be followed or quotation / tender rules 

applied where necessary 

Page 119



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(December 2014) Part 5.70 

 

3.2 Central Purchasing 

 This includes: 

 Central Contracts – Where the Council has taken advantage of negotiating with an external 

provider for the supply of goods, works or services. 

 

 Partnership Agreements – Where the Council has decided to enter into partnership 

agreements either directly with other public bodies, or as part of a consortium of public 

bodies, for the procurement of goods, works or services. 

 

Procurement Procedure Rules will be followed to select the supplier/contractor to be used 

for central contracts or if this Council is undertaking the tendering process to select the 

supplier/contractor under a partnership approach. 

 

 Specialist call-off contracts - Where contracts have been tendered/negotiated by other 

public bodies and include the option for other Public Bodies to participate. 

 If the use of any such contract is not considered to offer Value for Money, then the relevant 

Corporate Director/Head of Department should consult with Finance, Benefits and Revenue 

Services the Chief Financial Officer and the Assistant Director (Governance) in order to 

identify the most appropriate/advantageous procurement route. 

SECTION 4 – QUOTATIONS AND TENDERS 

4.1 General Requirements 

 (a) Disaggregation of any procurement, in order to apply a lower level to each of the parts is 

not permitted. 

 (b) Where any procurement spans a number of periods, or years, the total estimated cost will 

be the cumulative total of all periods, or years covered. 

 (c) The use of electronic “portals” or other electronic means must be used to widely advertise 

goods, works or services required by the Council where appropriate, to ensure equal 

opportunity between local and non-local suppliers. 

 (d) Procurement up to £50,000 (excluding VAT) – Quotation Rules Apply (Section 4.2). 

 (e) Procurement over £50,000 (excluding VAT) – Tender Rules Apply (Section 4.3). 

4.2 QUOTATIONS (Procurement up to £50,000 excluding VAT) 
After the appropriate procurement route has been identified by following the framework 
set out in 3.1 above and if appropriate: 

 
4.2.1 Procurement up to £10,000 (excluding VAT) 
 
 

Page 120



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.74 

 
Where procurement is less than £2,500 then value for money should be demonstrated by 
obtaining two prices where possible. 
 
 Where procurement is in excess of £2,500, the seeking of two prices would be expected, with 

evidence retained by the department. 

4.2.2 Procurement over £10,000, but not expected to exceed £50,000 (excluding VAT) 

 A minimum of three quotations should be sought by the department in addition to the production of 

a documented specification to include: 

(i) Identification of the procurement of goods, works or services required. 

(ii) Identification of any periods over which the goods, works or services are to be provided.  In 

appropriate cases, provide for the payment of liquidated damages by a contractor where 

there is a failure to complete the contract within the period(s) specified. 

(iii) Provision for the retention of stated sums/percentages and the retention period to be 

applied where appropriate. 

(iv) Provision for the contractor to provide a performance bond, or parent company guarantee 

where appropriate. 

(v) Unless an exemption is obtained from the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) or the Assistant 

Director (Governance), the Council Standard Contract for Services must be used when 

seeking quotations for £25,000 and above.  When seeking an exemption, the relevant 

department will identify why any additional or replacement terms and conditions are 

necessary for the service being sought. 

(vi) All contractors or suppliers asked to provide a quotation must be advised that the quotation 

must be sent to a specified e-mail address, and that quotations e-mailed to any other 

Council e-mail address will be disqualified. 

4.2.3 All quotations shall be sought electronically: 

 The responsible Corporate Director/Head of Department shall arrange for a secure e-mail address 

to be set up on the Council’s e-mail system.  Access to this e-mail address must not be available 

until the time of quotation opening.  Access to the secure e-mail address shall be controlled by an 

independent senior member of staff not involved with the project or tender process or a member of 

the Procurement Service. 

Where the lowest quotation received exceeds £50,000 (excluding VAT), Tender Rules shall be 

followed from that stage as if tenders had been sought. 

If the value of the lowest quotation received exceeds the limit of the quotation category applied, 

then the Corporate Director/Head of Department must seek sufficient further quotations applicable 

to the level of the value of that lowest quotation. 

 

Page 121



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.74 

 

4.2.4 The Corporate Director/Head of Department is under no obligation to accept any of the quotations.  

However where they are prepared to accept a quotation, the most financially advantageous 

quotation should be accepted unless other factors such as quality, local   supply, performance 

and deliverability are also considered as part of the selection process, in accordance with the 

Council’s overall requirements to demonstrate Value for Money. Evidence is expected to be 

retained and recorded in an Officer Decision, to support such decisions where procurement 

exceeds £10,000. 

4.3 TENDERS (Procurement greater than £50,000 excluding VAT) 

 After the appropriate procurement route has been identified by following the framework set 

out in 3.1 above and if appropriate: 

4.3.1 Selection of Suppliers 

 Tenders Over European Procurement Regulation Statutory Thresholds    

 (a) Where the total estimated value of a proposed contract over its term is expected to exceed 

the appropriate current European Procurement regulation Public Contract Regulations 

2015 (as amended) thresholds, such regulations will take precedence over these tender 

procedures. 

 Tenders Under European Procurement Regulation Statutory Thresholds   

 The appropriate Corporate Director/Head of Department will determine whether to use Open 

Competitive Tendering or Selective Tendering as set out separately below. 

4.3.2 Open Competitive Tenders 

 A notice inviting tenders shall be prepared which should:- 

 (i) Set out the nature and purpose of the contract and specify that expressions of interest are 

sought and set out details of where further information/tender documents can be obtained. 

 (ii) Be advertised via the Council’s electronic “portal” that is open to all potential suppliers or 

alternatively in at least one newspaper or journal circulating among suppliers/contractors 

who undertake such contracts.  The notice period to be allowed for potential suppliers to 

request additional tender documentation should be determined by the Corporate 

Director/Head of Department. 

 Following the expiry of the notice period, Tender documentation will be sent to interested parties in 

accordance with SECTION 4.3.5. 

4.3.3 Selective Tendering 

 Where the Council can access a central/framework arrangement, government sponsored list or a 

contract negotiated by another public body as set out in SECTION 3.2 above, more than one 

supplier may be eligible under such arrangements.  If this is the case, tender documentation  

Page 122



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.74 

 

 should be sent to the relevant parties in accordance with SECTION 4.3.5.  In all other cases the 

following process should be undertaken: 

  A public notice shall:- 

 1. Specify details of the goods, works or services to be tendered. 

 2. Specify a time limit determined by the Corporate Director/Head of Department during which 

time potential suppliers can request that they be considered for inclusion in the associated 

tender process. 

 3. After expiry of the period specified in the public notice, the responsible Corporate 

Director/Head of Department will undertake an evaluation of the suppliers.  This evaluation 

may be subject to Tender Evaluation Panel review. 

 4. The responsible Corporate Director/Head of Department, and where appropriate the 

Tender Evaluation Panel, will in consultation with the appropriate Portfolio Holder or 

Chairman of the relevant Committee select those contractors suitable and capable to tender 

for the proposed contract. 

 Following the conclusion of the evaluation process, Tender documentation will be sent to interested 

parties in accordance with SECTION 4.3.5 below: 

4.3.4 The Number of Suppliers Invited to Tender 

 Invitations to tender shall ensure fair competition and where possible include a mix of local and 

non-local suppliers and shall be sent to:- 

 Not less than 4 contractors, with the maximum number as determined by the relevant Corporate 

Director/Head of Department.  (Where less than 4 suitable contractors have been identified from 

the selection process, then all shall be invited to tender). 

4.3.5 Going out to Tender 

 General Rules 

 Tenders must: 

 (i) Specify the goods, works or services to be supplied, contract value, any discounts or other 

deductions that may apply, the period(s) during which the contract is to be performed and 

any other relevant terms and conditions that the responsible Corporate Director/Head of 

Department considers necessary. 

 (ii) In appropriate cases, provide for the retention of stated sums/percentages and the retention 

period to be applied. 

 (iii) In appropriate cases, provided for the payment of liquidated damages by a contractor where 

there is a failure to complete the contract within the period(s) specified. 

Page 123



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.75 

 

 (iv) In appropriate cases, and at the discretion of the responsible Corporate Director/Head of 

Department, make provision requiring the contractor to provide a performance bond and/or 

a parent company guarantee. 

 (v) Identify the basis on which the submitted tenders will be evaluated.  (Where the evaluation 

is other than a straightforward financial evaluation based upon lowest submitted price, the 

proposed evaluation process must be submitted to the Tender Evaluation Panel for 

agreement before tenders are sought). 

 (vi) Tenders are required to be submitted on a form of tender prepared by, or agreed by, the 

Council which shall include a statement that the Council will not be bound to consider or 

accept any tender. 

 (vii) Specify the closing date and time by which tenders must be received. 

 (viii) Where the Corporate Director/Head of Department considers that the Council may benefit 

from the use of post tender negotiation, that officer shall ensure that such intention is 

included in the documentation submitted to tenderers and before seeking tenders agree a 

suitable procedure with the Tender Evaluation Panel. 

 (ix) Specify social value considerations as appropriate. 

 (x) Unless an exemption is obtained from the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) or the Assistant 

Director (Governance), the Council’s Standard Contract for Services must be used.  The 

draft contract must be supplied as part of the tender exercise.  When seeking an exemption, 

the relevant department will identify why an alternative model contract is required or any 

additional or replacement terms and conditions are necessary for the service being sought. 

4.3.6 Receipt of Tenders 

 Unless determined otherwise by the responsible Corporate Director/Head of Department in 

consultation with Finance, Benefits and Revenues Governance Services, all tenders should be 

requested to be returned electronically by e-mail.  However, whatever form of tender response is 

implemented, all tenders must be submitted in the same manner. 

 The responsible Corporate Director/Head of Department shall arrange for a secure e-mail address 

to be set up on the Council’s e-mail system.  Access to this e-mail system must not be available 

until the time of tender opening.  Access to the secure e-mail address shall be controlled by an 

independent senior member of staff not involved with the project or tender process or a member of 

the Procurement Service. 

 Tender documentation sent to potential providers must state that tenders must only be sent to the 

specified e-mail address and that tenders e-mailed to any other Council e-mail address or after the 

closing date and time will be disqualified. 

 

Page 124



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.76 

 

  As soon as practical after the closing date and time, tenders must be submitted to the Assistant 

Director (Finance & IT) or their a designated Governance Services Officer who will arrange for 

the formal recording of the tenders submitted. 

 In exceptional circumstances where hard copy tenders are requested, then the email requirement 

above is replaced by the tender returns being addressed to the Head of Democratic Services & 

Elections or their designated Officer.  Prospective tenderers must be instructed to clearly mark 

envelopes with the fact that it is a tender submission and that it is not to be opened until after the 

relevant closing date and time. 

4.3.7 Opening of Tenders 

 The following rules apply to both electronic and hard copy submission of tenders: 

 (a) All tenders shall be opened at the same time in the presence of:- 

 (i) The Head of Democratic Services & Elections or other officer to whom they have 

delegated responsibility 

 (ii) The responsible Corporate Director/Head of Department or other officer to whom 

they have delegated responsibility. 

 (iii) The Chief Financial Officer, or other officer to whom they have delegated 

responsibility. 

 (a)(1) Electronic Submission of Tenders 

 Having obtained the necessary password from IT Services, the Head of Democratic Services 

& Elections (or other officer to whom they have delegated the responsibility) will access the 

appropriate electronic tenderbox and open, in turn, the Form of Tender document from the 

Tenderers contained therein. That Officer will also check the “Spam” email box to ensure 

that no Tendered documents have been misidentified. 

 That Officer will check that the Tenderer’s email was received before the deadline for receipt 

of tenders and will record the name of the tenderer and the amount of the tender. The Officer 

will then forward, by email, the Tenderer’s email to the relevant Officer who is overseeing 

the tender process. The Officer will then repeat the process for all of the Tenderers. The 

Officer will then closedown the electronic tenderbox and will then email the password to the 

relevant Officer who is overseeing the tender process so that they can conduct their own 

checks et cetera. 

 The Officer will also complete the Record of Tenders Received (containing the information 

set out in (b) below) and they will also email that document to the relevant Officer who is 

overseeing the tender process for their records et cetera. 

 (a)(2) Hard Copy Submission of Tenders 

Page 125



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.76 

 

 As soon as possible after the relevant closing date and time the hard copy tenders received 

will be opened in the presence of:- 

(i) The Head of Democratic Services & Elections or his nominated representative; 

(ii) The responsible Corporate Director/Head of Department or their nominated 

representative; and 

(ii) At their sole discretion as to the necessity of their attendance, the Council’s Head of 

Internal Audit, or their nominated representative. 

 The Officer referred to (i) above will open the tender envelope, locate the Form of Tender, 

record the name of the tenderer and the amount of the tender and initial against the amount 

on the Form of Tender. The Officer referred to in (ii) above will also similarly append their 

initials. That process will then be repeated for all of the Tender Envelopes. 

The Officer referred to in (i) above will also complete the Record of Tenders Received 

(containing the information set out in (b) below) and they will produce two copies. One will 

be kept by that Officer and the second will be handed to the Officer referred to in (ii) above 

for their records et cetera. 

 (b) The Head of Democratic Services & Elections, or other officer to whom they have delegated 

that responsibility, shall prepare and maintain a register of tenders received and shall 

record in that register the following particulars:- 

  (i) The title and closing date and time for receipt of tenders 
  (ii) The date upon which the tender was received (if it was a hard copy tender) 

(iii) Where a tender is received after the closing time on the closing date and is 
considered or accepted, the reason(s) why it was considered or accepted 

(iv) The name of the tenderer and the amount of the tender 
(v) The date upon which the tenders received were opened 
(vi) All officers present at the opening of hard copy tenders shall immediately sign 

against the relevant particulars in the register Record of Tenders Received 
document as evidence of such tenders having been opened in their presence. 

(vii) The signature of the officer to whom the hard copy tenders were handed after 
opening. 

 
(c) Any tender received after the closing time and date shall, unless Procurement Procedure 

Rule 4.3.7 (b)(iii) applies thereto, be returned by the Head of Democratic Services & 
Elections, or their delegated Officer promptly to the tenderer.  The tender may be opened 
to ascertain the name and postal or email address of the tenderer, but no details of the 
tender shall be disclosed to any other party whether internal or external.  

Page 126



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.80 

 
4.3.8 Acceptance of Tenders 
 

(a) Unless the requirements of Procurement Procedure Rules 4.3.5 (v) have been applied, the 
most financially advantageous tender to the Council shall be accepted by the Corporate 
Director/Head of Department (in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder or 
Committee Chairman). 

 
(b) Where Procurement Procedure Rule 4.3.5 (v) applies, the tenders must be evaluated in 

accordance with the agreed evaluation process/criteria, and evidence retained to 
demonstrate this.  The tender identified as most advantageous to the Council shall be 
accepted by the Corporate Director/Head of Department (in consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder or Committee Chairman). 

 
(c) In those instances when only one Tender has been submitted but it is deemed 

advantageous to the Council following the evaluation process, that tender shall be accepted 
by the Corporate Director/Head of Department, in consultation with the Corporate Finance 
& Governance Portfolio Holder and the relevant Portfolio Holder or Committee Chairman. 

 
 The Corporate Director/Head of Department will produce a detailed report explaining why 

this course of action has been pursued and the said report will be circulated, alongside the 
Officer decision, to all members of the Council. 

 
4.3.9 Tender Evaluation Consultation 
 

The Council will undertake a Tender Evaluation Consultation of all tenders, estimated at over 
£50,000 (excluding VAT) being sought.  This should include, where appropriate, any proposed 
method of evaluation of expressions of interest from prospective contractors.  The Consultation will 
be led by the relevant Corporate Director or their designated officer and will include officers 
determined by them along with a senior officer from the department letting the contract. 
 
The Tender Evaluation Consultation shall also have the right to include technical 
assistance/expertise from other departments as considered necessary. 
 
Officer decisions recording the award of contract should include reference to the views/comments 
identified by the consultees. 
 
An external representation can be accepted into any Tender Evaluation Consultation.  In all cases 
where an external representative is included, they must be asked to declare any potential interests. 

 
SECTION 5 – OTHER PROCUREMENT RULES 
 
5.1 Contract Clauses 
 
 Unless an exemption is obtained from the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) or the Assistant Director 

(Governance), the Council’s Standard Contract for Services must be used.  The draft Contract must 
be supplied as part of the tender exercise.  When seeking an exemption, the relevant department 
will identify why an alternative model contract is required or any additional or replacement terms 
and conditions are necessary for the service being sought.  In all cases, contracts must follow any 
guidance issued by the Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officers in this regard. 

 
5.2 Authorised Officers 

Page 127



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.80 

 
(a) Each Corporate Director/Head of Department is responsible for advising the Chief Financial 

Officer, in writing, of those officers who are empowered to enter into contracts, or 
procurement, on behalf of the Council, and any maximum limits on the values concerned. 

 
(b) Each Corporate Director/Head of Department shall advise the Chief Financial Officer in 

writing, immediately of any changes to those officers so empowered, or their limits. 
 
(c) Only officers so empowered will be provided with a level of access to any computerised 

procurement system operated by, or on behalf of, the Council, that enables them to 
authorise official orders within the limits set. 

 
5.3 Nominated Sub-Contractors and Suppliers 
 

(a) Competitive quotations/tenders shall be sought for the execution of works or for the supply 
of goods or materials by a nominated subcontractor in accordance with these Procurement 
Procedure Rules, unless it is considered impractical to do so. 

 
(b) Where the estimated value of the subcontract does not exceed £50,000 the responsible 

Corporate Director/Head of Department shall determine whether it is practical to obtain 
quotations. 

 
(c) Where the estimated value of the subcontract exceeds £50,000 and the responsible 

Corporate Director/Head of Department considers the obtaining of tenders to be impractical 
the approval of the Leader of the Council, relevant Portfolio Holder or Committee Chairman 
for the proposed course of action shall be sought. 

 
(d) The invitation to a subcontractor to quote/tender shall include an undertaking that, if 

selected, the subcontractor will enter into a contract with the main contractor on terms which 
indemnify the main contractor against their own obligations under the main contract in 
respect of goods, works or services included in their subcontract. 

 
SECTION 6 – OFFICIAL ORDER RULES 
 
6.1 General Requirements 
 

ALL goods, works or services must be subject to an official order unless an exemption is provided 
in Section 6.2 below. 
 
(a) All orders shall be placed using the Council’s approved ordering system, unless exempted 

elsewhere in these Procurement Procedure Rules. 
 
(b) The format of the Council’s approved standard official purchase orders (either hard copy or 

electronic) and any standard terms and conditions to be applied to each order shall be 
determined by the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) and the Assistant Director 
(Governance). 

 
(c) In the event of the need to issue a variation to an order, this will be by issue of a further 

order and must clearly identify the order number of the order to be varied. 
 
(d) All orders must:- 
 

Page 128



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.80 

 
 

(i) Bear the name and logo of Tendring District Council 
(ii) Clearly identify goods, works, or services to be procured, and all other detail as 
is  mandatory on the Council’s approved ordering computer system. 
(iii) Contain any other detail, terms and conditions that are applicable to that order.  
 For the engagement of consultancy services or specialist professional advice this 
 must include a condition relating to professional indemnity insurance. 
(iv) Have a value or an accurate estimate of the value of the goods, works, or services 
 entered into on the Council’s electronic ordering system. 
(v) Must be authorised by an officer duly authorised by the responsible Corporate 
 Director/Head of Department. 

  
6.2 Exemptions from Official Order Rules 
 

Verbal orders, orders that are not accompanied by an official order or not exempt as set out below 
should only be made in special/exceptional circumstances and only after consultation with the 
Assistant Director (Finance & IT) or their designated officer.  In the case of emergencies where an 
officer needs to take appropriate action to protect the Council’s position or its assets then a verbal 
order can be made but the Assistant Director (Finance & IT) must be informed as soon as practical 
thereafter. 
 
Where verbal orders are made they should be followed up by entering the necessary details on the 
Council’s ordering system in accordance with 6.1 above as soon as possible. 
 
A Corporate Director/Head of Department shall be exempt from the need to raise an official order 
in the following circumstances:- 
 
(a) For cash purchases using the Council’s Petty Cash system, where ordering using the 
 approved computer system is considered not to be practical.  A maximum limit of £50 
 (excluding VAT) is applicable to each procurement made using the Council’s Petty Cash 
 system. 
(b) For the periodic payment of rent and National Non Domestic Rates. 
(c) For the periodic payment of former public utility supplies. 
(d) Where the nature of the goods, works or service requires an appropriate standard form 

of written contract. 
(e) For contract variations where a written contract requires a form of written contract 
 variation, that is not in the format of the Council’s standard official order. 
(f) For HRA assets where orders for goods, works or services are required to be raised 
 through the Council’s authorised Housing Management computer system. 
(g) For the engagement of Counsel by the. Assistant Director (Governance). 
(h) Where the Chief Financial Officer has agreed the use of purchase cards or where one of 
 the Council’s credit cards is used. However, whenever possible, an Official Order should 
 be raised as soon as possible for audit and recording purposes after the transaction has 
 been made using a corporate credit card. 
(i) Any other circumstances as agreed, in advance of the procurement, by the Assistant 
 Director (Finance & IT). 
(j) Where goods or services are procured in-house. 

 
 
 

Page 129



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 
 
 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.86 

A.4 APPENDIX L 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 

Tendring District Council recognises the importance of petitions as a means of engaging with local 

communities, enabling the public to air concerns, and as a mechanism for generating service 

improvements.  These pages set out what a petition is, how the public can submit a petition, how it will 

be dealt with and what the Council can do to respond to the issues raised. 

What Constitutes a Petition 

Any communication which is signed by, or sent to the Council by 30 or more than 30 people who live, 

work or study within Tendring shall be treated as a petition provided that such communication has a 

clear message or instruction upon which it would wish the Council to act. 

Any communication which is signed by, or sent to the Council by less than 30 of the people who live, 

work or study within Tendring shall not be treated as a petition but, where it relates to a matter for which 

the Council has responsibility for, it shall be forwarded to the appropriate officer of the Council to 

acknowledge and advise what action, if any, will be taken. 

Signatory Eligibility 

The Council is keen to receive feedback from all residents, visitors and from people working or studying 

in the Tendring area, through various communication channels.  However, only those people who are 

either (a) permanent residents of Tendring or (b) non-residents who can be clearly identified as either 

working or studying in Tendring can trigger a formal petition response. 

There is no legislation supporting the minimum age requirement for a person to initiate or support a 

petition.  Accordingly, children and young people have the ability to submit a petition as it is deemed 

they have the same rights and opportunity for their voices to be heard as well as adults.  However, it is 

recognised that in practice, a teacher or parent would oversee the submission of a petition from school 

children where such children are under 16 years of age. 

Whilst the Council welcomes petitions as a means of highlighting concerns within a local area, the lead 

petitioner has a responsibility to ensure that any petition submitted is done so under the principle of 

good faith and be decent, honest and respectful. 

Information to be included 

Any petition submitted must contain the following: 

 A clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition, the area to which the petition 

relates and what action the petitioners want the Council to take; 

 

Page 130



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 
 
 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.87 

 The contact details for the petition organiser (lead petitioner) so the Council knows who to 

contact (where the lead petitioner is not identified, the Council shall correspond with the person 

named first on the petition); 

 

 The name, full address, postcode and signature of any person supporting a traditional paper 

petition (address details will be checked). Such a petition must be accompanied by a dated 

covering letter that identifies the key information outlined in this procedure about the purpose of 

the petition, what action is called for and contact details for the lead petitioner; 

 

 The name, postcode and email address for those persons who sign up to an electronic petition 

or e-petition; and 

 

 The date the petition was submitted. 

 

Any petition that does not comply with the above requirements will be deemed invalid. 

1. How to Submit a Petition to the Council 

 Petitions can be submitted to the Council in the following ways: 

 E-petition – The petition must be emailed to democraticservices@tendringdc.gov.uk. 
submitted via the Petitions function on the Council’s website 
(www.tendringdc.gov.uk). Where no end date to an e-petition is specified, the Council 
shall set this at three months 93 days from the date of receipt of the petition. 
 

 Paper petitions must be sent to The Committee Services Manager, Tendring District Council, 

Democratic Services & Elections, Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, Essex CO15 

1SE. 

2. What happens when a Petition is submitted? 

 Receipt of a petition will be formally acknowledged to the lead petitioner in writing or by email 

as appropriate, within five working days of its receipt. In relation to an E-petition the lead 

petitioner will be informed that the Council will deem the petition to be held ‘in 

abeyance’ until such time as the end date has passed. At which time the Council will 

count up and, if felt necessary, verify the signatures etc. The Council will then action 

the petition in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme. 

 

 The Council will accept any petition on face value but reserves the right to verify the 

signatures or investigate further, if deemed necessary.  The petition must not be vexatious 

or frivolous or defamatory or offensive. It must not be substantially the same as a Petition 

previously received and dealt with by the Council within the past 12 months.  

 

Page 131

mailto:democraticservices@tendringdc.gov.uk


Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 
 
 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.87 

 It must also relate to a matter for which the Council has responsibility for, subject to the 

exceptions detailed below: 

Petitions Received in respect of Planning Applications, the Local Plan making process and 
other Regulatory Matters (such as licensing applications submitted under the Licensing Act 
2003 and the Gambling Act 2005)
 
Petitions received in respect of planning or licensing applications shall not be treated as 
petitions for the purposes of this scheme but will be sent to the appropriate department and 
will be considered as representations received in relation to that particular application or 
planning matter. 
 
Petitions received in respect of the Local Plan making process will be referred to the 
Planning Policy & Local Plan Committee. 

 

Community Governance Petitions 

 

Community Governance petitions will be considered initially against the relevant provisions 

of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. Those petitions that 

do not meet the criteria under that Act to trigger a Community Governance Review will then 

be considered against the criteria contained within this Scheme. 

 

Petitions for a Referendum for an Elected Mayor and Cabinet or a Committee System of 

Local Government 

 

Petitions for a referendum for an Elected Mayor and Cabinet or a return to a Committee 

System of Local Government will be considered initially against the relevant provisions of 

the Local Government Act 2000 and related legislation such as the Local Authorities 

(Referendums) (Petitions and Directions) (England) Regulations 2011 (as amended). 

Those petitions that do not meet the criteria under that Act and supporting legislation to 

trigger a Referendum will then be considered against the criteria contained within this 

Scheme. 

 

The Head of Democratic Services & Elections (or, in their absence or other unavailability, 

the Committee Services Manager) will decide whether a petition is valid and/or acceptable. 

In making their decision those Officers will consult, if necessary, the Monitoring Officer.  If 

the decision made is to reject the petition as being invalid and/or unacceptable the Head of 

Democratic Services and Elections (or Committee Services Manager) will inform the Lead 

Petitioner accordingly, explaining the reasons why the petition cannot be accepted under 

this scheme and, if appropriate, informing the petitioner that the petition will be forwarded 

to the relevant department together with a request that they respond directly to the petitioner 

on the matters raised. 

 

Page 132



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 
 
 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.90 

 If the issue contained within the petition is not something which the Council would ordinary 

consider in public as it would require the disclosure of confidential or exempt information (as 

defined in local government law), the lead petitioner will be informed accordingly, explaining 

the reasons why the petition cannot be accepted under this scheme and where appropriate, 

referring the petitioner to the relevant department and advising them as to how their views 

can be expressed via alternative means. 

 

 If the issue contained within the petition does not relate to any functions or responsibilities 

of the District Council, but does relate to a matter for which Essex County Council or other 

body or partner is responsible, the petition will be forwarded to that organisation and the 

lead petitioner advised accordingly. 

 

 Each petition received shall be based on a tiered system whereby: 

 

(a) A valid petition containing 30 to 500 signatures from Tendring residents or non-residents 

who can be clearly identified as either working or studying in Tendring, will be reported 

to Council for information.  It will also then be presented to the first practicable meeting 

of the Cabinet (if it relates to a matter that is an Executive function under the law) 

or the appropriate committee and then, if so requested, the matter will be 

investigated and a report will be brought back to the Cabinet/Committee for 

consideration; 

 

(b) A valid petition containing 501, or more signatures from Tendring residents or non-

residents who can be clearly identified as either working or studying in Tendring, will 

be reported to Council to advise that the petition has been received.  Once it has been 

investigated, a report will be prepared and presented with the petition at the next 

meeting of the Council for consideration. If it relates to a matter that is an Executive 

function under the law the petition will also be presented to the first practicable meeting 

of the Cabinet and any views, comments or recommendations made by Cabinet will be 

incorporated into the aforementioned report to Council. 

 

(c) The appropriate Ward Member(s) will be informed of receipt of a petition and any action 

to be taken. 

 

Note: Where the subject of a petition requires urgent action (i.e. it cannot wait until the 

following meeting of the Council) it is proposed that the petition be investigated and a report 

be presented to the first available meeting of the Council ( appropriate committee or 

Cabinet (if it relates to a matter that is an Executive function under the law). 

 

In the period immediately before an election or referendum the Council may need to deal 

with petitions differently.  If this is the case, the Head of Democratic Services & Elections, 

Page 133



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 
 
 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.90 

having consulted the Monitoring Officer, will explain, in writing, the reasons to the Lead 

Petitioner and inform them of the revised timescale that will apply. 

 When a petition is being initially considered by a committee or the Cabinet (or Council, 
following investigation and a report being brought back), the lead petitioner will be invited to 
address the committee, Cabinet or Council as the case maybe, outlining the reasons for 
the submission of the petition and what action they would like the Council to take.  The lead 
petitioner (or his or her representative) will have a time limit of three minutes for their speech 
and the petition will then be discussed by Councillors.  A Ward Councillor can, at the request 
of the lead petitioner, present the petition to the committee, Cabinet or Council, as the case 
maybe, on their behalf of the relevant petitioners. and will have a time limit of three 
minutes for their speech.  
 

 Where the lead petitioner requests a representative or a Ward Councillor to speak on 
their behalf, the lead petitioner must inform the Head of Democratic Services & 
Elections (or Committee Services Manager) in writing or by email in advance of the 
relevant meeting of the name of that representative / Ward Councillor. 
 

 Should two petitions be received on the same issue (including if one is in support and one 
opposing a course of action) then both lead petitioners will be invited to address Cabinet or 
Council at the same time. 
 

 The relevant Ward Member(s), Cabinet Member(s) and officers will be informed when a valid 
petition covering their Wards and/or areas of responsibility is received and when and how 
the petition will be considered. 
 

 The lead petitioner will be informed, in writing, of the committee’s, Cabinet’s or Council’s 
decision as the case maybe and this information will also be published on the Council’s 
website via the Minutes of the relevant meeting at which the petition was dealt with.  If a 
further meeting is to be held to consider the issues raised in the petition, the lead petitioner 
will be supplied with the relevant details and will also be given the opportunity to attend and, 
if so requested by the chairman, address that meeting and/or if appropriate, answer any 
questions posed at the meeting. 
 

 Relevant Officers will be required to attend any meeting to assist in the scrutiny and 
investigation of issues raised in the petition.  As a general principle, the relevant Officers 
should be at a Head of Service level or above. 

 
 Where possible, the consideration of a petition will be held in public but, in exceptional 

circumstances, it may be necessary for an issue to be considered as a “exempt” item under 
the Local Government Act 1972, the Access to Information Act 1985 and other relevant 
legislation.  In such circumstances, the lead petitioner, public and press will be excluded 
from the meeting (or part of it) but the reasons for their exclusion will be clearly 
communicated to them and will also be included in the Minutes of that meeting.  

 
 
 
 

Page 134



Part 5 – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

SCHEME FOR DEALING WITH PETITIONS 
 
 

 
(Cream) 

(July 2020) Part 5.90 

3. What happens after a Petition has been considered? 
 

There are several courses of action available to the committee, Cabinet or the Council (as 
appropriate) once a petition has been considered, including: 
 
  No action (with reasons as to why no action is proposed)  

 
 Taking the action requested in the petition 

 
 Taking an alternative or amended course of action to that requested in the petition 

(with reasons as to why such action is being taken) 
 

 Undertaking research into the matters raised (this could include referring the matter to the 
relevant Portfolio Holder, or officer of the Council) and holding a meeting with the petitioners. 

 
 Referring the petition to a Committee or Cabinet or an external person/body (such as the 

County Council or Government body or Public Services or the Ombudsman or 
Member(s) of Parliament) 

 
 Holding a public meeting 

 
 Holding an inquiry 

 
 Providing a written response to the lead petitioner setting out the Council’s views on the 

request in the petition 
 

 Considering the petition at Deferring consideration of the petition to a future committee, 
Cabinet or Council meeting 

 
 Calling for a referendum (if permitted under legislation and subject to costs) 

 
 

 

Page 135



 

 

A.4 APPENDIX M 
 

Members’ Referral Scheme for Planning Applications - Guidance Note January 201922 

The Terms of Reference of the Planning Committee as set out in the Constitution (Green Part 3.14) 

delegates all planning and conservation matters to the Assistant Director (Planning) Officers except in 

relation to certain planning applications, which are for determination by the Committee.  One of the 

exceptions listed is where Members request that an application should be referred to the Planning 

Committee.  The wording (Part 3.15) is as follows: 

(vi) Within 28 35 days of the commencement of formal consultation, a written request is received 

from a Tendring District Councillor in accordance with the Member Referral Scheme requesting 

that the application should be brought before the Planning Committee for determination giving 

material planning reasons for that request.   

The MEMBER REFERRAL SCHEME is based on the following principles: 

 Elected Members represent their communities and the interests of their ward or of individual 

residents (in accordance with Article 2 of the Constitution);  

 Planning Committee Members are involved in decision-making for the people of the district as 

a whole (in accordance with Article 2 of the Constitution – 2.03 (a) (v)); 

  

 The interests of a ward or individual residents can extend to consideration of planning 

applications submitted in adjacent wards and those where applications have been made which 

have a direct impact on other wards; 

 A member of the Council’s Cabinet may also be permitted to make representations and speak 

on any application but only if the proposed development has a direct impact on the portfolio for 

which the Cabinet member is responsible.  The Leader of the Council must approve the Cabinet 

Member making representations to the Planning Committee and requesting the matter to be 

determined at Committee; 

 If an elected Member requests an application to be referred to the Planning Committee for 

determination, they will be required to personally attend the meeting of the Committee to speak 

on the item.  Planning Services will ensure that the Member is notified when the application is 

scheduled for determination; 

 The Members’ Referral Scheme does not apply to a householder application, which is defined 

as follows: 

 
“A ‘householder’ application is an application to enlarge, expand, improve or alter an existing 

dwelling, to put up a boundary wall of fence for an existing dwelling or carry out an operation in 

the curtilage of an existing dwelling that is ancillary to the dwelling-house”. 

 Members are requested to use the attached letter when referring an application to the Planning 

Committee to be determined, for ease of reference; 

Date:  24th January 2019 22 - Chairman of the Planning Committee 

Page 136



 

 

LETTER TO THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (PLANNING) 

Date: 

Dear Assistant Director (Planning), 

MEMBER REFERRAL SCHEME: PLANNING APPLICATION REF: …………………………….. 

(*)   I am the Ward Councillor for [insert the Ward] and in representing the community*/the 

interests of the ward* or of individual residents* request the above-mentioned application is 

referred to the Planning Committee for determination.  The planning application is located 

within: 

(a) the Ward to which I am elected to(*); or 

(b) is adjacent to the Ward to which I am elected to(*); or 

(c) directly impacts the Ward to which I am elected to because (*) 

…………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

in respect of (b) and (c), I can confirm that I have notified the relevant Ward Councillor(s) 

of my intention to refer this application to the Committee for determination. 

(*)  I am the Cabinet Member for [insert responsibility] and the proposed development has a 

direct impact on the portfolio for which I am responsible.  The Leader of the Council has 

approved representations being made to the Planning Committee. 

(*) I am a current serving member of the Planning Committee and the proposed development 

could be considered of significant importance to the wider district or policy because 

…………………………….  The Planning Committee Chairman has been consulted and 

approves this matter being determined by the Planning Committee.  By making this request 

I confirm that I am not predetermined and will approach the decision making with an open 

mind and therefore have not highlighted any relevant material considerations below. 

The referral is because of the following material planning considerations (and for the reasons 

set out hereunder):- 

In line with/potentially contrary to* the development plan (Local Plan/LDF) or 

Government Guidance (please state relevant policies if known)  

Negative/Positive* impact on urban design/street scene  

 Highways impact and/or other traffic issues  

 Good/Poor* layout and/or density issues  

 Flood Risk  

Page 137



 

 

 Positive/Negative* Impact on neighbours  

 Other material considerations as follows…………………………… …………… ….. …. 

……………………………………………………………………………………………….………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………….  

My reasons for the referral are as follows:- 

 

 

If officers are minded to approve/refuse* then there is no need for this application to be 

referred.  

Please ensure that I am notified of the date of the committee meeting at which this 

application will be considered so that I am able to attend and speak on the item. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

Councillor ………………….. 

 * Delete as appropriate. 

 

Page 138



A.4 APPENDIX N 
 

Article 7 (The Executive/Cabinet) 
 
7.08 Cabinet Procedure Rules 
 
 1. MEETINGS 
 
 1.1 Cabinet Meetings 
 

The Cabinet will meet at times to be agreed by the Leader.  The Cabinet shall meet 
at the Council’s main offices (the Town Hall) or another location to be agreed by 
the Leader.   

 
 1.2 Meetings of the Cabinet 
 

Meetings of the Cabinet and their committees must be held in public in accordance 
with the Access to Information Procedure Rules except where confidential or 
exempt information is to be discussed. 
 
In accordance with the approved Protocol for such matters, the Council will make 
an audio and/or audio-visual live stream and recording of meetings of Cabinet and 
their Committees, which will be made available on the Council’s website for a 
period of at least one year from the date of the relevant meeting. 

 
 1.3 Quorum 
 

The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet shall be three including the Leader or in 
his absence the Deputy Leader. 

 
 1.4 Chairmanship 
 

The Leader (or in his absence the Deputy Leader) will preside at any meeting of 
the Cabinet at which he is present.  

 
 1.5 Who may Attend? 
 

(i) Subject to the Access to Information Rules and the provisions of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, any Councillor may attend meetings of the 
Cabinet.  They may not speak without the consent of the Leader, or in any 
case vote. 

 
(ii) The Leader or Deputy Leader of any political group may, as of right, attend 

meetings of the Cabinet and participate fully in the discussion on all agenda 
items, but cannot vote.  If requested by the Leader or Deputy Leader of a 
group to do so, the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet on a particular matter 
will record their Group’s opposition to all, or part, of a decision. 

 
(iii) Meetings of the Cabinet shall have in attendance the Chief Executive, the 

Chief Financial Officer (or their Deputy), the Monitoring Officer (or their 

Page 139



Deputy) and other relevant Corporate Directors or Assistant Directors in 
the light of items to be discussed, or their nominated representatives, at the 
discretion of the Chief Executive. 

 
(iv) The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer have 

the right to attend, speak on an item of business and present a report to 
discharge their statutory and constitutional duties whenever necessary. 

 
(v) Where a Member has submitted a Motion to Council under Council 

Procedure Rule 12.2 and that motion has been referred to Cabinet 
under Council Procedure Rule 12.6 or Council Procedure Rule 12.7, 
that Member will have the right to attend the relevant meeting of 
Cabinet and present their Motion/answer Cabinet’s questions, as 
appropriately permitted under Council Procedure Rule 12.10. 

 
(vi) The Constitution includes no provision for substitute members at meetings 

of the Executive. 
 

Page 140



QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE 11.2 

The following question has been received, on notice, from a Member: 
 
Question 
 
From Councillor Mick Barry to Councillor Alex Porter, Portfolio 
Holder for Leisure and Tourism: 
 
 “As part of his submission to the Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at their budget scrutiny meeting on 11th January 2023 
the Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Tourism said in a written answer to a 
question from Cllr Barry: ‘You will be aware that the Council has already 
taken the difficult decision to no longer invest in joint use facilities, owned 
by an external organisation. A decision on how to allocate respective 
budgets for these facilities has yet to be taken.’ 
 
Members will be aware that funding for the joint use sports centre facilities 
at Brightlingsea and Harwich was withdrawn following a Cabinet decision 
in December 2021. The rationale for this decision was to make a 
straightforward cost saving, in respect of both revenue spending and 
capital investment. 
 
Since the withdrawal of TDC funding 13 months ago the Sigma Trust have 
invested well over £1million into the sports facilities at Brightlingsea, and 
after a period of closure the centre started to provide limited public access 
again from September 2022.  
 
Can Councillor Porter confirm whether there are any plans to allocate the 
£60,000 estimated savings from Brightlingsea Sports Centre to provide 
funding for future sports development in the town as part of the new 
District Sports Strategy?  
 
Finally can he also confirm when the strategy will be delivered for 
consultation to reassure residents that the needs of Brightlingsea will be 
fully considered and addressed within this strategy?’” 
 
 

Page 141

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Council
	8 Report of the Chief Executive - A.1 - Petition to Council: Green Space Development
	9 Report of the Chief Executive - A.2 - Petition to Council: Re-Instatement of Toilets on Middle Promenade below Connaught Gardens East, Clacton-on-Sea
	11 Report of the Leader of the Council - A.3 - Executive Decision(s) taken as a matter of Urgency
	12 Minutes of Committees
	22 November 2022 - CLOS Committee
	Minutes

	15 December 2022 - Audit Committee
	Minutes


	14 Joint Report of the Monitoring Officer and the Cabinet - A.4 - Annual Review of the Council's Constitution
	A4 Appendices Combined
	A4 Appendix A - Council Meetings - Council Procedure Rules
	A4 Appendix B - Committee Meetings - Council Procedure Rules
	A4 Appendix C - Article 4.01(a) - Policy Framework
	A4 Appendix D - Article 6 - Overview and Scrutiny Function
	A4 Appendix E - Article 13 (Key Decisions)
	A4 Appendix F - LICENSING & REGISTRATION COMMITTEE & SUB-COMMITTEES TERMS OF REFERENCE & DELEGATED POWERS
	A4 Appendix G - PLANNING COMMITTEE CURRENT ToR & DPs
	A4 Appendix H - Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules
	A4 Appendix I - Financial Procedure Rules - Virements
	A4 Appendix J - Property Dealing Procedure
	A4 Appendix K - Procurement Procedure Rules
	A4 Appendix L - Scheme for Dealing with Petitions
	A4 Appendix M - Members Referral Scheme for Planning Applications
	A4 Appendix N - Article 7 - Cabinet Procedure Rules


	17 Questions Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11.2

